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Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements
This Annual Report on Form 10-K (this “Annual Report”) contains forward-looking statements, within the meaning of Section
27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended
(the “Exchange Act”), that reflect our current estimates, expectations and projections about our future results, performance, prospects and
opportunities. Forward-looking statements include, without limitation, statements about our market opportunities, our business and growth
strategies, our projected revenue and expense levels, possible future consolidated results of operations, the adequacy of our available cash
resources, our financing plans, our competitive position and the effects of competition and the projected growth of the industries in which
we operate, as well as the following statements:
● the expectation that operating losses will continue for the near future, and that until we are able to achieve profits, we intend to continue
to seek to access the capital markets to fund the development of our products;
● that we seek to structure our research and development on a project basis to allow management of costs and results on a discrete shortterm project basis, the expectation that doing so may result in quarterly expenses that rise and fall depending on the underlying project
status, and the expectation that this method of managing projects may allow us to minimize our firm fixed commitments at any given
point in time;
● that we intend to continue to explore strategic opportunities, including potential acquisition opportunities of businesses that are
complementary to ours;
● that we do not anticipate declaring any cash dividends on our common stock;
● that our ability to continue as a going concern is dependent upon our ability to obtain financing to fund the continued marketing, sales
and development of our products and working capital requirements;
● that after consideration of our current cash resources, our expected access to capital under existing financing arrangements, and, if
necessary, delaying and/or reducing certain research, development and related activities and costs, we will have sufficient funds
available to meet our working capital requirements for the near-term future;
● that our products have certain technological advantages, but maintaining these advantages will require continual investment in research
and development, and later in sales and marketing;
● that if any of our manufacturers or suppliers were to cease supplying us with system components, we would be able to procure
alternative sources without material disruption to our business, and that we plan to continue to outsource any manufacturing
requirements of our current and under development products;
● that the medical application of our FireflyDX products will require FDA clearance or CLIA waiver;
● that FireflyDX would enable accurate diagnostics leading to more rapid and effective treatment than what is currently available with
existing systems;
● that M-BAND was developed in accordance with DHS guidelines;
● that our Caregiver thermometer with TouchFree™ technology is less likely to transmit infectious disease than devices that require even
minimal contact.
● that ENG’s MobiLab™ Systems have become the primary choice of mobile labs for scientific and environmental agencies and
organizations throughout the country because of their productivity in the field;
● that ENG’s mobile cellular systems offer the latest technology for testing site performance;
● that we will receive royalties related to our license of the iglucose ™ technology to Smart Glucose Meter Corp (“SGMC”) for up to $2
million based on potential future revenues of glucose test strips sold by SGMC.
This Annual Report also contains forward-looking statements attributed to third parties relating to their estimates regarding the
size of the future market for products and systems such as our products and systems, and the assumptions underlying such estimates.
Forward-looking statements include all statements that are not historical facts and can be identified by forward-looking statements such as
“may,” “might,” “should,” “could,” “will,” “intends,” “estimates,” “predicts,” “projects,” “potential,” “continue,” “believes,” “anticipates,”
“plans,” “expects” and similar expressions. Forward-looking statements are only predictions based on our current expectations and
projections, or those of third parties, about future events and involve risks and uncertainties.
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Although we believe that the expectations reflected in the forward-looking statements contained in this Annual Report are based
upon reasonable assumptions, no assurance can be given that such expectations will be attained or that any deviations will not be material.
In light of these risks, uncertainties and assumptions, the forward-looking statements, events and circumstances discussed in this Annual
Report may not occur and actual results could differ materially and adversely from those anticipated or implied in the forward-looking
statements. Important factors that could cause our actual results, level of performance or achievements to differ materially from those
expressed or forecasted in, or implied by, the forward-looking statements we make in this Annual Report are discussed under “Item 1A.
Risk Factors,” “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and elsewhere in this
Annual Report and include:
●

our ability to predict the extent of future losses or when we will become profitable;

●

our ability to continue as a going concern;

●

our ability to successfully consider, review, and if appropriate, implement other strategic opportunities;

●

our expectation that we will incur losses, on a consolidated basis, for the foreseeable future;

●

our ability to fund our operations and continued development of our products, including FireflyDX;

●

our ability to target the bio-threat detection, real-time PCR, professional healthcare and specialty technology vehicle markets;

●

our ability to obtain and maximize the amount of capital that we will have available to pursue business opportunities;

●

our ability to obtain patents on our products, the validity, scope and enforceability of our patents, and the protection afforded by our
patents;

●

the potential for costly product liability claims and claims that our products infringe the intellectual property rights of others;

●

our ability to comply with current and future regulations relating to our businesses;

●

the potential for patent infringement claims to be brought against us asserting that we are violating another party’s intellectual property
rights;

●

our ability to be awarded government contracts;

●

our ability to establish and maintain proper and effective internal accounting and financial controls;

●

our ability to pay obligations when due which may result in an event of default under our financing arrangements;

●

our ability to successfully identify strategic partners or acquirers for the breath glucose detection system;

●

our ability to successfully integrate our acquisitions;

●

our ability to recover or monetize the convertible notes receivable and warrants with VeriTeQ;

●

our ability to defend against litigation.

You should not place undue reliance on any forward-looking statements. In addition, past financial or operating performance is not
necessarily a reliable indicator of future performance, and you should not use our historical performance to anticipate future results or
future period trends. Except as otherwise required by federal securities laws, we disclaim any obligation or undertaking to disseminate any
updates or revisions to any forward-looking statement contained in this Annual Report to reflect any change in our expectations or any
change in events, conditions or circumstances on which any such statement is based. All forward-looking statements attributable to us, or
persons acting on our behalf, are expressly qualified in their entirety by the cautionary statements included in this Annual Report.
PART I
Item 1. Business
The Company
PositiveID Corporation, including its wholly-owned subsidiaries PositiveID Diagnostics Inc. (“PDI”) and Thermomedics, Inc.
(“Thermomedics”), and its majority-owned subsidiary, ExcitePCR Corporation (“ExcitePCR”), and its 24% owned subsidiary (as of the
date of this report), E-N-G Mobile Systems, Inc. (50.2% at December 31, 2017) (“ENG”) (collectively, the “Company” or “PositiveID”),
develops molecular diagnostic systems for bio-threat detection and rapid medical testing; manufactures specialty technology vehicles; and
markets the Caregiver® non-contact clinical thermometer. The Company’s fully automated pathogen detection systems are designed to
detect a range of biological threats. The Company’s M-BAND (Microfluidic Bio-agent Autonomous Networked Detector) system is an
airborne bio-threat detection system developed for the homeland defense industry to detect biological weapons of mass destruction. The
Company is developing the FireflyDX family of products, which are automated pathogen detection systems for rapid diagnostics, in both
portable and handheld forms, for clinical and point-of-need applications. The Company also manufactures specialty technology vehicles
focused primarily on mobile laboratory and communications applications. The Company’s Caregiver® thermometer is an FDA-cleared
infrared thermometer for the professional healthcare market.
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PositiveID, formerly known as VeriChip Corporation, was formed as a Delaware corporation by Digital Angel Corporation in
November 2001. In January 2002, we began our efforts to create a market for radio frequency identification, or RFID, systems that utilized
a human implantable microchip. During the first half of 2005 we acquired two businesses focused on providing RFID systems for
healthcare applications. Those businesses (EXi Wireless and Instantel) were merged in 2007 to form Xmark Corporation (“Xmark”), which
was a wholly-owned subsidiary of ours.
On July 18, 2008, we completed the sale of all of the outstanding capital stock of Xmark, which at the time was principally all of
our operations, to Stanley Canada Corporation (“Stanley”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Stanley Black and Decker. The sale transaction
was closed for $47.9 million in cash, which consisted of the $45 million purchase price plus a balance sheet adjustment of approximately
$2.9 million, which was adjusted to $2.8 million at settlement of the escrow. Under the terms of the stock purchase agreement, $43.4
million of the proceeds were paid at closing and $4.4 million was released from escrow in July 2009. As a result, we recorded a gain on the
sale of Xmark of $6.2 million, with $4.5 million of that gain deferred until 2009 when the escrow was settled.
Following the completion of the sale of Xmark to Stanley, we retired all of our outstanding debt for a combined payment of $13.5
million and settled all contractual payments to Xmark’s and our officers and management for $9.1 million. On August 28, 2008, we paid a
special dividend to our stockholders of $15.8 million.
On May 23, 2011, we entered into a stock purchase agreement to acquire PDI (f/k/a Microfluidic Systems), pursuant to which PDI
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The Company specializes in the production of automated instruments for a wide range
of applications in the detection and processing of biological samples, ranging from rapid medical testing to airborne pathogen detection for
homeland security.
On October 21, 2015, we entered into an agreement to acquire all of the outstanding capital stock of Thermomedics, a Nevada
corporation, pursuant to a stock purchase agreement by and between PositiveID and Sanomedics Inc., a Delaware corporation
(“Sanomedics”), the shareholder of Thermomedics (collectively the “Thermomedics Acquisition”). On December 4, 2015, we entered into
a first amendment to the stock purchase agreement with Sanomedics. PositiveID, Sanomedics and Thermomedics also entered into a
management services and control Agreement (the “Control Agreement”), dated December 4, 2015, whereby PositiveID was appointed the
manager of Thermomedics. On March 4, 2016, PositiveID, Sanomedics and Thermomedics entered into a letter agreement (the “March
Agreement”), which included an amendment to the Control Agreement, an agreement to terminate intercompany indebtedness, and an
agreement for the transfer of Thermomedics’ intellectual property. Under the terms of the March Agreement, PositiveID, Sanomedics and
Thermomedics agreed to extend the closing date for the stock purchase agreement to March 31, 2016. As a result of the Company assuming
control of Thermomedics on December 4, 2015, the Company determined, pursuant to ASC 805-10-25-6, that December 4, 2015 was the
acquisition date of Thermomedics for accounting purposes and began consolidating the balance sheet and results of operations of
Thermomedics as of that date. The Company completed the acquisition of the capital stock of Thermomedics on August 25, 2016.
On December 22, 2015, we entered into a stock purchase agreement to acquire ENG, pursuant to which ENG became a whollyowned subsidiary. ENG manufactures specialty technology vehicles focused primarily on mobile labs, command and communications
centers, and cellular applications. The acquisition of ENG closed on December 24, 2015.
On June 12, 2017, the Company sold 49.8% ownership of ENG to a strategic investor. Accordingly, the Company is presenting
noncontrolling interests as a component of equity on its consolidated balance sheets under the heading “Non-controlling interest in
consolidated subsidiary” and reports noncontrolling interest net income or loss under the heading “Net (income) loss allocated to
noncontrolling interest in consolidated subsidiary” in the consolidated statements of operations based on its 50.2% ownership.
On August 24, 2017, the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary PositiveID Diagnostics, Inc. (collectively, the “Seller”),
entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement (“APA”) with ExcitePCR Corporation (“ExcitePCR”). Pursuant to the APA, at closing, the
Seller will sell and deliver to ExcitePCR all right, title and interest in all assets used or useful in connection with the operation of the
FireflyDX technology, which consists of the FireflyDX intellectual property and that of its predecessor, the Dragonfly Dx technology and
products, along with patents, the applicable know how used in the development of the FireflyDX and Dragonfly Dx technology, and
breadboard prototypes of both products (the “Firefly Technology”). The consideration to be paid by ExcitePCR to the Seller pursuant to the
APA, will be 10,500,000 shares of common stock of ExcitePCR, and the Company will own approximately 91% of ExcitePCR postclosing of the sale (prior to any financing). As a condition to the Seller’s obligation to close the transaction, ExcitePCR shall have
completed a financing transaction with net proceeds to ExcitePCR of at least $3 million. Additional conditions and deliverables at closing
include a patent assignment agreement, accounting services agreement, license agreement, and certain required consents from third parties.
As of December 31, 2017, ExcitePCR and the Company had not yet closed the transaction.
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The Company believes that the Firefly Technology has significant potential value to stockholders. The parties have entered into
the APA so ExcitePCR can secure financing and then independently pursue the development, improvement and commercialization of the
Firefly Technology. The current stockholders of ExcitePCR (in addition to the Company which is the majority holder) include two thirdparty individuals, who are working with ExcitePCR to develop and execute the business plan of ExcitePCR. Lyle L. Probst (the Company’s
President) is the Chief Executive Officer of ExcitePCR, William J. Caragol (the Company’s Chairman and CEO), is the Chairman of
ExcitePCR.
On January 30, 2018, ENG, in order to raise working capital, sold additional ownership of ENG to the strategic investor and as a
result of this transaction, the Company’s equity interest in ENG has decreased to 24%. At December 31, 2017 the Company owned 50.2%
of ENG and controlled ENG’s assets. These assets represented between 50% and 55% of the Company’s overall assets. As a result of the
decreased ownership, as of January 30, 2018, the Company no longer controls ENG’s operations which will result in the deconsolidation of
ENG in 2018. The operations and assets of ENG represent a significant amount of the Company’s assets. The Company will prospectively
deconsolidate the balance sheet, results of operations and cash flows of ENG in its consolidated financial statements.
Beginning with the acquisition of PDI in 2011, the Company began to focus its operations on diagnostics and detection. Since that
acquisition, the Company has either sold or exclusively licensed all of its legacy businesses, including its VeriChip assets, its iglucose™
technology, the GlucoChip technology, and its patent related to a glucose breath detection system. See “Our Business” under Part I of this
Form 10-K for more information and a description of the Company’s current business.
Our principal executive offices are located at 1690 South Congress Avenue, Suite 201, Delray Beach, Florida 33445. Our
telephone number is (561) 805-8000. Unless the context provides otherwise, when we refer to the “Company,” “we,” “our,” or “us” in this
Annual Report, we are referring to PositiveID Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries.
This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains trademarks and trade names of other organizations and corporations.
Available Information
We file or furnish with or to the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, annual reports
on Form 10-K, current reports on Form 8-K, annual reports to stockholders and annual proxy statements and amendments to such filings.
Our SEC filings are available to the public on the SEC’s website at http://www.sec.gov. These reports are also available free of charge on
our website at http://www.psidcorp.com as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file or furnish such material with or to the
SEC. The information on our website is not incorporated by reference into this Annual Report or any registration statement that
incorporates this Annual Report by reference.
Our Business
We are a life sciences and technology company focused primarily on the healthcare, homeland security and specialty vehicle
markets. Within our detection and diagnostics business, we specialize in the development of microfluidic systems for the automated
preparation of and performance of biological assays to detect biological threats and analyze biological samples at the point of need.
Thermomedics markets the Caregiver non-contact thermometer to the professional healthcare market. Our ENG subsidiary manufactures
specialty technology vehicles with a focus on mobile labs. PositiveID has a substantial portfolio of intellectual property related primarily to
sample preparation and rapid medical testing applications, and the Caregiver non-contact thermometer.
Since its inception, we have received U.S. government grants and contracts, primarily from the Department of Homeland Security
(“DHS”). We have submitted, or are in the process of submitting, bids on various potential U.S. government contracts.
M-BAND
Our M-BAND technology, developed under contract with the U.S. DHS Science & Technology directorate, is a bio-aerosol
monitor with fully integrated systems for sample collection, processing and detection modules. M-BAND continuously and autonomously
analyzes air samples for the detection of pathogenic bacteria, viruses, and toxins for up to 30 days. Results from individual M-BAND
instruments are reported via a secure wireless network in real time to give an accurate and up-to-date status of field conditions. M-BAND
performs high specificity detection for up to six organisms on the Centers for Disease Control’s category A and B select agents list. Further,
we believe M-BAND was developed in accordance with DHS guidelines.
In December 2012, the Company entered into a Sole and Exclusive License Agreement (the “Boeing License Agreement”), a
Teaming, (the “Teaming Agreement”) and a security agreement (the “Boeing Security Agreement”), with The Boeing Company
(“Boeing”). The Boeing License Agreement provides Boeing the exclusive license to sell PositiveID’s M-BAND airborne bio-threat
detector for the DHS BioWatch next generation opportunity, as well as other opportunities (government or commercial) that may arise in
the North American market. As consideration for entry into the Boeing License Agreement, Boeing paid a license fee of $2.5 million (the
“Boeing License Fee”) to the Company in three installments, which were paid in full during 2012 and 2013 and was recognized as revenue
during the year ended December 31, 2015. Under the Teaming Agreement, which has now expired, and subject to certain conditions, the
Company retained the exclusive rights to serve as the reagent and assay supplier of M-BAND systems to Boeing. The Company also
retained all rights to sell M-BAND units, reagents and assays in international markets. Pursuant to the Boeing Security Agreement, the
Company granted Boeing a security interest in all of its assets, including the licensed products and intellectual property rights (as defined in
the Boeing License Agreement), to secure the Company’s performance under the Boeing License Agreement.
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FireflyDX
Our FireflyDX system is designed to deliver molecular diagnostic results from a sample in less than 30 minutes, which, we
believe, would enable accurate diagnostics leading to more rapid and effective treatment than what is currently available with existing
systems. The FireflyDX breadboard prototype system has already demonstrated the ability to detect and identify common pathogens and
diseases such as E. coli, Methicillin-resistant Staphylococcus Aureus, Methicillin-susceptible Staphylococcus Aureus, Clostridium difficile,
Zika virus, Ebola virus, influenza and others. FireflyDX is designed to be a simple-to-use, point-of-care, real-time polymerase chain
reaction (“PCR”) device, for use by medical personnel at the point-of-need; first response teams to detect biological agents associated with
weapons of mass destruction; agricultural screening in domestic sectors and developing countries; and point-of-need monitoring of
pathogenic outbreaks.
We have demonstrated in our labs that the entire FireflyDX prototype design functions as intended through the complete sample
purification and detection process without the use of any third-party hardware. The next step in the development of FireflyDX is to
combine these processes and breadboards into single units and demonstrate the capability to run a test from putting the raw sample in the
cartridge through sample preparation, PCR and real-time detection as a single system. We are currently seeking a government contract or a
strategic or financial partner to help us fund the remaining development and the build of the smaller, field-able prototype for testing by
third parties to prepare for commercialization.
Caregiver
Caregiver is an infrared thermometer, FDA-cleared for clinical use, that measures forehead temperature in adults, children and
infants, without contact. It delivers an oral-equivalent temperature directly from the forehead in one to two seconds. Caregiver is the
world’s first clinically validated, non-contact thermometer for the healthcare providers market, which includes hospitals, physicians’
offices, medical clinics, nursing homes and other long-term care institutions, and acute care hospitals. Caregiver requires minimal training
and is proven as accurate as other methods of clinical thermometry, which include predictive oral/rectal/axillary electronic, infrared
tympanic, temporal artery contact scanner, etc. Other temperature monitoring devices may require intensive technique concentration, which
make them prone to mistaken placement or dwell time, and may require replacement metal probes, cords, or other parts. Because there is no
skin contact, we believe the Caregiver thermometer with TouchFree™ technology is less likely to transmit infectious disease than devices
that require even minimal contact. Caregiver saves medical facilities the cost of probe covers (as much as $0.05 to $0.10 per temperature
reading), storage space and disposal costs. It is estimated that Caregiver can offer savings of $250 or more per year per device in probe
cover supplies alone.
ENG Mobile Systems
Our ENG subsidiary is a leader in the specialty technology vehicle market, with a focus on mobile laboratories, command and
communications applications, and mobile cellular systems. The fastest growing segment of ENG’s business over the last decade is its
mobile labs, which include government and corporate laboratories for environmental, chemical, biological, nuclear, radiological and
explosives testing in the field. ENG’s MobiLab™ Systems have become the primary choice of mobile labs for scientific and environmental
agencies and organizations throughout the country because of their productivity in the field. ENG has delivered more than 400 MobiLabs
to customers around the world. The combination of PositiveID’s expert bio-detection technologies with ENG’s advanced mobile labs is
expected to offer customers a next generation, best of breed solution in the mobile laboratory space.
ENG also provides specialty vehicle manufacturing for TV news vans and trucks, emergency response trailers, mobile command
centers, infrared inspection, and other special purpose vehicles. ENG provides technical support to customers’ field personnel through its
training and educational programs, and also offers customizable service and maintenance agreements. ENG’s mobile cellular systems offer
temporary cell sites to boost capacity, as well as the latest technology for testing site performance. During the past 25 years, ENG has
pioneered numerous engineering and design breakthroughs, and has also incorporated advanced technology in its service offerings.
Legacy Products
Between 2011 and 2013, we entered into license or sale agreements to dispose of certain technologies concentrated in the area of
diabetes management and patient identification. Those products and their status are as follows:
VeriChip and GlucoChip
Throughout the course of 2012 to 2014, the Company and VeriTeQ, a business run by a former related party (CEO of the
Company through 2011), entered into a number of agreements for the intellectual property related to the Company’s embedded biosensor
portfolio, which ultimately resulted in a GlucoChip and a Settlement Agreement, entered into on October 20, 2014 (the “VeriTeQ
Agreements”), under which the final element of the Company’s implantable microchip business was sold to VeriTeQ.
7

Pursuant to the VeriTeQ agreements, the Company holds a series of convertible notes that was received as payment for shared
services payments that the Company made on behalf of VeriTeQ during 2011 and 2012, and advances. As of December 31, 2017, the
Company had outstanding convertible notes receivable from VeriTeQ of $449,980, inclusive of accrued interest, and is also owed $541,175
of default principal and interest for a total amount receivable of $991,155. All amounts owed from VeriTeQ are fully reserved in all periods
presented.
The Company also holds a five-year warrant dated November 13, 2013, with original terms entitling the Company to purchase
300,000 shares of VeriTeQ common stock at a price of $2.84 which expires November 13, 2018. Pursuant to the terms of the warrant, in
particular the full quantity and pricing reset provisions, the warrant had an original dollar value of $852,000 and can be exercised using a
cashless exercise feature. As of December 31, 2015, the Company exercised a portion of the warrant and recognized a gain of $355,600. As
of December 31, 2017, the Company holds approximately 256,960 warrants with a dollar value of $729,000. The value of the warrant has
also been fully reserved in all periods presented.
As VeriTeQ is an idle company and not capitalized, the Company plans to continue to fully reserve all note receivable and warrant
balances. If and when proceeds are realized in the future, gains will be recognized.
Sales, Marketing and Distribution
Our sales, marketing and distribution plan for our healthcare products is to align with large medical distribution companies, and
either manufacture the products to their specification or license the products and underlying technology to them. We have entered into
various distribution agreements with several medical equipment suppliers to distribute our Caregiver thermometer. We will also sell the
Caregiver thermometer under separate agreements with commissioned independent sales representatives and smaller distributors who have
non-exclusive territorial agreements. ENG markets directly to customers through its internal sales force, website, referrals and channel
partners.
We are subject to certain indemnification obligations in connection with our distribution agreements. We are usually required to
procure and maintain product liability insurance of specified limits per occurrence and in the aggregate, naming the contracting party as an
additional insured. Our distributors, resellers, and sales representatives typically agree not to sell competitive products during the term of
their agreements with us.
Manufacturing: Distributor and Supplier Arrangements
We have historically outsourced the manufacturing of all the hardware components of our systems to third parties. As of
December 31, 2017, we have not had material difficulties obtaining system components. We believe that if any of our manufacturers or
suppliers were to cease supplying us with system components, we would be able to procure alternative sources without material disruption
to our business. We plan to continue to outsource any manufacturing requirements of our current and under-development products.
The technology and functionality of the Caregiver thermometer was co-designed by our supplier in Taiwan, which, as discussed
below, is the manufacturer and the assignor to us of the requisite U.S. governmental pre-marketing approvals. We designed the housing of
our products, incorporating our extensive thermometry engineering and clinical expertise. We are in the process of designing and
developing, with our supplier, all aspects, including technology, of our proposed second-generation products.
Under certain agreements, the Company may be subject to penalties if they are unable to supply products under its obligations.
Since inception, the Company has never incurred any such penalties.
Environmental Regulation
We must comply with local, state, federal, and international environmental laws and regulations in the countries in which we do
business, including laws and regulations governing the management and disposal of hazardous substances and wastes. We expect our
operations and products will be affected by future environmental laws and regulations, but we cannot predict the effects of any such future
laws and regulations at this time. Our distributors who place our products on the market in the European Union are required to comply with
EU Directive 2002/96/EC on waste electrical and electronic equipment, known as the WEEE Directive. Noncompliance by our distributors
with EU Directive 2002/96/EC would adversely affect the success of our business in that market. Additionally, the applicability of EU
Directive 2002/95/EC on the restriction of the use of certain hazardous substances in electrical and electronic equipment, known as the
RoHS Directive which took effect on July 1, 2006 does not impact our business.
Government Regulation
Regulation by the FDA
The thermometers that we market are subject to regulation by numerous regulatory bodies, including the FDA and comparable
international regulatory agencies. These agencies require manufacturers of medical devices, such as our manufacturer, to comply with
applicable laws and regulations governing the development, testing, manufacturing, labeling, marketing and distribution of medical
devices. In addition, the Quality Management System employed by our contract manufacturer must meet the FDA 21 CFR Part 820, and its
manufacturing facility is subject to periodic FDA audit. Devices are generally subject to varying levels of regulatory control, the most
comprehensive of which requires that a clinical evaluation be conducted before a device receives approval for commercial distribution. Our
products are subject to the lowest level of regulation and only require pre-marketing approval, as described below.
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In the United States, permission to distribute a new device generally can be met in one of three ways. The process relevant to our
products requires that a pre-market notification (“510(k) Submission”) be made to the FDA to demonstrate that the device is as safe and
effective as, or substantially equivalent to, a legally marketed device that is not subject to pre-market approval (“PMA”), i.e., the
“predicate” device. An appropriate predicate device for a pre-market notification is one that (i) was legally marketed prior to May 28, 1976,
(ii) was approved under a PMA but then subsequently reclassified from class III to class II or I, or (iii) has been found to be substantially
equivalent and cleared for commercial distribution under a 510(k) Submission. Applicants must submit descriptive data and, when
necessary, performance data to establish that the device is substantially equivalent to a predicate device. (In some instances not relevant to
our products, data from human clinical trials must also be submitted in support of a 510(k) Submission. The FDA must issue an order
finding substantial equivalence before commercial distribution can occur. Changes to existing devices covered by a 510(k) Submission that
do not raise new questions of safety or effectiveness can generally be made without additional 510(k) Submissions. More significant
changes, such as new designs or materials, may require a separate 510(k) with data to support that the modified device remains
substantially equivalent. The FDA has recently begun to review its clearance process in an effort to make it more rigorous, which may
require additional clinical data, time and effort for product clearance.
We have received a 510(k) pre-market approval from the FDA for our thermometers. This 510(k) will allow us to sell our secondgeneration thermometers without additional approvals. However, we may need to obtain recertification. Depending on product changes,
this recertification may require a complete documentation package, an abbreviated documentation package or an internal documentation
package, a determination to be made by guidance documents from the FDA, in concert with our regulatory consultants.
Some countries do not have medical device regulations, but in most foreign countries medical devices are regulated. Frequently,
regulatory approval may first be obtained in a foreign country prior to application in the United States to take advantage of differing
regulatory requirements. If we market in foreign countries, such as the European countries, ISO 13485 is the internationally recognized
standard for medical devices. Products must comply with ISO 13485 to receive the “CE” mark. We design our products to comply with the
requirements of both the FDA and ISO 13485. We intend to conduct audits of our contract manufacturers to ensure compliance with these
regulations. If an audit uncovers problems, there is a risk of disruption in product availability.
Upon the completion of development, we intend to apply for a Clinical Laboratory Improvement Amendments (“CLIA”) waiver
from the FDA to market FireflyDX.
CLIA Waiver. Congress passed the CLIA in 1988 establishing quality standards for all laboratory testing to ensure the accuracy,
reliability and timeliness of patient test results regardless of where the test was performed. The requirements are based on the complexity
of the test and not the type of laboratory where the testing is performed. As defined by CLIA, waived tests are categorized as “simple
laboratory examinations and procedures that have an insignificant risk of an erroneous result.” The FDA determines the criteria for tests
being simple with a low risk of error and approves manufacturer’s applications for test system waiver.
FDA Premarket Clearance and Approval Requirements. Generally speaking, unless an exemption applies such as applying for a
CLIA waiver, each medical device we wish to distribute commercially in the United States will require either prior clearance under Section
510(k) of the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, (“FFDCA”), or a PMA, approved by the FDA. Medical devices are classified into one
of three classes — Class I, Class II or Class III — depending on the degree of risk to the patient associated with the medical device and the
extent of control needed to ensure its safety and effectiveness. Devices deemed to pose low or moderate risks are placed in either Class I or
II, respectively. The manufacturer of a Class II device is required to submit to the FDA a premarket notification requesting permission to
commercially distribute the device and demonstrating that the proposed device is substantially equivalent to a previously cleared 510(k)
device or a device that was in commercial distribution before May 28, 1976 for which the FDA has not yet called for the submission of a
PMA. This process is known as 510(k) clearance. Devices deemed by the FDA to pose the greatest risk, such as life-sustaining, lifesupporting implantable devices, or devices deemed not substantially equivalent to a previously cleared 510(k) device, are considered high
risk and placed in Class III, requiring premarket approval.
Pervasive and Continuing Regulation. After a medical device is placed on the market, numerous regulatory requirements continue
to apply. These include:
●

quality system regulations, (“QSR”), which require manufacturers, including third-party manufacturers, to follow stringent design,
testing, control, documentation and other quality assurance procedures during all aspects of the manufacturing process;

●

labeling regulations and FDA prohibitions against the promotion of regulated products for uncleared, unapproved or off-label uses;

●

clearance or approval of product modifications that could significantly affect safety or effectiveness or that would constitute a major
change in intended use;

●

medical device reporting, (“MDR”), regulations, which require that a manufacturer report to the FDA if the manufacturer’s device may
have caused or contributed to a death or serious injury or malfunctioned in a way that would likely cause or contribute to a death or
serious injury if the malfunction were to recur;
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●

post-market surveillance regulations, which apply when necessary to protect the public health or to provide additional safety and
effectiveness data for the device; and

●

medical device tracking requirements apply when the failure of the device would be reasonably likely to have serious adverse health
consequences.

Fraud and Abuse
We are subject to various federal and state laws pertaining to healthcare fraud and abuse, including anti-kickback laws and false
claims laws. Violations of these laws are punishable by criminal and/or civil sanctions, including, in some instances, imprisonment and
exclusion from participation in federal and state healthcare programs, including Medicare, Medicaid and Veterans Affairs health programs.
We have never been challenged by a government authority under any of these laws and believe that our operations are in material
compliance with such laws. However, because of the far-reaching nature of these laws, there can be no assurance that we would not be
required to alter one or more of our practices to be in compliance with these laws. In addition, there can be no assurance that the occurrence
of one or more violations of these laws would not result in a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.
Anti-Kickback Laws
We may directly or indirectly be subject to various federal and state laws pertaining to healthcare fraud and abuse, including antikickback laws. In particular, the federal healthcare program Anti-Kickback Statute prohibits persons from knowingly and willfully
soliciting, offering, receiving or providing remuneration, directly or indirectly, in exchange for or to induce either the referral of an
individual, or the furnishing, arranging for or recommending a good or service, for which payment may be made in whole or part under
federal healthcare programs, such as the Medicare and Medicaid programs. Penalties for violations include criminal penalties and civil
sanctions such as fines, imprisonment and possible exclusion from Medicare, Medicaid and other federal healthcare programs.
Federal False Claims Act
We may become subject to the Federal False Claims Act (“FCA”). The FCA imposes civil fines and penalties against anyone who
knowingly submits or causes to be submitted to a government agency a false claim for payment. The FCA contains so-called “whistleblower” provisions that permit a private individual to bring a claim, called a qui tam action, on behalf of the government to recover
payments made as a result of a false claim. The statute provides that the whistle-blower may be paid a portion of any funds recovered as a
result of the lawsuit.
State Laws and Regulations
Many states have enacted laws similar to the federal Anti-Kickback Statute and FCA. The Deficit Reduction Act of 2005 contains
provisions that give monetary incentives to states to enact new state false claims acts. The state Attorneys General are actively engaged in
promoting the passage and enforcement of these laws. While the Federal Anti-Kickback Statute and FCA apply only to federal programs,
many similar state laws apply both to state funded and to commercial health care programs. In addition to these laws, all states have passed
various consumer protection statutes. These statutes generally prohibit deceptive and unfair marketing practices, including making untrue
or exaggerated claims regarding consumer products. There are potentially a wide variety of other state laws, including state privacy laws, to
which we might be subject. We have not conducted an exhaustive examination of these state laws.
Laws and Regulations Governing Privacy and Security
There are various federal and state laws and rules regulating the protection of consumer and patient privacy. We have never been
challenged by a governmental authority under any of these laws and believe that our operations are in material compliance with such laws.
However, because of the far-reaching nature of these laws, there can be no assurance that we would not be required to alter one or more of
our systems and data security procedures to be in compliance with these laws. Our failure to protect health information received from
customers could subject us to civil or criminal liability and adverse publicity and could harm or business and impair our ability to attract
new customers.
U.S. Federal Trade Commission Oversight
An increasing focus of the United States Federal Trade Commission’s (the “FTC”), consumer protection regulation is the impact
of technological change on protection of consumer privacy. Under the FTC’s statutory authority to prosecute unfair or deceptive acts and
practices, the FTC vigorously enforces promises a business makes about how personal information is collected, used and secured.
Since 1999, the FTC has taken enforcement action against companies that do not abide by their representations to consumers of
electronic security and privacy. More recently, the FTC has found that failure to take reasonable and appropriate security measures to
protect sensitive personal information is an unfair practice violating federal law. In the consent decree context, offenders are routinely
required to adopt very specific cyber security and internal compliance mechanisms, as well as submit to twenty years of independent
compliance audits. Businesses that do not adopt reasonable and appropriate data security controls or that misrepresent privacy assurances to
users have been subject to civil penalties as high as $22.5 million.
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In 2009, the FTC issued rules requiring vendors of personal health records to notify customers of any breach of unsecured,
individually identifiable health information. Also, a third-party service provider of such vendors or entities that experiences a breach must
notify such vendors or entities of the breach. If we experience a breach of our systems containing personal health records, we will be
required to provide these notices and may be subject to penalties. Violations of these requirements may be prosecuted by the FTC as an
unfair or deceptive act or practice and could result in significant harm to our reputation.
Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act
of 2009
The Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and its implementing regulations (“HIPAA”), govern how
various entities and individuals can use and disclose protected health information. If we begin transmitting individually identifiable health
information in connection with certain standard transactions regulated by HIPAA, we would likely have to implement a HIPAA
compliance program to ensure our uses and disclosures of health information are done in accordance with the regulations. Under the federal
Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act, (the “HITECH Act”), we may be subject to certain federal privacy
and security requirements relating to individually identifiable health information we maintain. We may be required to enter into written
business associate agreements with certain health care providers and health plans relating to the privacy and security of protected health
information, to the extent our customers are covered entities under HIPAA and to the extent we receive, use or disclose protected health
information on their behalf. Under the HITECH Act, we would be required by federal law to comply with those business associate
agreements, as well as certain privacy and security requirements found in HIPAA and the HITECH Act as they relate to our activities as a
business associate. If we are a covered entity or business associate under HIPAA and the HITECH Act, compliance with those requirements
would require us to, among other things, conduct a risk analysis, implement a risk management plan, implement policies and procedures,
and conduct employee training. The HITECH Act would also require us to notify patients or our customers, to the extent that they are
covered entities subject to HIPAA, of a breach of privacy or security of individually identifiable health information. Breaches may also
require notification to the Department of Health and Human Services and the media. Experiencing a breach could have a material impact on
our reputation. The standards under HIPAA and the HITECH Act could be interpreted by regulatory authorities in ways that could require
us to make material changes to our operations. Failure to comply with these federal privacy and security laws could subject us to civil and
criminal penalties. Civil penalties can go as high as $50,000 per violation, with an annual maximum of $1.5 million for all violations of an
identical provision in a calendar year.
State Legislation
Many states have privacy laws relating specifically to the use and disclosure of healthcare information. Federal healthcare privacy
laws may preempt state laws that are less restrictive or offer fewer protections for healthcare information than the federal law if it is
impossible to comply with both sets of laws. More restrictive or protective state laws still may apply to us, and state laws will still apply to
the extent that they are not contrary to federal law. Therefore, we may be required to comply with one or more of these multiple state
privacy laws. Statutory penalties for violation of these state privacy laws varies widely. Violations also may subject us to lawsuits for
invasion of privacy claims, or enforcement actions brought by state Attorneys General. We have not conducted an exhaustive examination
of these state laws.
Many states currently have laws in place requiring organizations to notify individuals if there has been unauthorized access to
certain unencrypted personal information. Several states also require organizations to notify the applicable state Attorney General or other
governmental entity in the event of a data breach and may also require notification to consumer reporting agencies if the number of
individuals involved surpasses a defined threshold. We may be required to comply with one or more of these notice of security breach laws
in the event of unauthorized access to personal information. In addition to statutory penalties for a violation of the notice of security breach
laws, we may be exposed to liability from affected individuals.
Regulation of Government Bid Process and Contracting
Contracts with federal governmental agencies are obtained by primarily through a competitive proposal/bidding process. Although
practices vary, typically a formal Request for Proposal is issued by the governmental agency, stating the scope of work to be performed,
length of contract, performance bonding requirements, minimum qualifications of bidders, selection criteria and the format to be followed
in the bid or proposal. Usually, a committee appointed by the governmental agency reviews proposals and makes an award determination.
The committee may award the contract to a particular bidder or decide not to award the contract. The committees consider a number of
factors, including the technical quality of the proposal, the offered price and the reputation of the bidder for providing quality care. The
award of a contract may be subject to formal or informal protest by unsuccessful bidders through a governmental appeals process. Our
contracts with governmental agencies often require us to comply with numerous additional requirements regarding recordkeeping and
accounting, non-discrimination in the hiring of personnel, safety, safeguarding confidential information, management qualifications,
professional licensing requirements and other matters. If a violation of the terms of an applicable contractual provision occurs, a contractor
may be disbarred or suspended from obtaining future contracts for specified periods of time. We have never been disbarred or suspended
from seeking procurements by any governmental agency.
Risk Management
The testing, marketing and sale of human healthcare products entails an inherent risk of product liability claims. In the normal
course of business, product liability claims may be asserted against us in the future related to events unknown at the present time. We have
obtained and maintain insurance with respect to product liability claims in amounts we believe are appropriate. However, product liability
claims, product recalls, litigation in the future, regardless of outcome, could have a material adverse effect on our business. We believe that
our risk management practices are reasonably adequate to protect against reasonable product liability losses. However, unanticipated
catastrophic losses could have a material adverse impact on our financial position, results of operations and liquidity.
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Competitive Conditions
We compete with many companies in the molecular diagnostics industry and the homeland defense and clinical markets. We
believe that Luminex Corporation, Cepheid, Roche, BioMerieux, and Thermo Fisher Scientific will be competitors for our molecular
diagnostics products. We believe Welch Allyn, Braun and Exergen, which markets a line of oral, infrared, tympanic and axillary
thermometers, is our main competitor in the clinical-use thermometry market. In our ENG business, we believe our competitors include
GermFree Laboratories, Inc., LDV Inc., and Farber Specialty Vehicles.
Key characteristics of our markets include long operating cycles and intense competition, which is evident through the number of
bid protests (competitor protests of U.S. government procurement awards) and the number of competitors bidding on program
opportunities. It is common in the homeland defense industry for work on major programs to be shared among several companies. A
company competing to be a prime contractor may, upon ultimate award of the contract to another competitor, become a subcontractor for
the ultimate prime contracting company. It is not unusual to compete for a contract award with a peer company and, simultaneously,
perform as a supplier to, or a customer of, that same competitor on other contracts, or vice versa.
Research and Development
The principal objectives of our research and development program are to develop high-value molecular diagnostic products such
as FireflyDX and M-BAND, as well as to improve the accuracy of our thermometer products so that we can complete development of and
introduce our next-generation line of human thermometers to healthcare professionals and institutions. We focus our efforts on five main
areas: 1) engineering efforts to extend the capabilities of our systems and to develop new systems; 2) assay development efforts to design,
optimize and produce specific tests that leverage the systems and chemistry we have developed; 3) target discovery research to identify
novel micro RNA targets to be used in the development of future assays; 4) chemistry research to develop innovative and proprietary
methods to design and synthesize oligonucleotide primers, probes and dyes to optimize the speed, performance and ease-of-use of our
assays; and 5) developing hardware and software for all our new thermometer models, and further clinical studies for validation.
Authorized Common Stock and Reverse Stock Split
On January 30, 2017, the Company filed the First Amendment to the Company’s Third Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation with the State of Delaware, to increase the Company’s authorized capital stock from 3.9 billion shares to 20 billion shares
(19.995 billion common) and to change the par value of the Company’s common stock from $0.001 to $0.0001.
On May 19, 2017, the Company filed the Second Amendment to the Third Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as
amended, with the State of Delaware, to implement a 1-for-3,000 reverse stock split of the Company’s outstanding common stock, which
became effective on May 23, 2017. The reverse stock split affected the outstanding common stock as well as all common stock underlying
convertible notes, warrants, convertible preferred stock and stock options outstanding immediately prior to the reverse stock split. The
number of authorized shares was not adjusted. All share and per share amounts in this Annual Report have been retroactively adjusted to
reflect the change in the par value of the Common Stock and the 1-for-3,000 reverse stock split.
On December 27, 2017, the Company received (i) a written consent in lieu of a meeting of Stockholders (the “Written Consent”)
from holders of shares of voting securities representing approximately 78% of the total issued and outstanding shares of voting stock of the
Company; and (ii) a unanimous written consent of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) to approve the following: the granting of
discretionary authority to the Board, at any time for a period of 12 months after the date of the Written Consent, to authorize the adoption
of an amendment to the Company’s Third Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended (the “Certificate of
Incorporation”), to effect a reverse stock split of the Company’s common stock at a ratio between 1 for 100 to 1 for 1,000, such ratio to be
determined by the Board, or to determine not to proceed with the reverse stock split (the “Reverse Stock Split”); and the granting of
discretionary authority to the Board for a period of 12 months after the date of the Written Consent, to authorize the adoption of an
amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation to decrease the Company’s authorized capital stock, from 20,000,000,000 shares down to an
amount not less than 50,000,000 shares, such decrease to be determined by the Board, or to determine not to proceed with the decrease in
authorized capital stock (the “Decrease in Authorized Shares”). As of the date of this Annual Report, the Company had not effected the
Reverse Stock Split or the Decrease in Authorized Shares.
Employees
As of March 16, 2018, PositiveID, Thermomedics and ExcitePCR had a total of 9 full-time employees, of which 3 were in
management; 2 were in finance and administration; 2 were in sales, marketing and business development; and 2 were in research,
development and engineering. As of March 16, 2018, ENG had a total of 21 full-time employees, of which 1 was in management; 1 was in
finance and administration; 2 were in sales, marketing and business development; 2 were in research, development and engineering; and 15
were in manufacturing. We consider our relationship with our employees to be satisfactory and have not experienced any interruptions of
our operations as a result of labor disagreements. None of our employees are represented by labor unions or covered by collective
bargaining agreements.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors
The following risks and the risks described elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, including the section entitled
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” could materially affect our business,
prospects, financial condition, operating results and cash flows. If any of these risks materialize, the trading price of our common stock
could decline, and you may lose all or part of your investment.
Risks Related to the Operations and Business of PositiveID
We have a history of losses and expect to incur additional losses in the future. We are unable to predict the extent of future losses or
when we will become profitable.
For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, we experienced net losses of $8.7 million and $13.1 million, respectively and
our accumulated deficit at December 31, 2017 was $165.8 million. Until our ENG, Caregiver, Firefly and M-BAND businesses and
products are profitable on a combined basis, we do not anticipate generating significant operating profits. We have submitted, or are in the
process of submitting, bids on various potential new U.S. Government contracts; however, there can be no assurance that we will be
successful in obtaining any such new or other contracts.
We expect to continue to incur operating losses for the near future. Our ability in the future to achieve or sustain profitability is
based on a number of factors, many of which are beyond our control. Even if we achieve profitability in the future, we may not be able to
sustain profitability in subsequent periods.
We may be unable to successfully close the ExcitePCR transaction and, if we do not, we may be unable to further develop the Firefly
Technology.
We believe that the Firefly Technology has significant potential value to stockholders. As a condition to our obligation to close the
APA, ExcitePCR shall have completed a financing transaction with net proceeds to ExcitePCR of at least $3 million. Additional conditions
and deliverables at closing include a patent assignment agreement, accounting services agreement, license agreement, and certain required
consents from third parties. As of December 31, 2017, ExcitePCR and the Company had not yet closed the transaction.
The parties have entered into the APA so ExcitePCR can secure financing and then independently pursue the development,
improvement and commercialization of the Firefly Technology. If we are unable to close the transaction with ExcitePCR, we may unable to
further develop the Firefly Technology due to potential partners and/or investors key to the completion and commercialization of the
Firefly Technology preferring to not partner with a highly leveraged company such as ours. Our failure to develop the Firefly Technology
could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, or results of operations.
Our financial statements indicate conditions exist that raise substantial doubt as to whether we will continue as a going concern.
Our annual audited financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 indicate conditions that exist that raise
substantial doubt as to whether we will continue as a going concern. Our continuation as a going concern is dependent upon our ability to
obtain financing to fund the continued development of products and working capital requirements. If we cannot continue as a going
concern, our stockholders may lose their entire investment.
Government contracts and subcontracts are generally subject to a competitive bidding process that may affect our ability to win contract
awards or renewals in the future.
We bid on government contracts through a formal competitive process in which we may have many competitors. If awarded, upon
expiration, these contracts may be subject, once again, to a competitive renewal process if applicable. We may not be successful in winning
contract awards or renewals in the future. Our failure to renew or replace existing contracts when they expire could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition, or results of operations.
Contracts and subcontracts with United States government agencies that we may be awarded will be subject to competition and
will be awarded on the basis of technical merit, personnel qualifications, experience, and price. Our business, financial condition, and
results of operations could be materially affected to the extent that U.S. government agencies believe our competitors offer a more
attractive combination of the foregoing factors. In addition, government demand and payment for our products may be affected by public
sector budgetary cycles and funding authorizations, with funding reductions or delays adversely affecting demand for our products. Our
success in this process is an important factor in our ability to increase stockholder value.
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Compliance with changing regulations concerning corporate governance and public disclosure may result in additional expenses.
There have been changing laws, regulations and standards relating to corporate governance and public disclosure, including the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act, and new regulations promulgated by the SEC. These new or changed laws, regulations and standards are subject to
varying interpretations in many cases due to their lack of specificity, and, as a result, their application in practice may evolve over time as
new guidance is provided by regulatory and governing bodies, which could result in continuing uncertainty regarding compliance matters
and higher costs necessitated by ongoing revisions to disclosure and governance practices. As a result, our efforts to comply with evolving
laws, regulations and standards are likely to continue to result in increased general and administrative expenses and a diversion of
management time and attention from revenue-generating activities to compliance activities. Our board members and executive officers
could face an increased risk of personal liability in connection with the performance of their duties. As a result, we may have difficulty
attracting and retaining qualified board members and executive officers, which could harm our business. If our efforts to comply with new
or changed laws, regulations and standards differ from the activities intended by regulatory or governing bodies, we could be subject to
liability under applicable laws or our reputation may be harmed.
Changes in the regulatory environment could adversely affect our business, financial condition or results of operations.
Our operations are subject to varying degrees of regulation by the FDA, other federal, state and local regulatory agencies and
legislative bodies. Adverse decisions or new or amended regulations or mandates adopted by any of these regulatory or legislative bodies
could negatively impact our operations by, among other things, causing unexpected or changed capital investments, lost revenues,
increased costs of doing business, and could limit our ability to engage in certain sales or marketing activities.
We depend on key personnel to manage our business effectively, and, if we are unable to hire, retain or motivate qualified personnel,
our ability to design, develop, market and sell our systems could be harmed.
Our future success depends, in part, on certain key employees, including William J. Caragol, our Chairman of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer and Lyle Probst, our President, and on our ability to attract and retain highly skilled personnel. The loss of the services
of any of our key personnel may seriously harm our business, financial condition and results of operations. In addition, the inability to
attract or retain qualified personnel, or delays in hiring required personnel, particularly operations, finance, accounting, sales and marketing
personnel, may also seriously harm our business, financial condition and results of operations. Our ability to attract and retain highly skilled
personnel will be a critical factor in determining whether we will be successful in the future.
We may be unable to make or successfully integrate acquisitions.
Our business and growth strategies depend in large part on our ability to identify and acquire suitable companies. Delays or
failures in acquiring new companies would materially and adversely affect our planned growth.
Strategic acquisitions, investments and alliances are intended to expand our ability to offer, high quality detection and diagnostic
products and services. If we are unsuccessful in our acquisitions, investments and alliances, we may be unable to grow our business
significantly or may record asset impairment charges in the future. The success of any acquisition, investment or alliance that we may
undertake in the future will depend on a number of factors, including:
●

our ability to identify suitable opportunities for acquisition, investment or alliance, if at all;

●

our ability to finance any future acquisition, investment or alliance on terms acceptable to us, if at all;

●

whether we are able to establish an acquisition, investment or alliance on terms that are satisfactory to us, if at all;

●

the strength of the other company’s underlying technology and ability to execute;

●

intellectual property and pending litigation related to these technologies;

●

regulatory approvals and reimbursement levels, if any, of the acquired products, if any; and

●

our ability to successfully integrate acquired companies and businesses with our existing business, including the ability to adequately
fund acquired in-process research and development projects.

Any potential future acquisitions we consummate will be dilutive, possibly substantially, to the equity ownership interests of our
shareholders since we intend to pay for such acquisitions by issuing shares of our common stock, and also may be dilutive to our earnings
per share, if any.
Our acquisition strategy may not have the desired result, and notwithstanding effecting numerous acquisitions, we still may be
unable to achieve profitability or, if profitability should be achieved, to sustain it.
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We will continue to incur the expenses of complying with public company reporting requirements.
We have an obligation to continue to comply with the applicable reporting requirements of the Exchange Act, which includes the
filing with the SEC of periodic reports, proxy statements and other documents relating to our business, financial conditions and other
matters, even though compliance with such reporting requirements is economically burdensome at this time.
Directors, executive officers, principal stockholders and affiliated entities own a significant percentage of our capital stock, and they
may make decisions that you do not consider to be in the best interests of our stockholders.
As of March 16, 2018, our current named directors and executive officers beneficially owned, in the aggregate, approximately
65.7% of our outstanding voting securities, including 28.3% owned by our Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. As a result,
if some, or all of them acted together, they would have the ability to exert substantial influence over the election of the Board and the
outcome of issues requiring approval by our stockholders. This concentration of ownership may also have the effect of delaying or
preventing a change in control of the Company that may be favored by other stockholders. This could prevent transactions in which
stockholders might otherwise recover a premium for their shares over current market prices.
The Company’s officers, directors and management hold preferred shares that give them voting control of the Company.
From September 30, 2013 through April 6, 2016, the Company issued 2,025 shares of Series I Preferred Stock to its officers,
directors and management as management and director compensation and payment of deferred obligations. Each of the Series I preferred is
convertible into the Company’s Common Stock, at stated value plus accrued dividends, at the closing bid price on the issuance date, any
time at the option of the holder and by the Company in the event that the Company’s closing stock price exceeds 400% of the conversion
price for twenty consecutive trading days. The Series I Preferred Stock had voting rights equivalent to twenty-five votes per common share
equivalent.
On July 25, 2016, the Board authorized a Certificate of Designations of Preferences, Rights and Limitations of Series II
Convertible Preferred Stock (the “Certificate”). The Certificate was filed with the State of Delaware Secretary of State on July 25, 2016.
The Series II Preferred ranks: (a) senior with respect to dividends and right of liquidation with the common stock; (b) pari passu with
respect to dividends and right of liquidation with the Company’s Series I Preferred and Series J Convertible Preferred Stock; and (c) junior
to all existing and future indebtedness of the Company. The Series II Preferred has a stated value per share of $1,000, subject to adjustment
as provided in the Certificate (the “Stated Value”), and a dividend rate of 6% per annum of the Stated Value. As with the Series I Preferred,
the Series II Preferred has 25 votes per common share equivalent. The Series II Preferred is subject to redemption (at Stated Value, plus
any accrued, but unpaid dividends (the “Liquidation Value”)) by the Company no later than three years after a Deemed Liquidation Event
(as defined in the Certificate) and at the Company’s option after one year from the issuance date of the Series II Preferred, subject to a tenday notice (to allow holder conversion). The Series II Preferred is convertible at the option of a holder or if the closing price of the
common stock exceeds 400% of the Conversion Price for a period of twenty consecutive trading days, at the option of the Company.
Conversion Price means a price per share of the common stock equal to 100% of the lowest daily volume weighted average price of the
common stock during the subsequent 12 months following the date the Series II Preferred was issued.
On August 11, 2016, the Board of PositiveID agreed to exchange 2,025 shares of its Series I Preferred, which have a stated
value of $2,025,000 and redemption value of $2,261,800 for 2,262 shares of Series II Preferred, which have a stated value of $2,262,000,
held by its directors, officers and management, namely, our CEO, acting CFO and Chairman, William J. Caragol, our President, Lyle L.
Probst, and our three non-employee directors, Jeffrey Cobb, Michael Krawitz, and Ned L. Siegel, as well as Allison Tomek, our Senior
Vice President of Corporate Development, and Kimothy Smith, the Chief Scientific Officer of ExcitePCR (the “Exchange”). The Series II
have an aggregate stated value equivalent to the redemption value of the Series I at the exchange date. Pursuant to the Exchange, each
existing holder of Series I Preferred exchanged their Series I Preferred shares for Series II Preferred shares having equivalent per share
stated value, maintaining the same voting rights as they had as holders of the Series I Preferred. Both the Series I Preferred and the Series II
Preferred have a stated value per share of $1,000, and a dividend rate of 6% per annum. All shares of Series I Preferred previously issued
have become null and void and any and all rights arising thereunder have been extinguished. The Series II Preferred is only forfeitable after
the exchange date up to January 1, 2019 upon termination for cause and is subject to acceleration in the event of conversion, redemption
and certain events.
On March 29, 2017, the Company, filed a Certificate of Elimination (the “Certificate of Elimination”) for its Series I Convertible
Preferred Stock (“Series I”) with the Delaware Secretary of State to eliminate from its Third Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation, as amended (the “Certificate of Incorporation”), all references to the Company’s Series I. No shares of the Series I were
issued or outstanding upon filing of the Certificate of Elimination.
On March 29, 2017, the Company filed an Amended Restated Certificate of Designations of Preferences, Rights and Limitations
of Series II Convertible Preferred Stock (the “Amended Certificate of Designation”). The Amended Certificate of Designation was filed to
increase the authorized shares of Series II Convertible Preferred Stock from 3,000 shares to 4,000 shares. No other terms were modified or
amended in the Amended Certificate of Designation.
On March 29, 2017, the Company issued shares of Series II Preferred as follows: (i) 50 shares of Series II Preferred were issued to
each of three independent board members as a component of their 2017 compensation (150 shares total); and (ii) 685 shares of Series II
Preferred were issued to the Company’s management as a component of their 2016 incentive compensation at a stated value of $1,000 per
share. These Series II Preferred shares are only forfeitable up to January 1, 2019 upon termination for cause and is subject to acceleration in
the event of conversion, redemption and certain events.
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As of March 16, 2018, there were 3,097 shares of Series II Preferred shares issued and outstanding as detailed below:

Name
William J. Caragol
Lyle Probst
Michael E. Krawitz
Jeffrey S. Cobb
Ned L. Siegel
Allison F. Tomek
Kimothy Smith
Caragol Family Irrevocable Trust
Kent Murray
Gary O’Hara
Total

Position
Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer
President
Director
Director
Director
SVP of Corporate
Development
Chief Scientific Officer,
ExcitePCR

Preferred Series II
Common Shares Issuable
Upon Conversion

Shares Issued

Former SVP Finance
Chief Technology Officer,
Thermomedics

Total Votes

1,327
706
219
204
176

190,947,859
150,272,781
35,150,403
34,167,913
32,333,933

4,773,696,469
3,756,819,524
878,760,082
854,197,837
808,348,313

266

59,034,924

1,475,873,088

55
59
75

3,602,463
3,864,460
36,121,527

90,061,565
96,611,497
903,038,182

10
3,097

4,816,204
550,312,467

120,405,091
13,757,811,648

As of March 16, 2018, per the above table, the Company’s named executive officers and directors had aggregate control of 65.7%
of the Company’s voting shares out of which Mr. Caragol had control of 28.3% of the Company ’s voting shares. Our officers, directors and
management (in addition to the five people who make up the Majority Stockholders, this includes Allison Tomek, our Senior Vice
President of Corporate Development, and Kimothy Smith, Chief Scientific Officer of ExcitePCR and Kent Murray, former Senior Vice
President of Finance) have an aggregate of 13,757,811,681 votes or 81.6% of the total vote, on any matter brought to a vote of the holders
of our common stock which includes 13,757,811,648 votes through the ownership of Series II Preferred Stock and 33 votes through the
ownership of shares of our common stock. As a result, our named officers, directors, and management have voting control over the
16,855,952,735 of the outstanding voting shares of the Company which includes votes through the ownership of Series II Preferred Stock
and ownership of outstanding common shares.
Our Board may, at any time, authorize the issuance of additional common or preferred stock without common stockholder
approval, subject only to the total number of authorized common and preferred shares set forth in our certificate of incorporation. The terms
of equity securities issued by us in future transactions may be more favorable to new investors, and may include dividend and/or liquidation
preferences, superior voting rights and the issuance of warrants or other derivative securities, which may have a further dilutive effect.
Since management has voting control over the Company, it also has the ability to approve any increase in the amount of authorized shares
of common or preferred stock thus, there are no limitations on management’s ability to continue to make dilutive issuances of securities.
Risks Related to Our Product Development Efforts
We anticipate future losses and will require additional financing, and our failure to obtain additional financing when needed could
force us to delay, reduce or eliminate our product development programs or commercialization efforts.
We anticipate future losses and therefore may be dependent on additional financing to execute our business plan. In particular, we
will require additional capital to continue to conduct the research and development and obtain regulatory clearances and approvals
necessary to bring our products to market and to establish effective marketing and sales capabilities for existing and future products. Our
operating plan may change, and we may need additional funds sooner than anticipated to meet our operational needs and capital
requirements for product development, clinical trials and commercialization. Additional funds may not be available when we need them on
terms that are acceptable to us, or at all. If adequate funds are not available on a timely basis, we may terminate or delay the development
of one or more of our products, or delay establishment of sales and marketing capabilities or other activities necessary to commercialize our
products.
Our future capital requirements will depend on many factors, including: the research and development of our molecular diagnostic
products, the costs of expanding sales and marketing infrastructure and manufacturing operations; the number and types of future products
we develop and commercialize; the costs, timing and outcomes of regulatory reviews associated with our current and future product
candidates; the costs of preparing, filing and prosecuting patent applications and maintaining, enforcing and defending intellectual propertyrelated claims; and the extent and scope of our general and administrative expenses.
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Our industry changes rapidly as a result of technological and product developments, which may quickly render our product candidates
less desirable or even obsolete. If we are unable or unsuccessful in supplementing our product offerings, our revenue and operating
results may be materially adversely affected.
The industry in which we operate is subject to rapid technological change. The introduction of new technologies in the market,
including the delay in the adoption of these technologies, as well as new alternatives for the delivery of products and services will continue
to have a profound effect on competitive conditions in this market. We may not be able to develop and introduce new products, services and
enhancements that respond to technological changes on a timely basis. If our product candidates are not accepted by the market as
anticipated, if at all, our business, operating results, and financial condition may be materially and adversely affected.
Industry and Business Risks Related to E-N-G Mobile Systems, Inc.
We expect a number of factors to cause our operating results to fluctuate on a quarterly and annual basis, which may make it difficult
to predict our future performance.
Our revenues and operating results could vary significantly from quarter to quarter and year-to-year because of a variety of factors,
many of which are outside of our control. As a result, comparing our operating results on a period-to-period basis may not be meaningful.
In addition to other risk factors discussed in this section, factors that may contribute to the variability of our quarterly and annual results
include:
● our ability to accurately forecast revenues and appropriately plan our expenses;
● the impact of worldwide economic conditions, including the resulting effect on consumer spending;
● our ability to maintain an adequate rate of growth;
● our ability to effectively manage our growth;
● our ability to attract new customers;
● our ability to successfully enter new markets and manage our expansion;
● the effects of increased competition in our business;
● our ability to keep pace with changes in technology and our competitors;
● our ability to successfully manage any future acquisitions of businesses, solutions or technologies;
● the success of our marketing efforts;
● interruptions in service and any related impact on our reputation;
● the attraction and retention of qualified employees and key personnel;
● our ability to protect our intellectual property;
● costs associated with defending intellectual property infringement and other claims;
● the effects of natural or man-made catastrophic events;
● the effectiveness of our internal controls; and
● changes in government regulation affecting our business.
As a result of these and other factors, the results of any prior quarterly or annual periods should not be relied upon as indications of
our future operating performance, and any unfavorable changes in these or other factors could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of operation.
We may face strong competition from larger, established companies.
We likely will face intense competition from other companies that provide the same or similar custom specialty vehicle
manufacturing and other services that compete with acquired businesses, virtually all of which can be expected to have longer operating
histories, greater name recognition, larger installed customer bases and significantly more financial resources, R&D facilities and
manufacturing and marketing experience than we have. There can be no assurance that developments by our potential competitors will not
render our existing and future products or services obsolete. In addition, we expect to face competition from new entrants into the custom
specialty vehicle business. As the demand for products and services grows and new markets are exploited, we expect that competition will
become more intense, as current and future competitors begin to offer an increasing number of diversified products and services. We may
not have sufficient resources to maintain our research and development, marketing, sales and customer support efforts on a competitive
basis. Additionally, we may not be able to make the technological advances necessary to maintain a competitive advantage with respect to
our products and services. Increased competition could result in price reductions, fewer product orders, obsolete technology and reduced
operating margins, any of which could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.
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Growth may place significant demands on our management and our infrastructure.
We plan for substantial growth in our business, and this growth would place significant demands on our management and our
operational and financial infrastructure. If our operations grow in size, scope and complexity, we will need to improve and upgrade our
systems and infrastructure to meet customer demand. The expansion of our systems and infrastructure will require us to commit substantial
financial, operational and technical resources in advance of an increase in the volume of business, with no assurance that the volume of
business will increase. Continued growth could also strain our ability to maintain reliable service levels for our customers and meet their
expected delivery schedules, develop and improve our operational, financial and management controls, enhance our reporting systems and
procedures and recruit, train and retain highly skilled personnel.
Managing our growth will require significant expenditures and allocation of valuable management resources. If we fail to achieve
the necessary level of efficiency in our organization as it grows, our business, operating results and financial condition would be harmed.
Industry and Business Risks Related to Thermomedics, Inc.
Cost and quality issues might arise from our dependence on a third-party, sole source manufacturer.
We currently buy our products from one third-party, sole source supplier who produces our products in its plant in Taiwan.
Although we have the right to engage other manufacturers, we have not done so. Accordingly, our reliance on this supplier involves certain
risks, including:
● The cost of our products might increase, for reasons such as inflation and increases in the price of the precious metals, if any, or other
internal parts used to make them, which could cause our cost of goods to increase and reduce our gross margin and profitability if any;
and
● Poor quality could adversely affect the reliability and reputation of our products.
Any of these uncertainties also could adversely affect our business reputation and otherwise impair our profitability and ability to
compete.
We may not be able to compete effectively.
Our competition includes Welch Allyn, Braun and Exergen, all of which market a line or lines of thermometers. Each competitor
has national distribution and a longer operating history than we do; and these brands have greater brand name recognition and significantly
greater financial, technical sales, marketing, distribution and research and development resources. We may be unable to compete
successfully against this competition.
Our research and development may be unsuccessful; our next generation products may not be developed, or if developed may fail to
win commercial acceptance.
Our business is characterized by extensive research and development, and rapid technological change. Developments by other
companies of new or improved products or technologies, especially of thermometers for use by consumers on pet dogs may make our
products or proposed products obsolete or less competitive and may negatively impact our net sales. We should, subject to having adequate
financial resources (which we currently do not possess), devote continued efforts and financial resources to develop or acquire scientifically
advanced technologies, apply our technologies cost-effectively across our product lines and markets and, attract and retain skilled electrical
engineering and other development personnel. If we fail to develop new products or enhance existing products, it would have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
In order to develop new products and improve current product offerings, we are focusing our research and development programs
largely on the development of next-generation models intended for the professional health care markets, principally with greater accuracy
than our current models. If we are unable to develop, launch these products as anticipated, and have them accepted commercially, our
ability to expand our market position may be materially adversely impacted. Further, we are investigating opportunities to further expand
our presence in, and diversify into, medical treatment technologies and other medical devices. Expanding our focus beyond our current
business would be expensive and time-consuming. There can be no assurance that we will be able to do so on terms favorable to us, or that
these opportunities will achieve commercial feasibility, obtain regulatory approval or gain market acceptance. A delay in the development
or approval of these technologies or our decision to reduce our investments my adversely impact the contribution of these technologies to
our future growth.
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Product shortages may arise if our contract manufacturer fails to comply with government regulations.
Medical device manufacturers are required to register with the FDA and are subject to periodic inspection by the FDA for
compliance with its Qualify System Regulation requirements, which require manufacturers of medical devices to adhere to certain
regulations, including testing, quality control and documentation procedures. In addition, the Federal Medical Device Reporting regulations
require a manufacturer to provide information to the FDA whenever there is evidence that reasonably suggests that a device may have
caused or contributed to a death or serious injury or, if a malfunction were to occur, could cause or contribute to a death or serious injury.
Compliance with applicable regulatory requirements is subject to continual review and is monitored rigorously through period inspections
by the FDA. Our manufacturer and supplier is International Standards Organization (“ISO”) certified, but if it were to fail to adhere to
quality system regulations or ISO requirements, this could delay production of our products and lead to fines, difficulties in obtaining
regulatory clearances, recalls, enforcement actions, including injunctive relief or consent decrees, or other consequences, which could, in
turn, have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.
Our medical devices may not meet government regulations.
Our products and development activities are subject to regulation by the FDA pursuant to the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic
Act (“FDC Act”), and, if we should sell our products abroad, by comparable agencies in foreign countries, and by other regulatory agencies
and governing bodies. Under the FDC Act, medical devices must receive FDA clearance or approval before they can be commercially
marketed in the U.S. The FDA is reviewing its clearance process in an effort to make it more rigorous, which may require additional
clinical data, if any, time and effort for product clearance. In addition, most major markets for medical devices outside the U.S. require
clearance, approval or compliance with certain standards before a product can be commercially marketed. The process of obtaining
marketing approval or clearance from the FDA for new products, or with respect to enhancements or modifications to existing products,
could:
● Take a significant period of time;
● Require the expenditure of substantial resources;
● Involve rigorous pre-clinical and clinical testing, as well as increased post-market surveillance;
● Require changes to products; and
● Result in limitations on the indicated uses of products.
Countries around the world have adopted more stringent regulatory requirements that have added or are expected to add to the
delays and uncertainties associated with new product releases, as well as the clinical, if any, and regulatory costs of supporting those
releases. Even after products have received marketing approval or clearance, product approvals and clearances by the FDA can be
withdrawn due to failure to comply with regulatory standards or the occurrence unforeseen problems following initial approval. There can
be no assurance that we will receive the required clearances for new products or modifications to existing products on a timely basis or that
any approval will not be subsequently withdrawn or conditioned upon extensive post-market study requirements.
In addition, regulations regarding the development, manufacture and sale of medical devices are subject to future change. We
cannot predict what impact, if any, those changes might have on our business. Failure to comply with regulatory requirements could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. Later discovery of previously unknown problems with
a product could result in fines, delays or suspensions of regulatory clearances, seizures or recalls of products, physician advisories or other
field actions, operating restrictions and/or criminal prosecution. We also may initiate field actions as a result of our manufacturer’s failure
to strictly comply with our internal quality policies. The failure to receive product approval clearance on a timely basis, suspensions of
regulatory clearances, seizures or recalls of products, physician advisories or other field actions, or the withdrawal of product approval by
the FDA, could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
We may not be able to protect our intellectual property.
The medical device market in which we primarily participate is largely technology driven. Consumers historicaly move quickly to
new products and new technologies. As a result, intellectual property rights, particularly patents and trade secrets, play a significant role in
product development and differentiation. However, intellectual property litigation is inherently complex and unpredictable. Furthermore,
appellate courts can overturn lower court patent decisions.
We face intellectual property risks that may negatively affect our brand names, reputation, revenues, and potential profitability.
In our second-generation products we will be depending upon a variety of methods and techniques that we regard as proprietary
trade secrets. We are also dependent upon a variety of trademarks and designs to promote brand name development and recognition, and we
rely on a combination of trade secrets, patents, trademarks, and unfair competition and other intellectual property laws to protect our rights
to such intellectual property. However, to the extent that our products violate the proprietary right of others we may be subject to damage
awards or judgments prohibiting the use of our intellectual property. See Item 3, “Legal Proceedings,” for a description of a pending legal
proceeding seeking to invalidate one of our design patents. In addition, our rights in our intellectual property, even if registered, may not be
enforceable against any prior users of similar intellectual property. Furthermore, if we lose or fail to enforce any of our proprietary rights,
our brand names, reputation, revenues and potential profitability may be negatively affected.
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In addition, competing parties frequently file multiple suits to leverage patent portfolios across product lines, technologies and
geographies and to balance risk and exposure between the parties. In some cases, several competitors may be parties in the same
proceeding, or in a series of related proceedings, or litigate multiple features of a single class of devices. These forces frequently drive
settlement not only of individual cases, but also of a series of pending and potentially related and unrelated cases. In addition, although
monetary and injunctive relief is typically sought, remedies and restitution are generally not determined until the conclusion of the trial
court proceeding and can be modified on appeal. Accordingly, the outcomes of individual cases are difficult to time, predict or quantify and
are often dependent upon the outcomes of other cases in other geographies.
Patents and other proprietary rights are and will continue to be essential to our business, and our ability to compete effectively with
other companies will be dependent upon the proprietary nature of our technologies. We rely upon trade secrets, know-how and continuing
technological innovations to develop, maintain and strengthen our competitive position. We pursue a policy of generally seeking patent
protection in the U.S. for patentable design or subject matter in our devices and attempt to review third-party patents and patent applications
to the extent publicly available in order to develop an effective patent strategy, avoid infringement of third-party patents, identify licensing
opportunities and monitor the patent claims of others. We own three U.S. design patents and have one U.S. utility patent application
pending. We are not a party to any license agreements pursuant to which patent rights have been obtained or granted in consideration for
cash, cross-licensing rights or royalty payments. No assurance can be made that any pending or future patent application will result in the
issuance of patents, or that any future patents issued to, or licensed by, us will not be challenged or circumvented by our competitors. In
addition, we may have to take legal action in the future to protect our patents, if any, trade secrets or know-how or to assert them against
claimed infringement by others. Any legal action of that type could be costly and time consuming, and no assurances can be given that any
lawsuit will be successful.
The invalidation of key patent or proprietary rights that we may own, or an unsuccessful outcome in lawsuits to protect our
intellectual property, could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial position and results in operations.
Our trademarks are valuable, and any inability to protect them could reduce the value of our products and brands.
Our trademarks, trade secrets, and other intellectual property rights are important assets for us. Our trademarks “Thermomedics,”
“Babytemp,” “Temp4sure,” Tempmature,” “Elitemp”, “Caregiver”, and “TouchFree” are registered with the U.S. Patent and Trademark
Office. Protecting these intellectual property rights could be costly and time consuming, and any unauthorized use of our intellectual
property could make it more expensive for us to do business and which also could harm our operating results.
Product warranties and product liabilities could be costly.
We typically warrant the workmanship and materials used in the products we sell. Failure of the products to operate properly or to
meet specifications may increase our costs by requiring replacement or monetary reimbursement to the end user. To the extent we are
unable to make a corresponding warranty claim against the manufacturer of the defective product, we would bear the loss associated with
such warranties. In the ordinary course of our business, we may be subject to product liability claims alleging that products we sold failed
or had adverse effects. We maintain liability insurance at a level which we believe to be adequate. A successful claim in excess of the
policy limits of the liability insurance could materially adversely affect our business. There can be no assurance, however, that recourse
against a manufacturer would be successful, or that our manufacturer maintains adequate insurance or otherwise would be able to pay such
liability.
Industry and Business Risks Related to Our Legacy Healthcare Businesses
The sale and license of our legacy healthcare products may not produce royalty streams.
In 2013, we licensed the assets related to our iglucose™ technology to Smart Glucose Meter and in 2015 we licensed our breath
glucose detection system and its underlying patent, which was granted in 2014. Pursuant to these agreements, we are due royalties based on
future product sales, if any. The Company has been informed that the iglucose™ has received FDA 501(k) clearance, and that commercial
sales are expected to begin in 2018. Should these businesses not generate significant revenues, we will not achieve royalty streams from
these sales and licenses.
Implantation of our implantable microchip may be found to cause risks to a person’s health, which could adversely affect sales of our
systems that incorporate the implantable microchip.
The implantation of the VeriChip, which we sold to VeriTeQ, may be found, or be perceived, to cause risks to a person’s health.
Potential or perceived risks include adverse tissue reactions, migration of the microchip and infection from implantation. There have been
articles published asserting, despite numerous studies to the contrary, that the implanted microchip causes malignant tumor formation in
laboratory animals. If more people are implanted with our implantable microchip, it is possible that these and other risks to health will
manifest themselves. Actual or perceived risks to a person’s health associated with the microchip implantation process could result in
negative publicity and could damage our business reputation, leading to loss in sales of our other systems targeted at the healthcare market
which would harm our business and negatively affect our prospects.
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In connection with its acquisition of the VeriChip business, VeriTeQ agreed to indemnify us for any liabilities relating to the
implantable microchip. Further, we are aware that VeriTeQ has sold the assets of the business to an unaffiliated third party who is using it
as an identification device inside of a cosmetic implant, which does not involve direct in vivo use in people. If VeriTeQ or the buyer of the
assets is unable to fulfill indemnity obligations, we could be responsible for payment of such liabilities, which could have a material
adverse impact on our financial condition.
Risks Related to Our Common Stock
Future sales of our common stock may depress the market price of our common stock and cause stockholders to experience dilution.
The market price of our common stock could decline as a result of sales of substantial amounts of our common stock in the public
market, including shares issuable on the conversion of convertible notes payable. We may seek additional capital through one or more
additional equity or convertible debt transactions in 2018; however, such transactions will be subject to market conditions and there can be
no assurance any such transaction will be completed.
Current stockholders may experience dilution of their ownership interests because of the future issuance of additional shares of our
common stock issued pursuant to convertible preferred stock and debt instruments.
In the future, we may issue our authorized but previously unissued equity securities, resulting in the dilution of the ownership
interests of our present stockholders and the purchasers of our common stock offered hereby. We are currently authorized to issue an
aggregate of 20,000,000,000 shares of capital stock consisting of 19,995,000,000 shares of common stock and 5,000,000 shares of
preferred stock with preferences and rights to be determined by our Board. As of March 16, 2018, there are 3,098,141,085 shares of our
common stock, 3,097 of our Series II preferred stock and 71 of our Series J preferred stock outstanding. There are 1,203 shares of our
common stock reserved for issuance pursuant to stock option agreements. We also have 883 shares of our common stock issuable upon the
exercise of outstanding warrants. We also have convertible notes with approximate principal and accrued interest balances of $5,895,683 as
of March 16, 2018. The notes are convertible into common stock, in the future, at prices determined at the time of conversion and the
Series II and Series J are convertible at a fixed conversion price as determined in the respective agreements. The Series II and Series J and
convertible notes would convert into shares of common stock on March 16, 2018, as follows:
Principal/
Liquidation
Value
Series II (1)
Series J (2)
Convertible Notes (3)

$

$

3,377,145
71,000
5,895,683
9,343,828

At Current
Market
550,855,463
55,469
94,080,766,028
94,631,676,960

Common Share Conversion
At 25%
At 50%
Discount
Discount
550,855,463
55,469
78,609,112,821
79,160,023,753

550,855,463
55,469
117,913,669,232
118,464,580,164

At 75%
Discount
550,855,463
55,469
235,827,338,464
236,378,249,396

(1) Represents liquidation value, including accrued dividends, on (i) 2,262 shares of Series II, converted at $0.0168; and (ii) 835 shares
of Series II converted at $0.0022, which are fixed conversion prices.
(2) Represents liquidation value on 71 shares of Series J converted at a fixed conversion price of $1.28.
(3) The convertible notes are convertible into common stock of the company at prices determined, in the future, at the time of
conversion, at discounts of between 25% and 40% of the market price or at the lesser of a fixed amount or discount to market. This
table includes common shares conversions at the closing bid price of $0.0001 on March 16, 2018, and at discounts of 25%, 50% and
75% from the closing bid price on March 16, 2018.
Any future issuance of our equity or equity-backed securities may dilute then-current stockholders’ ownership percentages and
could also result in a decrease in the fair market value of our equity securities, because our assets would be owned by a larger pool of
outstanding equity. As described above, we may need to raise additional capital through public or private offerings of our common or
preferred stock or other securities that are convertible into or exercisable for our common or preferred stock. We may also issue such
securities in connection with hiring or retaining employees and consultants (including stock options issued under our equity incentive
plans), as payment to providers of goods and services, in connection with future acquisitions or for other business purposes. Our Board may
at any time authorize the issuance of additional common or preferred stock without common stockholder approval, subject only to the total
number of authorized common and preferred shares set forth in our certificate of incorporation. The terms of equity securities issued by us
in future transactions may be more favorable to new investors, and may include dividend and/or liquidation preferences, superior voting
rights and the issuance of warrants or other derivative securities, which may have a further dilutive effect. Also, the future issuance of any
such additional shares of common or preferred stock or other securities may create downward pressure on the trading price of the common
stock. There can be no assurance that any such future issuances will not be at a price (or exercise prices) below the price at which shares of
the common stock are then traded.
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We do not anticipate declaring any cash dividends on our common stock.
Any future determination with respect to the payment of dividends will be at the discretion of the Board and will be dependent
upon our financial condition, results of operations, capital requirements, general business conditions, terms of financing arrangements and
other factors that our Board may deem relevant. In addition, our Certificates of Designation for shares of Series I, Series II and Series J
Preferred Stock prohibit the payment of cash dividends on our common stock while any such shares of preferred stock are outstanding.
Our shares may be defined as “penny stock,” the rules imposed on the sale of the shares may affect your ability to resell any shares you
may purchase, if at all.
Shares of our common stock may be defined as a “penny stock” under the Exchange Act, and rules of the SEC. The Exchange Act
and such penny stock rules generally impose additional sales practice and disclosure requirements on broker-dealers who sell our securities
to persons other than certain accredited investors who are, generally, institutions with assets in excess of $5,000,000 or individuals with net
worth in excess of $1,000,000 or annual income exceeding $200,000, or $300,000 jointly with spouse, or in transactions not recommended
by the broker-dealer. For transactions covered by the penny stock rules, a broker-dealer must make a suitability determination for each
purchaser and receive the purchaser’s written agreement prior to the sale. In addition, the broker-dealer must make certain mandated
disclosures in penny stock transactions, including the actual sale or purchase price and actual bid and offer quotations, the compensation to
be received by the broker-dealer and certain associated persons, and deliver certain disclosures required by the SEC. Consequently, the
penny stock rules may affect the ability of broker-dealers to make a market in or trade our common stock and may also affect your ability to
resell any shares you may purchase in this offering in the public markets.
The success and timing of development efforts, clinical trials, regulatory approvals, product introductions, collaboration and licensing
arrangements, any termination of development efforts and other material events could cause volatility in our stock price.
Since our common stock is thinly traded, its trading price is likely to be highly volatile and could be subject to extreme
fluctuations in response to various factors, many of which are beyond our control, including (but not necessarily limited to):
● success or lack of success in being awarded research and development contracts with U.S. Government agencies, related to our
FireflyDX product, or otherwise;
● success or lack of success being granted patents for its core biological diagnostic and detection technologies;
● introduction of competitive products into the market;
● receipt of payments of any royalty payments under the sale and licensing agreements related to our legacy healthcare products;
● unfavorable publicity regarding us or our products;
● termination of development efforts of any product under development or any development or collaboration agreement.
In addition, the securities markets have from time to time experienced significant price and volume fluctuations that are unrelated
to the operating performance of particular companies. These market fluctuations may also significantly affect the market price of our
common stock.
Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
Item 2. Properties
Our corporate headquarters is located in Delray Beach, Florida, where we occupy approximately 3,000 square feet of office
space, under a non-cancelable operating lease that expires on October 18, 2018. We also have operations in Pleasanton, California, where
we lease approximately 6,250 square feet of laboratory and office space under a non-cancelable operating lease that expires on September
30, 2018. Additionally, we have operations in Concord, California, where we lease 12,000 square feet of office and plant space on a monthto-month basis.
Item 3. Legal Proceedings
The Company is a party to certain legal actions, as either plaintiff or defendant, arising in the ordinary course of business, with
the exception of the LG Capital litigation described below, none of which had or is expected to have a material adverse effect on its
business, financial condition or results of operations. However, litigation is inherently unpredictable, and the costs and other effects of
pending or future litigation, governmental investigations, legal and administrative cases and proceedings, whether civil or criminal,
settlements, judgments and investigations, claims or charges in any such matters, and developments or assertions by or against the
Company relating to it or to its intellectual property rights and intellectual property licenses could have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s business, financial condition and operating results.
LG Capital Funding Litigation
On March 7, 2017, LG Capital Funding, LLC (“LG”), filed a complaint in the U.S. District Court of the Eastern District of New
York (the “Court”), related to a 10% Convertible Redeemable Note issued by us to LG on July 7, 2016 in the amount of $66,150 (the “LG
Note”). The LG Note provides that LG is entitled to convert all or any amount of the outstanding balance and accrued interest of the LG
Note into shares of our Common Stock. The complaint alleges breach of contract and anticipatory breach of contract, asserting, among
other things, that we failed to deliver shares of stock to LG pursuant to a notice of conversion, and failed to reserve a sufficient number of
shares of stock issuable under the terms of the LG Note. On July 12, 2017, the Court denied LG’s motion for Order to Show Cause and
Request for an Injunction. The Company will continue to answer and defend against this complaint. Under ASC 450, the Company has
determined that it is reasonably possible but not probable that the outcome of the litigation might be unfavorable. Based on the Company’s

analysis of the outcome of the litigation, the range of potential outcomes are between $0 and $250,000. As such, the Company has recorded
a loss contingency it believes reflects the most likely outcome of the litigation.
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable.
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PART II
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS, AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
Our common stock is quoted on the OTC Pink marketplace under the symbol “PSID.” On March 16, 2018, the last reported bid
price of our common stock was $0.0001 per share. The following table presents the high and low bid price for our common stock for the
periods indicated:
Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2017
Quarter ended December 31, 2017
Quarter ended September 30, 2017
Quarter ended June 30, 2017
Quarter ended March 31, 2017

$
$
$
$

High

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2016
Quarter ended December 31, 2016
Quarter ended September 30, 2016
Quarter ended June 30, 2016
Quarter ended March 31, 2016

$
$
$
$

0.023
0.047
0.90
3.00

$
$
$
$

87.00
1,035.00
2,835.00
3,375.00

$
$
$
$

High

Low
0.0018
0.0096
0.022
0.30
Low
1.48
60.00
553.50
1,650.00

Holders
According to the records of our transfer agent, as of March 16, 2018, there were approximately 85 holders of record of our
common stock, which number does not reflect beneficial stockholders who hold their stock in nominee or “street” name through various
brokerage firms.
Dividend Policy
Any future determination with respect to the payment of dividends on our common stock will be at the discretion of our Board
and will be dependent upon our financial condition, results of operations, capital requirements, general business conditions, terms of
financing arrangements and other factors that our Board may deem relevant.
Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
Except for provided below, all unregistered sales of our securities during the year ended December 31, 2017, were previously
disclosed in a Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q or a Current Report on Form 8-K.
1.

During the quarter ended December 31, 2017, we issued approximately 85.5 million shares of our common stock to a lender in
connection with the conversion of promissory notes. The notes were converted at an average price per share of $0.0031.

2.

During the quarter ended December 31, 2017, we issued approximately 62.5 million shares of our common stock to a second lender
in connection with the conversion of promissory notes. The notes were converted at an average price per share of $0.0025.

3.

During the quarter ended December 31, 2017, we issued approximately 48.8 million shares of our common stock to a third lender in
connection with the conversion of promissory notes. The notes were converted at an average price per share of $0.0030.

4.

During the quarter ended December 31, 2017, we issued approximately 1.5 million shares of our common stock to a fourth lender in
connection with the conversion of promissory notes. The notes were converted at an average price per share of $0.0046.

5.

During the quarter ended December 31, 2017, we issued approximately 79.9 million shares of our common stock to a fifth lender in
connection with the conversion of promissory notes. The notes were converted at an average price per share of $0.0029.

The shares amounts and beneficial ownership listed in this Annual Report are as of March 16, 2018. The Company, however,
during the quarter ended March 31, 2018, issued a total of approximately 4.9 billion shares of common stock for the conversion of notes
with a principal value of approximately $1.0 million.
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We made the foregoing stock issuances in reliance upon the exemption from registration under Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended.
Item 6. Selected Financial Data
As a “Smaller Reporting Company,” we are not required to provide the information required by this item.
Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with
our audited annual financial statements and the notes to those financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10K.
Overview
PositiveID is a life sciences and technology company focused primarily on the healthcare and homeland security markets.
PositiveID is currently developing the FireflyDX family of products, which are automated, point-of-care pathogen detection
systems for rapid diagnostics. PositiveID has a substantial portfolio of intellectual property related primarily to sample preparation and
rapid medical testing applications.
On December 4, 2015, the Company entered into a stock purchase agreement and a control agreement giving it complete
operational control of Thermomedics. and its FDA-cleared Caregiver® product. Caregiver® is a clinical grade, infrared thermometer for
measurement of forehead temperature in adults, children, and infants, without contact. It delivers an oral-equivalent temperature directly
from the forehead in 1-2 seconds. Since there is no skin contact and Caregiver® does not require probe cover supplies, it reduces the risk of
cross-contamination, which is an increasing concern, and saves healthcare facilities the cost of covers. The results of the Caregiver®
business are included in the Medical Devices segment. The Company closed the stock purchase agreement and completed the acquisition
of the capital stock of Thermomedics on August 25, 2016.
On December 24, 2015, the Company acquired ENG, a leader in mobile labs, homeland security and communications vehicles.
The fastest growing aspect of ENG’s business over the last decade has been its mobile labs segment, which includes chemical, biological,
nuclear, radiological and explosives testing in the field. ENG designs and builds these labs to customer specification in its facilities in
Concord, California. The results of ENG are included in the Mobile Labs Segment.
On June 12, 2017, the Company sold 49.8% ownership of ENG, to a strategic investor. Accordingly, the Company is presenting
noncontrolling interests as a component of equity on its consolidated balance sheets under the heading “Non-controlling interest in
consolidated subsidiary” and reports noncontrolling interest net income or loss under the heading “Net (income) loss allocated to
noncontrolling interest in consolidated subsidiary” in the consolidated statements of operations based on its 50.2% ownership.
On August 24, 2017, the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary PositiveID Diagnostics, Inc. (collectively, the “Seller”),
entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement (“APA”) with ExcitePCR Corporation (“ExcitePCR”). Pursuant to the APA, at closing, the
Seller will sell and deliver to ExcitePCR all right, title and interest in all assets used or useful in connection with the operation of the
FireflyDX technology, which consists of the FireflyDX intellectual property and that of its predecessor, the Dragonfly Dx technology and
products, along with patents, the applicable know how used in the development of the FireflyDX and Dragonfly Dx technology, and
breadboard prototypes of both products (the “Firefly Technology”). The consideration to be paid by ExcitePCR to the Seller pursuant to the
APA, will be 10,500,000 shares of common stock of ExcitePCR, and the Company will own approximately 91% of ExcitePCR postclosing of the sale (prior to any financing). As a condition to the Seller’s obligation to close the transaction, ExcitePCR shall have
completed a financing transaction with net proceeds to ExcitePCR of at least $3 million. Additional conditions and deliverables at closing
include a patent assignment agreement, accounting services agreement, license agreement, and certain required consents from third parties.
As of December 31, 2017, ExcitePCR and the Company had not yet closed the transaction.
The Company believes that the Firefly Technology has significant potential value to stockholders. The parties have entered into
the APA so ExcitePCR can secure financing and then independently pursue the development, improvement and commercialization of the
Firefly Technology. The current stockholders of ExcitePCR (in addition to the Company which is the majority holder) include two thirdparty individuals, who are working with ExcitePCR to develop and execute the business plan of ExcitePCR. Lyle L. Probst (the Company’s
President) is the Chief Executive Officer of ExcitePCR, and William J. Caragol (the Company’s Chairman and CEO), is the Chairman of
ExcitePCR.
On January 30, 2018, ENG, in order to raise working capital, sold additional ownership of ENG to the strategic investor and as a
result of this transaction, the Company’s equity interest in ENG has decreased to 24%. At December 31, 2017 the Company owned 50.2%
of ENG and controlled ENG’s assets. These assets represented between 50% and 55% of the Company’s overall assets. As a result of the
decreased ownership, as of January 30, 2018, the Company no longer controls ENG’s operations which will result in the deconsolidation of
ENG in 2018. The operations and assets of ENG represent a significant amount of the Company’s assets. The Company will prospectively
deconsolidate the balance sheet, results of operations and cash flows of ENG in its consolidated financial statements.
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Results of Operations
The Company operates in three segments: Molecular Diagnostics, Medical Devices, and Mobile Labs.
Year Ended December 31, 2017 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2016
The following is the selected segment data for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 (in thousands).

Revenue
Cost of revenue

Year Ended December 31, 2017
Medical
Mobile
Devices
Labs
Corporate
$
411
$
4,806
$
—
98
3,377
—

Molecular
Diagnostics
$
142
39

$

Total
5,359
3,514

Gross profit

103

313

1,429

—

1,845

Selling, general and administrative
Research and development
Impairment of goodwill and intangible asset

529
313
—

453
198
—

1,834
—
342

3,021
—
—

5,837
511
342

Total operating expenses
Operating (loss)

$

Revenue
Cost of revenue

Molecular
Diagnostics
$
115
8

842
(739)

$

651
(338)

$

2,176
(747)

$

3,021
(3,021)

Year Ended December 31, 2016
Medical
Mobile
Devices
Labs
Corporate
$
417
$
5,027
$
—
109
3,420
—

$

$

6,690
(4,845)

Total
5,559
3,537

Gross profit

107

308

1,607

—

2,022

Selling, general and administrative
Research and development

651
284

614
156

1,864
—

5,600
—

8,729
440

935
(828)

770
(462)

1,864
(257)

5,600
(5,600)

9,169
(7,147)

Total operating expenses
Operating (loss)

$

$

$

$

$

Revenue
Revenue decreased by 3% from $5.6 million to $5.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2017, respectively. The
majority of the Company’s revenues in 2016 and 2017 were generated from its Mobile Labs segment. Such revenue is recorded at the
completion and delivery of mobile lab and telecommunications vehicles. As individual projects may be material, revenues from quarter to
quarter can vary materially based on the timing of such deliveries. The decrease in revenue was primarily attributable to several large 2015
sales that were completed, delivered and booked 2016. Management believes that this decrease is not a recurring trend, but rather a
temporary decrease, as the customer satisfaction, and pipeline of new business remain healthy. However, such revenues from the Mobile
Labs segment will not be presented as such due to the January 2018 deconsolidation and resulting accounting under the equity method.
Cost of Revenue and Gross Profit
Cost of revenue consists of inventory cost and compensation expense for employees and consultants working directly on the
Company’s revenue producing products and agreements. Cost of revenue was $3.5 million and $3.5 million for years ended December 31,
2016 and 2017, respectively. Gross profit decreased from $2.0 million to $1.9 million during the year ended December 31, 2016 and 2017,
respectively. As individual projects may be material, revenues from quarter to quarter can vary materially based on the timing of such
deliveries which resulted in the decrease in gross profit as the result of lower revenues in the first half of 2017, as discussed above.
Selling, General and Administrative Expense
Selling, general and administrative expense consists primarily of compensation for employees in executive, sales, marketing and
operational functions, including finance and accounting and corporate development. Included in selling, general and administrative expense
is all non-cash, equity-based compensation. Other significant costs include depreciation and amortization, professional fees for accounting
and legal services, consulting fees and facilities costs.
25

Selling, general and administrative expense decreased by $2.9 million, or 33%, for the year ended December 31, 2017 compared
to the year ended December 31, 2016. This decreased was primarily driven by a decrease in stock-based compensation expense. In 2016,
approximately $2.0 million, a one-time non-cash expense, was charged to stock-based expense in connection with the exchange of Series I
Preferred shares to Series II preferred shares.
Research and Development
Our research and development expense consist primarily of labor (both internal and contract) and materials costs associated with
various development projects, including testing, developing prototypes and related expenses. Our research and development costs include
payments to our development partners and acquisition of in process research and development. We seek to structure our research and
development on a project basis to allow the management of costs and results on a discrete short-term project basis. This may result in
quarterly expenses that rise and fall depending on the underlying project status. We expect this method of managing projects to allow us to
minimize our firm fixed commitments at any given point in time.
Research and development expense increased by approximately $71,000 or 16%, from $440,000 to $511,000, for the year ended
December 31, 2016 compared to the year ended December 31, 2017. The increase was primarily attributable to the increase in labor, and
engineering costs related to the development of the Bluetooth capable Caregiver product.
Impairment of goodwill and intangible asset
In assessing potential impairment of the recorded intangible assets and goodwill, we performed discounted cash flow analyses and
comparable assets analyses on a per segment basis and we also performed our annual impairment test of goodwill on December 31, 2017.
As a result of our analysis, which included the information available in January 2018, resulting in the dilution of the Company’s interest in
ENG, we have concluded based on information currently available, the carrying value of the ENG intangible asset and goodwill were
impaired.
An aggregate amount of $342,327, representing the full impairment of ENG goodwill and intangible assets, was charged to
impairment expense for the year ended December 31, 2017.
Change in Fair Value of Embedded Conversion Option Liability
The change in fair value of embedded conversion option liability changed from income of $1.6 million in 2016 to expense of $0.3
million in 2017 for a difference of approximately $1.9 million or 118%. The change was primarily attributed to the revaluation of the
embedded conversion option liability from December 31, 2016 to December 31, 2017. This is a non-cash income/expense item.
Interest Expense and Other Income(Expense)(net)
Interest expense decreased by approximately $3.9 million or 51%, for the year ended December 31, 2017 compared to the year
ended December 31, 2016. The decrease was primarily attributed to the amortization of fair value premiums and debt discounts related to
the decreased level of borrowing, through convertible notes for the year ended December 31, 2017. The amortization of fair value
premiums and debt discounts are non-cash income/expense items.
Other income, net, decreased by approximately $13,000 or 21%, for the year ended December 31, 2017 compared to the year
ended December 31, 2016. The decrease was primarily attributed to the exchange rate adjustments of the outstanding tax liability balance.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
As of December 31, 2017, cash totaled $181,000 compared to cash of $40,000 at December 31, 2016.
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net cash used in operating activities totaled approximately $3.0 million and $3.6 million during the years ended December 31,
2017 and 2016, respectively, primarily to fund operating losses. This decrease in cash used in operating activities was primarily the result of
the Company’s continued efforts to reduce its operating burn.
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Net cash provided by and (used) in investing activities totaled approximately $1.4 million and $(15,000), respectively, during the
years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. The cash proceeds for 2017 primarily resulted from the net cash inflows from the
sale of a non-controlling interest in the Company’s ENG subsidiary.
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Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Financing activities provided net cash of approximately $1.8 million and $3.5 million during the years ended December 31, 2017
and 2016, respectively, primarily related to proceeds from the issuance of convertible notes and debentures net of repayments.
Financial Condition
The Company’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming the Company will continue as a going concern.
As of December 31, 2017, we had a working capital deficit, stockholders’ deficit and accumulated deficit of approximately $10.6 million,
$9.7 million and $165.8 million, respectively, compared to a working capital deficit, stockholders’ deficit and accumulated deficit of
approximately $10.3 million, $9.0 million and $157.2 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2016. The change in the working capital
deficit was primarily due to operating losses for the period and capital raised through convertible debt financings.
We have incurred operating losses and net cash used in operating activities since the merger that created PositiveID in 2009. The
current 2017 operating losses are the result of research and development expenditures and selling, general and administrative expenses
related to our molecular diagnostics and Caregiver products. We expect our operating losses to continue through 2018. It’s management’s
opinion that these conditions raise substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern for a period of one year from the
issuance date of this report.
Our ability to continue as a going concern is dependent upon our ability to obtain financing to fund the continued development of
our products and to support working capital requirements. Until we are able to achieve operating profits, we will continue to seek to access
the capital markets. In fiscal 2017 and 2016, we raised approximately $2.7 and $3.8 million, respectively primarily from the issuance of
convertible debt. In addition, during the year ended December 31, 2017, we received approximately $1.4 million of net proceeds from the
sale to a strategic investor of a non-controlling interest in one of our subsidiaries.
On January 30, 2018, ENG, in order to raise working capital, sold additional ownership of ENG to the strategic investor and as a
result of this transaction, the Company’s equity interest in ENG has decreased to 24%. At December 31, 2017 the Company owned 50.2%
of ENG and controlled ENG’s assets. These assets represented between 50% and 55% of the Company’s overall assets. As a result of the
decreased ownership, as of January 30, 2018, the Company no longer controls ENG’s operations which will result in the deconsolidation of
ENG in 2018. The operations and assets of ENG represent a significant amount of the Company’s assets. The Company will prospectively
deconsolidate the balance sheet, results of operations and cash flows of ENG in its consolidated financial statements effective January 30,
2018.
During 2018, we will need to raise additional capital, including capital not currently available under our current financing
agreements in order to execute our business plan.
The Company intends to continue to access capital to provide funds to meet its working capital requirements for the near-term
future. In addition, and if necessary, the Company could reduce and/or delay certain discretionary research, development and related
activities and costs. However, there can be no assurances that the Company will be able to negotiate additional sources of equity or credit
for its long-term capital needs. The Company’s inability to have continuous access to such financing at reasonable costs could materially
and adversely impact its financial condition, results of operations and cash flows, and result in significant dilution to the Company’s
existing stockholders. The Company’s consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to recoverability of assets
and classifications of assets and liabilities that might be necessary should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern.
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
The following are descriptions of the accounting policies that our management believes involve a high degree of judgment and
complexity, and that, in turn, could materially affect our consolidated financial statements if various estimates and assumptions made in
connection with the application of such policies were changed significantly. The preparation of our consolidated financial statements
requires that we make certain estimates and judgments that affect the amounts reported and disclosed in our consolidated financial
statements and related notes. We base our estimates on historical experience and on other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable
under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, collectability of arrangement consideration is
reasonably assured, the arrangement fees are fixed or determinable and delivery in accordance with the customer contract or purchase
order.
If at the outset of an arrangement, the Company determines that collectability is not reasonably assured, revenue is deferred until
the earlier of when collectability becomes probable or the receipt of payment. If there is uncertainty as to the customer’s acceptance of the
Company’s deliverables, revenue is not recognized until the earlier of receipt of customer acceptance or expiration of the acceptance
period. If at the outset of an arrangement, the Company determines that the arrangement fee is not fixed or determinable, revenue is
deferred until the arrangement fee becomes estimable, assuming all other revenue recognition criteria have been met.
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To date, the Company has generated revenue from three sources:(1) professional services, (2) technology licensing, and (3)
product sales.
Specific revenue recognition criteria for each source of revenue is as follows:
(1) Revenues for professional services, which are of short term duration, are recognized when services are provided;
(2) Technology license revenue is recognized upon the completion of all terms of that license. Payments received in advance of
completion of the license terms are recorded as deferred revenue; and
(3) Revenue from sales of the Company’s products is recorded when risk of loss has passed to the buyer and criteria for revenue
recognition discussed above is met. Payments received in advance of delivery and revenue recognition are recorded as deferred
revenue.
If these criteria are not met, the arrangement is accounted for as one unit of accounting which would result in revenue being
recognized ratably over the contract term or being deferred until the earlier of when such criteria are met or when the last undelivered
element is delivered. If these criteria are met for each element and there is a relative selling price for all units of accounting in an
arrangement, the arrangement consideration is allocated to the separate units of accounting based on each unit’s relative selling price.
Intangible Assets and Goodwill
Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization, computed using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives. Customer contracts and relationships are being amortized over a period of 3 years, patents and other intellectual property are
being amortized over a period of 5 years, and non-compete agreements are being amortized over 2 years.
The Company continually evaluates whether events or circumstances have occurred that indicate the remaining estimated useful
lives of its definite-lived intangible assets may warrant revision or that the remaining balance of such assets may not be recoverable. The
Company uses an estimate of the related undiscounted cash flows attributable to such asset over the remaining life of the asset in measuring
whether the asset is recoverable.
The Company records goodwill as the excess of the purchase price over the fair values assigned to the net assets acquired in
business combinations. Goodwill is allocated to reporting units as of the acquisition date for the purpose of goodwill impairment testing.
The Company’s reporting units are those businesses for which discrete financial information is prepared. ASC 350, “Intangibles —
Goodwill and Other” requires that intangible assets with indefinite lives, including goodwill, be evaluated on an annual basis for
impairment or more frequently if an event occurs or circumstances change that could potentially result in impairment. The goodwill
impairment test requires the allocation of goodwill and all other assets and liabilities to reporting units. If the fair value of the reporting unit
is less than the book value (including goodwill), then goodwill is reduced to its implied fair value and the amount of the write-down is
charged to operations. We are required to test our goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives for impairment at least annually.
Stock-Based Compensation
Stock-based compensation expense is recognized using the fair-value based method for all awards granted. Compensation expense
for employees is recognized over the requisite service period based on the grant-date fair value of the awards. Forfeitures of stock-based
grants are estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates.
The Company estimates the fair value of stock-based compensation awards on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes-Merton
(“BSM”) option pricing model, which was developed for use in estimating the value of traded options that have no vesting restrictions and
are freely transferable. In addition, option valuation models require the input of highly subjective assumptions including the expected stock
price volatility. The BSM option pricing model considers, among other factors, the expected term of the award and the expected volatility
of the Company’s stock price. Expected terms are calculated using the Simplified Method, volatility is determined based on the Company’s
historical stock price trends and the discount rate is based upon treasury rates with instruments of similar expected terms. Warrants granted
to non-employees are accounted for in accordance with the measurement and recognition criteria of ASC Topic 505-50, Equity Based
Payments to Non-Employees.
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The Black-Scholes model, which the Company uses to determine compensation expense, requires the Company to make several
key judgments including:
●
●
●
●
●

the value of the Company’s common stock;
the expected life of issued stock options;
the expected volatility of the Company’s stock price;
the expected dividend yield to be realized over the life of the stock option; and
the risk-free interest rate over the expected life of the stock options.

The Company’s computation of the expected life of issued stock options was determined based on historical experience of similar
awards giving consideration to the contractual terms of the stock-based awards, vesting schedules and expectations about employees’
future length of service. The interest rate was based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant. The computation of
volatility was based on the historical volatility of the Company’s common stock.
Compensation expense for all stock-based employee and director compensation awards granted is based on the grant date fair
value estimated in accordance with the provisions of ASC Topic 718, Stock Compensation (“ASC Topic 718”). The Company recognizes
these compensation costs on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period of the award, which is generally the vesting term. Vesting
terms vary based on the individual grant terms.
Accounting for Derivatives
The Company evaluates its convertible debt, options, warrants or other contracts to determine if those contracts or embedded
components of those contracts qualify as derivatives to be separately accounted for. The result of this accounting treatment is that under
certain circumstances the fair value of the derivative is marked-to-market each balance sheet date and recorded as a liability. In the event
that the fair value is recorded as a liability, the change in fair value is recorded in the statement of operations as other income or expense.
Upon conversion or exercise of a derivative instrument, the instrument is marked to fair value at the conversion date and then that fair
value is reclassified to equity without gain or loss. Equity instruments that are initially classified as equity that become subject to
reclassification under this accounting standard are reclassified to liability at the fair value of the instrument on the reclassification date.
Fair Value of Financial Instruments and Fair Value Measurements
The Company measures its financial and non-financial assets and liabilities, as well as makes related disclosures, in accordance
with ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (“ASC Topic 820”). For certain of our financial instruments, including
cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to their short
maturities. Amounts recorded for notes payable, net of discount, also approximate fair value because current interest rates available to the
Company for debt with similar terms and maturities are substantially the same.
ASC Topic 820 provides guidance with respect to valuation techniques to be utilized in the determination of fair value of assets
and liabilities. Approaches include, (i) the market approach (comparable market prices), (ii) the income approach (present value of future
income or cash flow), and(iii) the cost approach (cost to replace the service capacity of an asset or replacement cost). ASC Topic 820
utilizes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value into three broad levels. The
following is a brief description of those three levels:
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Level 1:

Observable inputs such as quoted prices(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2:

Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable, either directly or indirectly. These include quoted prices for similar
assets or liabilities in active markets and quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not
active.

Level 3:

Unobservable inputs in which little or no market data exists, therefore developed using estimates and assumptions
developed by us, which reflect those that a market participant would use.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk
As a “Smaller Reporting Company,” we are not required to provide the information required by this item.
Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
The consolidated financial statements, including supplementary data and the accompanying report of independent registered
public accounting firm filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, are listed in the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements and
Financial Statement Schedules on page F-1.
Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Disclosure Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls. We evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our “disclosure controls and
procedures” as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Exchange Act as of December 31, 2017. This evaluation (the “disclosure controls
evaluation”) was done under the supervision and with the participation of management, including the person(s) performing the function of
our chief executive officer (“CEO”) and acting chief financial officer (“CFO”). Rules adopted by the SEC require that in this section of this
Report we present the conclusions of the CEO and CFO about the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of December
31, 2017 based on the disclosure controls evaluation.
Objective of Controls. Our disclosure controls and procedures are designed so that information required to be disclosed in our
reports filed under the Exchange Act, such as this Report, is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods
specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. Our disclosure controls and procedures are also intended to ensure that such information is
accumulated and communicated to our management, including the CEO and acting CFO, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding
required disclosure. There are inherent limitations to the effectiveness of any system of disclosure controls and procedures, including the
possibility of human error and the circumvention or overriding of the controls and procedures. Accordingly, even effective disclosure
controls and procedures can only provide reasonable assurance of achieving their control objectives, and management necessarily is
required to use its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible disclosure controls and procedures.
Conclusion. Based upon the disclosure controls evaluation, our CEO and acting CFO had concluded that, as of December 31,
2017, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective to provide reasonable assurance that the foregoing objectives are achieved.
Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in
Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act. Our internal control system is designed to provide reasonable assurance to our management and
Board regarding the preparation and fair presentation of published financial statements. All internal control systems, no matter how well
designed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with
respect to financial statement preparation and presentation.
Under the supervision and with the participation of management, including the CEO and acting CFO, we conducted an evaluation
of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting, as of December 31, 2017, based upon the framework in Internal Control
— Integrated Framework issued in 2013 by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on such
evaluation under the framework in Internal Control — Integrated Framework, management concluded that our internal control over
financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2017.
This Annual Report does not include an attestation report of our registered public accounting firm regarding internal control over
financial reporting. Management’s report was not subject to attestation by our registered public accounting firm pursuant to rules of the
SEC that permit us to provide only management’s report in this Annual Report.
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Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting identified in connection with the evaluation required by
paragraph(d) of Rule 13a-15 under the Exchange Act that occurred during the quarter ended December 31, 2017 that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
Item 9B. Other Information
None.
PART III
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance
Directors
Our directors, their ages and business experience, as of March 16, 2018, are set forth below:
Name
William J. Caragol
Jeffrey S. Cobb
Michael E. Krawitz
Ned L. Siegel

Positions with the Company
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, and Acting Chief Financial Officer
Director
Director
Director

William J. Caragol, 51, has served as our Chief Executive Officer since August 26, 2011 and as our Chairman of the Board of
Directors since December 6, 2011 and previously served as our President from May 2007 until August 26, 2011, and Treasurer since
December 2006. Since September 28, 2012, Mr. Caragol has also been our acting CFO. Mr. Caragol has had over twenty-five years of
experience with early and growth stage technology companies, including as the CFO of Millivision Technologies and as a Senior Manager
with Deloitte. Mr. Caragol has served as a member of the Board of Directors of several public and private technology companies. He is a
member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and graduated from the Washington & Lee University with a Bachelor of
Science in Administration and Accounting. The Board of Directors nominated Mr. Caragol as a director because of his past experience as a
senior executive of other companies in the technology industry and because he holds the position of chief executive officer.
Jeffrey S. Cobb, 56, has served as a member of our Board of Directors since March 2007. Since April 2004, Mr. Cobb is the
Chief Operating Officer of IT Resource Solutions.net, Inc. He is also Chief Executive Officer of Precision Background Screeners, a
company he founded in 2016. Mr. Cobb served as a member of the Board of Directors of Steel Vault from March 2004 through July 22,
2008. Mr. Cobb earned his Bachelor of Science in Marketing and Management from Jacksonville University. Mr. Cobb was nominated to
the Board of Directors because of his management and business development experience in technology companies.
Michael E. Krawitz, 48, has served as a member of our Board of Directors since November 2008. He currently serves as
Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary of York Risk Services Group, Inc. and its affiliated entities. From
January 2014 to June 2015, he served as Chief Legal and Financial Officer of VeriTeQ Corporation. From November 2010 to January 2014
he served as CEO and general counsel of PEAR, LLC, a company that finances renewable energy and energy efficiency projects
throughout the United States. From June 2010 until February 2011, he served as CEO of Florida Sunshine Investments I, Inc. He
previously served as the chief executive officer and president of Digital Angel Corporation from December 2006 to December 2007,
executive vice president, general counsel and secretary from March 2003 until December 2006, and as a member of its Board of Directors
from July 2007 until December 2007. Mr. Krawitz served as a member on the Board of Directors of Steel Vault from July 2008 until
November 2009. Mr. Krawitz earned a Bachelor of Arts degree from Cornell University and a juris doctorate from Harvard Law School.
Mr. Krawitz was nominated to the Board of Directors due to his past experience as a CEO of Digital Angel, our former parent company, as
well as his experience as an attorney.
Ned L. Siegel, 66, has served as a member of our Board of Directors since February 2011. Ambassador Siegel has had a long and
distinguished career as a senior U.S. government official and businessman. He was appointed by then President George W. Bush as the U.S.
Ambassador to the Commonwealth of the Bahamas from October 2007 to January 2009. He was also appointed by President Bush to serve
under Ambassador John R. Bolton at the United Nations in New York, serving as the Senior Advisor to the U.S. Mission and as the U.S.
representative to the 61st Session of the United Nations General Assembly. Prior to his ambassadorship, he was appointed to the Board of
Directors of the Overseas Private Investment Corporation (OPIC). In addition to his public service, Ambassador Siegel has over 30 years of
entrepreneurial successes. Presently, he serves as President of The Siegel Group, a multi-disciplined international business management
advisory firm specializing in real estate, energy, utilities, infrastructure, financial services, oil & gas and cyber & secure technology.
Ambassador Siegel also serves on the Board of Directors and Advisory Boards of other numerous public and private companies, and private
equity groups. He graduated Phi Beta Kappa from the University of Connecticut in 1973 and received a juris doctorate from the Dickinson
School of Law in 1976. In December 2014, he received an honorary degree of Doctor of Business Administration from the University of
South Carolina.
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Executive Officers
Our executive officers, their ages and positions, as of March 16, 2018, are set forth below:
Name
William J. Caragol
Lyle L. Probst

Age
51
47

Position
Chairman of the Board, CEO and Acting CFO
President

A summary of the business experience of Mr. Caragol is set forth above.
Lyle L. Probst, 47 , has served as our President since April 2014 and previously served as our vice president of operations and
product development from May 2011 until April 2014. He has also served as the CEO of the Company’s ExcitePCR Corporation subsidiary
since its formation in June 2017. He has 20 years of management experience with large bio-detection programs and products and joined
PositiveID in 2011 at the time that PositiveID acquired Microfluidic Systems. Mr. Probst joined Microfluidic Systems in February 2007
and served as the director of project management until February 2010, and then served as the senior director of project management until
April 2011. At Microfluidic Systems, Mr. Probst managed a series of programs such as the Department of Homeland Security Science &
Technology BAND (Bioagent Autonomous Networked Detector) program. Before joining Microfluidic Systems, Mr. Probst directed biodetection programs at Lawrence Livermore National Laboratory (“LLNL”) as a biomedical scientist project manager from February 2000
until February 2007. While he was at LLNL, he was instrumental in the development and deployment of BioWatch Generation 1 and was
principal investigator/developer of the high-throughput BioWatch mobile laboratory and a subject matter expert within the Biodefense
Knowledge Center. Mr. Probst was previously the Director of Capillary Electrophoresis and Director of Chemistries at the Joint Genome
Institute. He holds a B.S. in Biology and an M.B.A in Executive Management.
Audit Committee
Our audit committee currently consists of Ned L. Siegel and Jeffrey S. Cobb. Mr. Siegel chairs the audit committee. Our Board
has determined that each of the members of our audit committee is “independent,” as defined under, and required by, the federal securities
laws and the rules of the SEC, including Rule 10A-3(b)(i) under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange
Act. Although we are no longer listed on the Nasdaq Capital Market, each of the members of our audit committee is “independent” under
the listing standards of the Nasdaq Capital Market. Our Board has determined that Mr. Siegel qualifies as an “audit committee financial
expert” under applicable federal securities laws and regulations. A copy of the current audit committee charter is available on our website at
www.positiveidcorp.com.
The audit committee assists our Board in its oversight of:
● our accounting, financial reporting processes, audits and the integrity of our financial statements;
● our independent auditor’s qualifications, independence and performance;
● our compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
● our internal accounting and financial controls; and
● our audited financial statements and reports, and the discussion of the statements and reports with management, including any significant
adjustments, management judgments and estimates, new accounting policies and disagreements with management.
The audit committee has the sole and direct responsibility for appointing, evaluating and retaining our independent auditors and
for overseeing their work. All audit and non-audit services to be provided to us by our independent auditors must be approved in advance
by our audit committee, other than de minimis non-audit services that may instead be approved in accordance with applicable rules of the
SEC.
Certain Legal Proceedings
To the best of our knowledge, none of our directors or executive officers has, during the past ten years:
● been convicted in a criminal proceeding or been subject to a pending criminal proceeding (excluding traffic violations and other minor
offenses);
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● had any bankruptcy petition filed by or against the business or property of the person, or of any partnership, corporation or business
association of which he was a general partner or executive officer, either at the time of the bankruptcy filing or within two years prior to
that time;
● been subject to any order, judgment, or decree, not subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated, of any court of competent jurisdiction
or federal or state authority, permanently or temporarily enjoining, barring, suspending or otherwise limiting, his involvement in any
type of business, securities, futures, commodities, investment, banking, savings and loan, or insurance activities, or to be associated with
persons engaged in any such activity;
● been found by a court of competent jurisdiction in a civil action or by the Commission or the Commodity Futures Trading Commission
to have violated a federal or state securities or commodities law, and the judgment has not been reversed, suspended, or vacated;
● been the subject of, or a party to, any federal or state judicial or administrative order, judgment, decree, or finding, not subsequently
reversed, suspended or vacated(not including any settlement of a civil proceeding among private litigants), relating to an alleged
violation of any federal or state securities or commodities law or regulation, any law or regulation respecting financial institutions or
insurance companies including, but not limited to, a temporary or permanent injunction, order of disgorgement or restitution, civil money
penalty or temporary or permanent cease-and-desist order, or removal or prohibition order, or any law or regulation prohibiting mail or
wire fraud or fraud in connection with any business entity; or
● been the subject of, or a party to, any sanction or order, not subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated, of any self-regulatory
organization (as defined in Section 3(a)(26) of the Exchange Act), any registered entity (as defined in Section 1(a)(29) of the Commodity
Exchange Act), or any equivalent exchange, association, entity or organization that has disciplinary authority over its members or
persons associated with a member.
Except as set forth in our discussion below in “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions,” none of our directors or executive
officers has been involved in any transactions with us or any of our directors, executive officers, affiliates or associates which are required
to be disclosed pursuant to the rules and regulations of the SEC.
Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act
Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires the Company’s directors, executive officers and persons who beneficially own 10% or
more of a class of securities registered under Section 12 of the Exchange Act to file reports of beneficial ownership and changes in
beneficial ownership with the SEC. Directors, executive officers and greater than 10% stockholders are required by the rules and
regulations of the SEC to furnish the Company with copies of all reports filed by them in compliance with Section 16(a).
Based solely on our review of certain reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Section 16(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the reports required to be filed with respect to transactions in our common stock during the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2017, were timely.
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics
Our Board has approved, and we have adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, or the Code of Conduct, which applies to
all of our directors, officers and employees. Our Board has also approved, and we have adopted a Code of Ethics for Senior Financial
Officers or the Code for SFO, which applies to our chief executive officer and chief financial officer. The Code of Conduct and the Code
for SFO are available upon written request to PositiveID Corporation, Attention: Secretary, 1690 South Congress Avenue, Suite 201,
Delray Beach, Florida 33445. The audit committee of our Board is responsible for overseeing the Code of Conduct and the Code for SFO.
Our audit committee must approve any waivers of the Code of Conduct for directors and executive officers and any waivers of the Code for
SFO.
Item 11. Executive Compensation
The following table sets forth information regarding compensation earned in or with respect to our fiscal year 2017 and 2016 by:
● each person who served as our CEO in 2017; and
● each person who served as our CFO in 2017; and
● each person who served as our President in 2017.
We had no other executive officers during any part of 2017.
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Summary Compensation Table

Name and
Principal Position
William J. Caragol
Chairman, Chief Executive
Officer and Acting Chief
Financial Officer
Lyle Probst
President

Year
2017

Salary
Bonus
($)
($)
275,000(1)
—

Stock
Option
Awards Awards
($)
($)
—
—

Non-Equity
Incentive
Plan
All Other
Compensation Compensation
($)
($)
—
57,394(2)

2016

275,000(1) 250,000(3)

—

498,350(4)

—

2017
2016

200,000(6)
—
200,000(6) 250,000(7)

—
—

—
299,010(8)

—
—

Total
($)
332,394

62,790(5) 1,086,140
—
—

200,000
749,010

(1) Represents the $275,000 salary pursuant to Mr. Caragol’s employment contract. Pursuant to Mr. Caragol’s employment contract,
$75,000 of Mr. Caragol’s salary was deferred and paid as working capital allows. As of December 31, 2017, Mr. Caragol’s deferred
salary was fully paid.
(2) The amount shown includes (i) $25,000 for an expense allowance, and (ii) $32,394 for automobile expenses.
(3) Represents a non-cash equity grant. The amount recorded represents the grant date fair value of 250 Series II shares issued as a
component of Mr. Caragol’s 2016 incentive compensation. The Series II shares were issued on March 29, 2017 and will vest on January
1, 2019.
(4) Represents the (i) grant date fair value of 167 options to purchase Company common stock as a component of Mr. Caragol’s 2016
incentive compensation. These options were issued on January 7, 2016 and; (i) 57 vested on January 1, 2017; (ii) 55 vested on January 1,
2018; and (iii) 55 will vest on January 1, 2019.
(5) The amount shown includes (i) $25,000 for an expense allowance, and (ii) $37,790 for automobile expenses.
(6) Represents a salary of $200,000 pursuant to Mr. Probst’s employment contract.
(7) Represents a non-cash equity grant. The amount recorded represents the grant date fair value of 250 Series II shares issued as a
component of Mr. Probst’s 2016 incentive compensation. The Series II shares were issued on March 29, 2017 and will vest on January 1,
2019.
(8) Represents the (i) grant date fair value of 100 options to purchase Company common stock as a component of Mr. Probst’s 2016
incentive compensation. These options were issued on January 7, 2016 and; (i) 34 vested on January 1, 2017; (ii) 33 vested on January 1,
2018; and (iii) 33 will vest on January 1, 2019.
Narrative Disclosure to Summary Compensation Table and Additional Narrative Disclosure
Executive Employment Arrangements
2016 Executive Employment Arrangements
On April 8, 2016, the Company entered into employment contracts with both Mr. Caragol and Mr. Probst, effective January 1,
2016. The terms of Mr. Caragol’s employment contract include a three-year term and a salary of $275,000. Mr Caragol’s salary will
automatically adjust to $350,000 at the time that PositiveID’s common stock is listed on a national exchange. Mr. Caragol is eligible for
annual bonuses and was granted 167 stock options and; (i) 57 vested on January 1, 2017; (ii) 55 vested on January 1, 2018; and (iii) 55 will
vest on January 1, 2019. These options will expire on January 1, 2021. Mr. Caragol is also entitled to the use of a Company car and related
expenses and an unaccountable expense allowance of $25,000. The terms of Mr. Probst’s employment contract include a three-year term
and a salary of $200,000. Mr. Probst’s salary will automatically adjust to $250,000 at the time that PositiveID’s common stock is listed on a
national exchange. Mr. Probst is eligible for annual bonuses and was granted 100 stock options and; (i) 34 vested on January 1, 2017; (ii)
33 vested on January 1, 2018; and (iii) 33 will vest on January 1, 2019. These options will expire on January 1, 2021.
If either Mr. Caragol or Mr. Probst’s employment is terminated prior to the expiration of the term of his employment agreement,
certain significant payments become due. The amount of such payments depends on the nature of the termination. In addition, the
employment agreement contains a change of control provision that provides for the payment of 2.0 times and 2.95 times in the case of Mr.
Probst and Mr. Caragol, respectively of the then current base salary and the same multipliers of the highest bonus paid to the executive
during the three calendar years immediately prior to the change of control. Any outstanding stock options or restricted shares held by the
executive as of the date of his termination or a change of control become vested and exercisable as of such date and remain exercisable
during the remaining life of the option. The employment agreement also contains non-compete and confidentiality provisions which are
effective from the date of employment through two years from the date the employment agreement is terminated.
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Outstanding Equity Awards as of December 31, 2017
The following table provides information as of December 31, 2017, regarding unexercised stock options and restricted stock
outstanding held by Messrs. Caragol and Probst:
Outstanding Equity Awards as of December 31, 2017
Option Awards

Name
William J. Caragol
Lyle Probst

Stock Awards

Equity
Equity
Incentive
Incentive
Plan
Market
Plan
Awards:
Value
Awards:
Market
Equity
of
Number or Payout
Incentive
Number
Shares
of
Value of
Plan
of
or
Unearned Unearned
Awards:
Shares
Units
Shares,
Shares,
Number of
Number of
or Units
of
Units or
Units or
Securities
Number of
Securities
of Stock
Stock
Other
Other
Underlying
Securities
Underlying
That
That
Rights
Rights
Unexercised
Underlying
Unexercised Option
Have
Have
That
That
Options
Unexercised
Unearned
Exercise
Option
Not
Not
Have Not Have Not
(#)
Options (#)
Options
Price
Expiration Vested
Vested
Vested
Vested
Exercisable
Unexercisable
(#)
($)
Date
(#)
($)
(#)
($)
57(1)
110(1)
— $3,060.00
1/1/2021
12(2) $ 0.026(3)
—
—
34(4)

66(4)

— $3,060.00

1/1/2021

4(5) $ 0.009(3)

—

—

(1) Mr. Caragol was granted 167 options to purchase Company common stock, issued on January 7, 2016 and; (i) 57 vested on January 1,
2017; (ii) 55 vested on January 1, 2018; and (iii) 55 will vest on January 1, 2019.
(2) Mr. Caragol owns, as of December 31, 2017, an aggregate of 12 unvested shares of common stock which will vest on January 1, 2018.
(3) Computed by multiplying the closing bid price of a share of our common stock on December 31, 2017, or $0.0021, by the number of
shares of common stock that have not vested.
(4) Mr. Probst was granted 100 options to purchase Company common stock, issued on January 7, 2016 and; (i) 34 vested on January 1,
2017; (ii) 33 vested on January 1, 2018; and (iii) 33 will vest on January 1, 2019.
(5) Mr. Probst was granted 2 of restricted stock on January 8, 2013 and 2 of restricted stock on April 16, 2014 as employee incentive
compensation for 2012 and 2014, respectively. These restricted shares vested on January 1, 2018.
Director Compensation
The following table provides compensation information for persons serving as members of our Board of Directors during 2017:
2017 Director Compensation

Name
Jeffrey S. Cobb
Michael E. Krawitz
Ned L. Siegel

Fees
Earned
or Paid
in Cash
($) (1)
20,000
20,000
20,000

Stock
Awards
($)
—
—
—

Option
Awards
($)
—
—
—

Non-Equity
Incentive
Plan
Compensation
($)
—
—
—

Nonqualified
Deferred
Compensation
Earnings
—
—
—

All Other
Compensation
($) (2)
50,000
50,000
50,000

Total
($)
70,000
70,000
70,000

(1) These fees are comprised of $5,000 per quarter, per director
(2) Represents the grant date stated value of 50 Series II shares issued to each of the independent director as a component of their 2017
compensation. The Series II shares were issued on March 29, 2017 and will vest on January 1, 2019.
On January 9, 2015, the Board of Directors approved the 2015 Board Compensation Plan, effective immediately, where each
director receives a quarterly compensation of $5,000. There were no changes made to the Board compensation during 2017.
On August 11, 2016, the Board of PositiveID agreed to exchange 2,025 shares of its Series I Preferred, which have a stated value
of $2,025,000 and redemption value of $2,261,800 for 2,262 shares of Series II Preferred, which have a stated value of $2,262,000. The
Series II have an aggregate and per share stated value and same voting rights at the exchange date as the Series I. Pursuant to the Exchange
the independent Board of Directors director were issued Series II Preferred as follows: (i) 169 shares of Series II Preferred Stock issued to
Michael E. Krawitz;(ii) 154 shares of Series II Preferred Stock issued to Jeffrey S. Cobb; (iii) 126 shares of Series II Preferred Stock issued
to Ned L. Siegel for a total of 449 shares of Series II Preferred Stock in exchanged their Series I Preferred Stock.
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On March 29, 2017, the Company issued 50 shares of Series II Preferred were issued to each of three independent board members
as a component of their 2017 compensation (150 shares total) at a stated value of $1,000 per share. These Series II Preferred shares are only
forfeitable up to January 1, 2019 upon termination for cause and is subject to acceleration in the event of conversion, redemption and
certain events. As a result of the Exchange in 2016 and additional issuances in 2017, a total of 599 shares of Series II Preferred Stock were
owned by the independent Board of Directors as of December 31, 2017, as detailed below:

Name
Michael E. Krawitz
Jeffrey S. Cobb
Ned L. Siegel
Total

Shares
Issued

Position
Director
Director
Director

219
204
176
599

Preferred Series II
Common
Shares
Issuable
Upon
Conversion
34,719,738
33,749,286
31,937,775
100,406,799

Total
Votes
867,993,445
843,732,138
798,444,366
2,510,169,949

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management
The following table sets forth certain information known to us regarding beneficial ownership of shares of our common stock as of
March 16, 2018 by:
●
●
●
●

each of our directors;
each of our named executive officers;
all of our executive officers and directors as a group; and
each person, or group of affiliated persons, known to us to be the beneficial owner of more than 5% of our outstanding shares of
common stock.

Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules and regulations of the SEC and includes voting and investment
power with respect to the securities. In computing the number of shares beneficially owned by a person and the percentage ownership of
that person, shares of common stock subject to options or warrants held by that person that are currently exercisable or exercisable within
60 days of March 16, 2018 are deemed outstanding. Such shares, however, are not deemed outstanding for purposes of computing the
percentage ownership of any other person. To our knowledge, except as indicated in the footnotes to this table and subject to community
property laws where applicable, the persons named in the table have sole voting and investment power with respect to all shares of our
common stock shown opposite such person’s name. The percentage of beneficial ownership is based on 3,098,141,085 shares of our
common stock outstanding as of March 16, 2018. Unless otherwise noted below, the address of the persons and entities listed in the table is
c/o PositiveID Corporation, 1690 South Congress Avenue, Suite 201, Delray Beach, Florida 33445. As a result, the Company’s issuance of
2,632 shares of Series II Preferred Stock to named executive officers and directors, they have the voting rights to 11,071,822,257 votes as
the result of their Series II holdings. The percentage of voting rights in the table below assumes that all Series II shares held by directors
and named officers are voted in any instance requiring shareholder vote.
The beneficial owners of all issued shares have voting rights over such shares, whether or not such owners have dispositive
powers with respect to the shares, and such shares are included in each person’s beneficial ownership amount. For the avoidance of doubt,
if a beneficial owner does not have dispositive powers with respect to certain shares, each such person maintains voting control over these
shares, and such shares are included in the determination the person’s beneficial ownership amount.
Number of Shares
Beneficially
Owned (#)

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner
Five Percent Stockholders:
William J. Caragol (1)
Dominion Capital LLC (2)
Union Capital, LLC (3)
Named Executive Officers and Directors:
William J. Caragol (1)
Lyle L. Probst (4)
Michael E. Krawitz (5)
Jeffrey S. Cobb (6)
Ned L. Siegel (7)
Executive Officers and Directors as a group (5 persons) (8)
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Percent of
Outstanding
Shares (%)

Percent of
Voting
Rights (%)

190,947,986
306,715,967
306,715,967

5.2%
9.9%
9.9%

28.3%
*%
*%

190,947,986
150,272,852
35,150,428

5.2%
4.1%
1.0%

28.3%
22.3%
5.2%

34,167,938
32,333,957
442,873,160

0.9%
0.9%
12.1%

5.1%
4.8%
65.7%

*Less than 1%
(1)

Mr. Caragol beneficially owns 190,947,986 shares which include 15 shares of common stock and 112 options directly owned by
Mr. Caragol. Mr. Caragol owns 1,077 shares of Series II Preferred, which may convert to 190,947,859 shares of common stock. The
Series II Preferred will vest on January 1, 2019. On January 7, 2016, Mr. Caragol was granted 167 stock options and; (i) 57 vested
on January 1, 2017; (ii) 55 vested on January 1, 2018; and (iii) 55 will vest on January 1, 2019. Only the vested options are included
in the table above.

(2)

Dominion Capital LLC (“Dominion”), and Dominion’s managing members Mikhail Gurevich and Daniel Kordash, may be deemed
to beneficially own shares of common stock beneficially owned by Dominion, including shares issuable to Dominion upon
conversion of a series of convertible notes. The address of the principal business office of Dominion is 3 Fraser Lane, Westport,
Connecticut 06880. Voting and dispositive power with respect to the shares owned by Dominion is exercised by Messrs. Gurevich
and Kordash. Each of Dominion and Messrs. Gurevich and Kordash disclaims beneficial ownership or control of any of the
securities listed above as control may be deemed to be held by the other members of Dominion. However, by reason of the
provisions of Rule 13d-3 of the Exchange Act, as amended, Dominion or Messrs. Gurevich and Kordash may be deemed to
beneficially own or control the shares owned by Dominion.

(3)

Union Capital, LLC (“Union”), and Union’s managing member Yakov Borenstein, may be deemed to beneficially own shares of
common stock beneficially owned by Union, including shares issuable to Union upon conversion of a series of convertible notes.
The address of the principal business office of Union is 525 Norton Parkway, New Haven, CT 06511. Voting and dispositive power
with respect to the shares owned by Union is exercised by Mr. Borenstein. Each of Union and Mr. Borenstein disclaims beneficial
ownership or control of any of the securities listed above as control may be deemed to be held by the other members of Union.
However, by reason of the provisions of Rule 13d-3 of the Exchange Act, as amended, Union and Mr. Borenstein may be deemed to
beneficially own or control the shares owned by Union.

(4)

Includes 4 shares of our common stock and 67 shares of our common stock issuable upon the exercise of stock options that are
currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of March 16, 2018. Mr. Probst owns 456 shares of Series II Preferred, which
may convert to 150,272,781 shares of common stock. The Series II Preferred vests on January 1, 2019. On January 7, 2016, Mr.
Probst was granted 100 stock options and; (i) 34 vested on January 1, 2017; (ii) 33 vested on January 1, 2018; and (iii) 33 will vest
on January 1, 2019. Only the vested options are included in the table above.

(5)

Includes 4 shares of our common stock and 20 shares of our common stock issuable upon the exercise of stock options that are
currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of March 16, 2018. Mr. Krawitz owns 169 shares of Series II Preferred, which
may convert to 35,150,403 shares of common stock. The Series II Preferred will vest on January 1, 2019.

(6)

Includes 4 shares of our common stock and 20 shares of our common stock issuable upon the exercise of stock options that are
currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of March 16, 2018. Mr. Cobb owns 154 shares of Series II Preferred, which may
convert to 34,167,913 shares of common stock. The Series II Preferred will vest on January 1, 2019.

(7)

Includes 4 shares of our common stock and 20 shares of our common stock issuable upon the exercise of stock options that are
currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of March 16, 2018. Mr. Siegel owns 126 shares of Series II Preferred, which
may convert to 32,333,933 shares of common stock. The Series II Preferred will vest on January 1, 2019.

(8)

Includes shares of our common stock beneficially owned by current executive officers and directors and shares issuable upon the
exercise of stock options that are currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of March 16, 2018, in each case as set forth in
the footnotes to this table.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information
The following table presents information regarding options and rights outstanding under equity our compensation plans as of
December 31, 2017:

Plan Category (1)
Equity compensation plans approved by security holders
Equity compensation plans not approved by security
holders (2)
Total

(a)
Number of
securities to be
issued upon
exercise of
outstanding
options,
warrants and
rights

(c)
Number of
securities
remaining
available for
future issuance
under equity
compensation
plans
(excluding
securities
reflected in
column(a))

(b)
Weightedaverage
exercise price
per share of
outstanding
options,
warrants and
rights
—

$

—

1,000,000

1,203
1,203

$
$

1,172.28
1,172.28

—
1,000,000

(1) A narrative description of the material terms of our equity compensation plans is set forth in Note 10 to our consolidated financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2017.
(2) We have made grants outside of our equity plans and have 883 outstanding warrants exercisable for shares of our common stock. These
warrants were granted as compensation for financing transactions or for the rendering of consulting services.
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence
Since the beginning of our fiscal year 2017, there has not been, and there is not currently proposed any transaction or series of
similar transactions in which the amount involved exceeded or will exceed the lesser of $120,000 or one percent of the average of our total
assets at year-end for the last two completed fiscal years and in which any related person, including any director, executive officer, holder
of more than 5% of our capital stock during such period, or entities affiliated with them, had a material interest, other than as described in
the transactions set forth below.
Issuance of Series I and Series II Convertible Preferred Stock Resulting in Management’s Voting Control of the Company
On September 30, 2013, the Board of Directors authorized and in November 2013, the Company filed with the State of Delaware,
a Certificate of Designations of Preferences, Rights and Limitations of Series I Preferred Stock. The Series I Preferred Stock ranks junior to
the Company’s Series F Preferred Stock and to all liabilities of the Company and is senior to the Common Stock and any other preferred
stock. The Series I Preferred Stock has a stated value per share of $1,000, a dividend rate of 6% per annum, voting rights on an as-converted
basis and a conversion price equal to the closing bid price of the Company’s Common Stock on the date of issuance. The Series I Preferred
Stock is required to be redeemed (at stated value, plus any accrued dividends) by the Company after three years or any time after one year,
the Company may at its option, redeem the shares subject to a ten-day notice (to allow holder conversion). The Series I Preferred Stock is
convertible into the Company’s Common Stock, at stated value plus accrued dividends, at the closing bid price on September 30, 2013, any
time at the option of the holder and by the Company in the event that the Company’s closing stock price exceeds 400% of the conversion
price for twenty consecutive trading days. The Company has classified the Series I Preferred Stock as a liability in the consolidated balance
sheet due to the mandatory redemption feature. The Series I Preferred Stock has voting rights equal to the number of shares of Common
Stock that Series I Preferred Stock is convertible into, times twenty-five. This provision gave the holders of Series I Preferred Stock voting
control in situations requiring shareholder vote.
On November 5, 2013, the Company filed an Amended and Restated Certificate of Designation of Series I Preferred Stock (the
“Amended Certificate of Designation”). The Amended Certificate of Designation was filed to clarify and revise the mechanics of
conversion and certain conversion rights of the holders of Series I Preferred Stock. No other rights were modified or amended in the
Amended Certificate of Designation. On January 8, 2015, the Company filed an amendment to the Amended Certificate of Designation to
increase the authorized shares of Series I Convertible Preferred Stock from 1,000 shares to 2,500 shares. No other terms were modified or
amended in the Amended Certificate of Designation.
On July 25, 2016, the Board authorized a Certificate of Designations of Preferences, Rights and Limitations of Series II
Convertible Preferred Stock. The Certificate was filed with the State of Delaware Secretary of State on July 25, 2016. The Series II
Preferred ranks: (a) senior with respect to dividends and right of liquidation with the common stock; (b) pari passu with respect to
dividends and right of liquidation with the Company’s Series I Preferred and Series J Convertible Preferred Stock; and (c) junior to all
existing and future indebtedness of the Company. The Series II Preferred has a stated value per share of $1,000, subject to adjustment as
provided in the Certificate (the “Stated Value”), and a dividend rate of 6% per annum of the Stated Value. As with the Series I Preferred,
the Series II Preferred has 25 votes per common share equivalent. The Series II Preferred is subject to redemption (at Stated Value, plus
any accrued, but unpaid dividends (the “Liquidation Value”)) by the Company no later than three years after a Deemed Liquidation Event
and at the Company’s option after one year from the issuance date of the Series II Preferred, subject to a ten-day notice (to allow holder

conversion). The Series II Preferred is convertible at the option of a holder or if the closing price of the common stock exceeds 400% of
the Conversion Price for a period of twenty consecutive trading days, at the option of the Company. Conversion Price means a price per
share of the common stock equal to 100% of the lowest daily volume weighted average price of the common stock during the subsequent
12 months following the date the Series II Preferred was issued.
From September 30, 2013 through April 6, 2016, the Company issued 2,025 shares of Series I Preferred Stock to its officers,
directors and management for management and director compensation and payment of deferred obligations. Each of the Series I preferred is
convertible into the Company’s Common Stock, at stated value plus accrued dividends, at the closing bid price on the issuance date, any
time at the option of the holder and by the Company in the event that the Company’s closing stock price exceeds 400% of the conversion
price for twenty consecutive trading days. The Series I Preferred Stock has voting rights equivalent to twenty-five votes per common share
equivalent.
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On August 11, 2016, the Board of PositiveID agreed to exchange 2,025 shares of its Series I Preferred, which have a stated value
of $2,025,000 and redemption value of $2,261,800, for 2,262 shares of Series II Preferred, which have a stated value of $2,262,000.
Pursuant to the Exchange each existing holder of Series I Preferred exchanged their Series I Preferred shares for Series II Preferred shares
having equivalent per share stated value, maintaining the same voting rights as they had as holders of the Series I Preferred. The Series II
have an aggregate stated value equivalent to the redemption value of the Series I at the exchange date. Both the Series I Preferred and the
Series II Preferred have a stated value per share of $1,000, and a dividend rate of 6% per annum. All shares of Series I Preferred previously
issued have become null and void and any and all rights arising thereunder have been extinguished. The Series II Preferred is only
forfeitable after the exchange date up to January 1, 2019 upon termination for cause and is subject to acceleration in the event of
conversion, redemption and certain events.
On March 29, 2017, the Company, filed a Certificate of Elimination (the “Certificate of Elimination”) for its Series I Convertible
Preferred Stock (“Series I”) with the Delaware Secretary of State to eliminate from its Third Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation, as amended (the “Certificate of Incorporation”), all references to the Company’s Series I. No shares of the Series I were
issued or outstanding upon filing of the Certificate of Elimination.
On March 29, 2017, the Company filed an Amended Restated Certificate of Designations of Preferences, Rights and Limitations
of Series II Convertible Preferred Stock (the “Amended Certificate of Designation”). The Amended Certificate of Designation was filed to
increase the authorized shares of Series II Convertible Preferred Stock from 3,000 shares to 4,000 shares. No other terms were modified or
amended in the Amended Certificate of Designation.
On March 29, 2017, the Company issued shares of Series II Preferred as follows: (i) 50 shares of Series II Preferred were issued to
each of three independent board members as a component of their 2017 compensation (150 shares total); and (ii) 685 shares of Series II
Preferred were issued to the Company’s management as a component of their 2016 incentive compensation at a stated value of $1,000 per
share. These Series II Preferred shares are only forfeitable up to January 1, 2019 upon termination for cause and is subject to acceleration in
the event of conversion, redemption and certain events.
As a result of the exchange in 2016 and additional issuances in 2017, 3,097 shares of Series II Preferred Stock were issued and
outstanding as of December 31, 2017 as detailed below.

Name
William J. Caragol
Lyle Probst
Michael E. Krawitz
Jeffrey S. Cobb
Ned L. Siegel
Allison F. Tomek
Kimothy Smith
Caragol Family Irrevocable
Trust
Kent Murray
Gary O’Hara
Total

Position
Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer
President
Director
Director
Director
SVP of Corporate Development
Chief Scientific Officer,
ExcitePCR

Shares Issued

Former SVP Finance
Chief Technology Officer,
Thermomedics

Preferred Series II
Common Shares Issuable
Upon Conversion

Total Votes

1,327
706
219
204
176
266

188,608,351
148,431,627
34,719,738
33,749,286
31,937,775
58,311,623

4,715,208,765
3,710,790,676
867,993,445
843,732,138
798,444,366
1,457,790,575

55

3,558,325

88,958,124

59
75

3,817,112
35,678,964

95,427,806
891,974,088

10
3,097

4,757,195
543,569,996

118,929,878
13,589,249,861

As of December 31, 2017, per the above table, the Company’s named executive officers and directors had aggregate control of
78.4% of the Company’s voting shares out of which Mr. Caragol had control of 33.8% of the Company ’s voting shares. Our officers,
directors and management (in addition to the five people who make up the Majority Stockholders, this includes Allison Tomek, our Senior
Vice President of Corporate Development, and Kimothy Smith, Chief Scientific Officer of ExcitePCR and Kent Murray, former Senior
Vice President of Finance) have an aggregate of 13,589,249,894 votes or 97.4% of the total vote, on any matter brought to a vote of the
holders of our common stock which includes 13,589,249,861 votes through the ownership of Series II Preferred Stock and 33 votes through
the ownership of shares of our common stock. As a result, our named officers, directors, and management have voting control over the
13,948,323,461 of the outstanding voting shares of the Company which includes votes through the ownership of Series II Preferred Stock
and ownership of outstanding common shares.
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Review, Approval or Ratification of Transactions with Related Parties
Our audit committee’s charter requires review and discussion of any transactions or courses of dealing with parties related to us
that are significant in size or involve terms or other aspects that differ from those that would be negotiated with independent parties. Our
nominating and governance committee’s charter requires review of any proposed related party transactions, conflicts of interest and any
other transactions for which independent review is necessary or desirable to achieve the highest standards of corporate governance. It is
also our unwritten policy, which policy is not otherwise evidenced, for any related party transaction that involves more than a de minimis
obligation, expense or payment, to obtain approval by our Board of Directors prior to our entering into any such transaction. In conformity
with our various policies on related party transactions, each of the above transactions discussed in this “Certain Relationships and Related
Transactions” section has been reviewed and approved by our Board of Directors.
Director Independence
Our Board of Directors currently consists of four members: William J. Caragol, Jeffrey S. Cobb, Michael E. Krawitz and Ned L.
Siegel. Although we are not listed on the Nasdaq Capital Market, our Board has determined that three of our four directors, Messrs. Cobb,
Krawitz and Siegel, are independent under the standards of the Nasdaq Capital Market. Mr. Caragol, who is our CEO and acting CFO is
not considered independent.
For transactions, relationships or arrangements that were considered by the Board in determining whether each director was
independent, please see “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions — Director and Officer Roles and Relationships” above.
Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services
For the fiscal years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, fees for audit and audit related services were as follows:
2017 (1)
Audit Fees
Audit Related Fees
All Other Fees
Total Fees

$

$

107,200
450
—
107,650

2016 (2)
$

$

105,000
5,000
—
110,000

(1) Audit related fees for 2017 include review of registration statements and other SEC filings. Audit fees for 2017 relate to the 2017 fiscal
year-end audit and review of the interim financial statements conducted by Salberg & Company P.A.
(2) Audit related fees for 2016 include review of registration statements and other SEC filings. Audit fees for 2016 relate to the 2016 fiscal
year-end audit and review of the interim financial statements conducted by Salberg & Company P.A.
Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures
The audit committee has a policy for the pre-approval of all auditing services and any provision by the independent auditors of any
non-audit services the provision of which is not prohibited by the Exchange Act or the rules of the SEC under the Exchange Act. Unless a
type of service to be provided by the independent auditor has received general pre-approval, it will require specific pre-approval by the
audit committee, if it is to be provided by the independent auditor. All fees for independent auditor services will require specific preapproval by the audit committee. Any fees for pre-approved services exceeding the pre-approved amount will require specific pre-approval
by the audit committee. The audit committee will consider whether such services are consistent with the SEC’s rules on auditor
independence.
All services provided by and all fees paid to Salberg & Company, P.A. in fiscal 2017 and 2016 were pre-approved by our audit
committee, in accordance with its policy. None of the services described above were approved pursuant to the exception provided in Rule
2-01(c)(7)(i)(C) of Regulations S-X promulgated by the SEC.
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
The following documents are filed as a part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K:
(a)(1)

List of Financial Statements Filed as Part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K:
A list of the consolidated financial statements, notes to consolidated financial statements, and accompanying report of independent
registered public accounting firm appears on page F-1 of the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements and Financial Statement
Schedules, which is filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

(a)(2)

Financial Statement Schedules:
All other schedules are omitted because they are not applicable, the amounts are not significant, or the required information is
shown in our consolidated financial statements or the notes thereto.

(a)(3)

Exhibits:
See the Exhibit Index filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
POSITIVEID CORPORATION
Date: April 2, 2018

By: /s/ William J. Caragol
William J. Caragol
Chief Executive Officer and Acting Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons
on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.
Signature
/s/ William J. Caragol
William J. Caragol

Title
Chief Executive Officer, Chairman of the
Board and Acting Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Executive Officer and Principal
Financial Officer)

Date
April 2, 2018

/s/ Jeffrey S. Cobb
Jeffrey S. Cobb

Director

April 2, 2018

/s/ Michael E. Krawitz
Michael E. Krawitz

Director

April 2, 2018

/s/ Ned L. Siegel
Ned L. Siegel

Director

April 2, 2018
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Stockholders’ and the Board of Directors of:
PositiveID Corporation
Opinion on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of PositiveID Corporation and Subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of
December 31, 2017 and 2016, the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in stockholders’ deficit, and cash flows, for each
of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2017, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “consolidated financial
statements”). In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position
of the Company as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the two
years in the period ended December 31, 2017, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Going Concern
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. As
discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has a net loss and cash used in operations of $8,733,000 and
$3,016,000, respectively, in 2017 and has a working capital deficit, stockholders’ deficit and accumulated deficit of $10,627,000,
$9,701,000 and $165,789,000, respectively, at December 31, 2017. These matters raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Management’s Plan in regards to these matters is also described in Note 1. The consolidated financial
statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.
Basis for Opinion
These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on the Company’s consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (“PCAOB”) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in
accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and
the PCAOB.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or
fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of internal control over financial reporting. As part
of our audits we are required to obtain an understanding of internal control over financial reporting but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
/s/ Salberg & Company, P.A.
SALBERG & COMPANY, P.A.
We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2014.
Boca Raton, Florida
March 31, 2018
2295 NW Corporate Blvd., Suite 240 • Boca Raton, FL 33431
Phone: (561) 995-8270 • Toll Free: (866) CPA-8500 • Fax: (561) 995-1920
www.salbergco.com • info@salbergco.com
Member National Association of Certified Valuation Analysts • Registered with the PCAOB
Member CPAConnect with Affiliated Offices Worldwide • Member Center for Public Company Audit Firms
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POSITIVEID CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In thousands, except share data)
As of December 31,
2017
Assets
Current Assets:
Cash
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total Current Assets

$

Equipment, net
Goodwill
Intangibles, net
Other assets
Total Assets

$

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Deficit
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Deferred revenue
Notes and loans payable, net of discounts
Line of credit
Short-term convertible debt and accrued interest, net of discounts and premiums
Embedded conversion option liability
Tax liability
Total Current Liabilities

$

Long Term Liabilities:
Loan payable
Total Liabilities

2016
181
75
433
102
791
120
601
194
19
1,725

295
1,183
154
309
350
6,377
2,650
100
11,418

$

$

$

40
307
678
97
1,122
129
800
492
19
2,562

394
807
353
469
150
4,808
4,284
142
11,407

8
11,426

18
11,425

—

—

—

—

Commitments and contingencies (Note 12)
Stockholders’ Deficit:
Preferred stock, 5,000,000 shares authorized, $0.001 par value:
Series J Convertible Preferred – 1,700 shares authorized, 71 shares issued and
outstanding at December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, (liquidation
preference of $71,000 at December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016).
Series II Convertible Preferred – 4,000 shares authorized, 3,097 and 2,262 shares
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016,
respectively; (liquidation preference of $3,332,479 and $2,315,293, at December
31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively)
Common stock, 19,995,000,000 shares authorized, $0.0001 par value;
359,075,497 and 894,909 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2017
and December 31, 2016, respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated deficit
Total PositiveID Corporation Stockholders’ Deficit
Non-controlling interest in consolidated subsidiary (Note 5)
Total Stockholders’ Deficit
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Deficit

$

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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36
156,150
(165,789 )
(9,603 )

—
148,359
(157,222)
(8,863)

(98 )
(9,701)
1,725

—
(8,863)
2,562

$

POSITIVEID CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Operations
(In thousands, except share and per share data)
Year Ended December 31,
2017
2016
Revenues

$

5,359

$

5,559

Cost of revenues

3,514

3,537

Gross profit

1,845

2,022

Operating expenses:
Selling, general and administrative (including $850 and $2,025 in the years ended
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, reflecting a non-cash charge related to
Series II Preferred Stock– see Note 10)
Research and development
Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets (see Note 6)
Total operating expenses

5,837
511
342
6,690

8,729
440
—
9,169

Operating loss

(4,845)

(7,147)

Other income (expense):
Interest expense
Change in acquisition obligations, net
Change in fair value of embedded conversion option liability
Loss (gain) on extinguishment of debt
Other income, net
Total other expense, net

(3,713)
—
(263)
39
49
(3,888)

(7,652)
107
1,601
(32)
62
(5,914)

Net loss before income tax provision
Income tax expense
Net loss

(8,733)
—
(8,733)

(13,061)
—
(13,061)

Preferred stock dividends
Net loss attributable to common stockholders before allocation to non-controlling interest
Less net loss allocated to non-controlling interest in consolidated subsidiary
Net loss applicable to PositiveID Corporation common stockholders
Net loss per common share attributable to common stockholders – basic and diluted
Weighted average shares outstanding – basic and diluted

$
$
$

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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(181)
(8,914)
166
(8,748 )
(0.15)
57,824,683

$
$
$

(155)
(13,216)
—
(13,216)
(168)
78,889

POSITIVEID CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Deficit
For the Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
(In thousands, except share data)
Preferred Shares
Shares Amount
Balance at December 31,
2015
Net loss, 2016
Common Stock issued for
services - third parties
Vested shares returned
Other Stock based
compensation - employees
Common Stock issued
pursuant to convertible
note conversions
Reclassification of
derivative liability upon
debt conversion
Reclassification of
premium upon debt
conversion and
redemption
Retired Series J Preferred
shares
Issuance of Series II
Preferred shares
Preferred stock dividends
Balance at December 31,
2016
Net loss, 2017
Stock based compensation
- employees
Other stock-based
compensation - Series II
Preferred shares
Common Stock issued
pursuant to convertible
note conversions
Reclassification of
derivative liability upon
debt conversion
Reclassification of
premium upon debt
conversion and
extinguishment
Preferred stock dividends
Sale of non-controlling
interest
Balance at December 31,
2017

125
—

$

—

Common Shares
Shares
Amount
2,939
—

$

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

—
—

$ 132,319
—

Accumulated
Deficit
$

Noncontrolling
Interest

(144,161) $
(13,061)

—
—

Total
Stockholders’
Deficit
$

(11,842)
(13,061)

—
—

243
—

—
—

169
—

—
—

—
—

169
—

—

—

—

964

—

—

964

—

891,727

—

5,329

—

—

5,329

—

—

—

4,676

—

—

4,676

—

—

—

305

—

—

305

(54)

—

—

(54)

—

—

(54)

—
—

—

4,806
(155)

—
—

—
—

4,806
(155)

2,262
—
2,333
—

—
—

894,909
—

—
—

$ 148,359
—

—

—

—

—

236

—

—

236

835

—

—

—

852

—

—

852

—

—

356,880,588

36

2,568

—

—

2,604

—

—

—

—

2,623

—

—

2,623

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

—

1,300,000

—

1,320

—

68

—

359,075,497

36

$ 156,150

3,168

$

$

$

$

$

(157,222) $
(8,567)

373
(181)

$

(165,789) $

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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— $
(166)

(98) $

(8,863)
(8,733)

373
(181)
1,388
(9,701)

POSITIVEID CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(In thousands)
Year Ended December 31,
2017
2016
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Stock-based compensation
(Gain) loss on extinguishment of debt
Convertible debt discounts and premium amortization
Note issued as consideration for services
Change in fair value of embedded conversion option liability
Impairment of goodwill and intangible asset
Change in acquisition obligations, net
Gain on disposal of property & equipment
Bad debt
Foreign exchange transaction loss
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in:
Account receivable
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Inventory
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other current liabilities

$

Supplementary Cash Flow Information:
Cash paid for interest
Cash paid for income taxes
Non-cash financing and investing activities:
Conversion of promissory notes into common stock
Reclassification of embedded conversion option liability upon conversion of debt
Reclassification of stock settled debt premium upon conversion of debt
Embedded conversion option liability recorded as debt discount
Premium recorded on debt
Discount recorded for loan fees and original issue discount
Stock issued for prepaid services
Promissory note issued for services
Preferred stock, notes payable and earn-out liability consideration recorded for business
combinations

(13,061)
300
3,158
32
6,903
145
(1,601)
—
(107)
—
—
—

229
(5)
245

334
145
1,090

96
332

(103)
611

(198)
(57)
(3,016)

(1,495)
—
(3,649)

1,495
(107)
4
(41)
1,351

—
—
—
(15)
(15)

2,730
200
(1,124)
1,806

3,750
150
(369)
3,531

$

141
40
181

$

(133)
173
40

$
$

132
—

$
$

100
—

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

2,604
2,623
373
725
1,080
293
—
15

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

5,329
4,676
305
2,776
534
310
156
145

$

—

$

75

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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$

203
1,088
(39)
3,194
15
263
342
—
(2)
2
9

Accrued interest
Deferred revenue
Tax liability
Net cash used in operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds on sale of non-controlling interest in consolidated subsidiary
Transaction costs related to sale of non-controlling interest
Proceeds on disposal of property & equipment
Purchase of property and equipment
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from convertible debt financing, net of fees
Proceeds from line of credit, net
Principal payments of short-term debt
Net cash provided by financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash
Cash, beginning of year
Cash, end of year

(8,733)

POSITIVEID CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016
1. Organization
PositiveID Corporation, including its wholly-owned subsidiaries PositiveID Diagnostics Inc. (“PDI”) and Thermomedics, Inc.
(“Thermomedics”), and its majority-owned subsidiaries, ExcitePCR Corporation (“ExcitePCR”), E-N-G Mobile Systems, Inc. (“ENG”)
(collectively, the “Company” or “PositiveID”), develops molecular diagnostic systems for bio-threat detection and rapid medical testing;
manufactures specialty technology vehicles; and markets the Caregiver® non-contact clinical thermometer. The Company’s fully
automated pathogen detection systems are designed to detect a range of biological threats. The Company’s M-BAND (Microfluidic Bioagent Autonomous Networked Detector) system is an airborne bio-threat detection system developed for the homeland defense industry to
detect biological weapons of mass destruction. The Company is developing the FireflyDX family of products, which are automated
pathogen detection systems for rapid diagnostics, in both portable and handheld forms, for clinical and point-of-need applications. The
Company also manufactures specialty technology vehicles focused primarily on mobile laboratory and communications applications. The
Company’s Caregiver® thermometer is an FDA-cleared infrared thermometer for the professional healthcare market.
Authorized Common Stock and Reverse Stock Split
On January 30, 2017, the Company filed the First Amendment to the Company’s Third Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation with the State of Delaware, to increase the Company’s authorized capital stock from 3.9 billion shares to 20 billion shares
(19.995 billion common). The November 30, 2016 filing of the Third Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation changed the par
value of the Company’s common stock from $0.001 to $0.0001 (the “Common Stock”).
On May 19, 2017, the Company filed the Second Amendment to the Third Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as
amended, with the State of Delaware, to implement a 1-for-3,000 reverse stock split of the Company’s outstanding Common Stock, which
became effective on May 23, 2017. The reverse stock split affected the outstanding Common Stock as well as all Common Stock
underlying convertible notes, warrants, convertible preferred stock and stock options outstanding immediately prior to the reverse stock
split. The number of authorized shares was not adjusted. All share and per share amounts in the accompanying historical consolidated
financial statements have been retroactively adjusted to reflect the change in the par value of the Common Stock and the 1-for-3,000
reverse stock split.
On December 27, 2017, the Company received (i) a written consent in lieu of a meeting of Stockholders (the “Written Consent”)
from holders of shares of voting securities representing approximately 78% of the total issued and outstanding shares of voting stock of the
Company; and (ii) a unanimous written consent of the Board to approve the following: the granting of discretionary authority to the Board,
at any time for a period of 12 months after the date of the Written Consent, to authorize the adoption of an amendment to the Company’s
Third Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended (the “Certificate of Incorporation”), to effect a reverse stock split of
the Company’s common stock at a ratio between 1 for 100 to 1 for 1,000, such ratio to be determined by the Board, or to determine not to
proceed with the reverse stock split (the “Reverse Stock Split”); and the granting of discretionary authority to the Board for a period of 12
months after the date of the Written Consent, to authorize the adoption of an amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation to decrease the
Company’s authorized capital stock, from 20,000,000,000 shares down to an amount not less than 50,000,000 shares, such decrease to be
determined by the Board, or to determine not to proceed with the decrease in authorized capital stock (the “Decrease in Authorized
Shares”). As of the date of this filing, the Company had not effected the Reverse Stock Split or the Decrease in Authorized Shares.
Going Concern
The Company’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming the Company will continue as a going concern.
As of December 31, 2017, we had a working capital deficit, stockholders’ deficit and accumulated deficit of approximately $10.6 million,
$9.7 million and $165.8 million, respectively, compared to a working capital deficit, stockholders’ deficit and accumulated deficit of
approximately $10.3 million, $9.0 million and $157.2 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2016. The change in the working capital
deficit was primarily due to operating losses for the period and capital raised through convertible debt financings. Net loss and net cash
used in operations was $8.7 million and $3 million, respectively in 2017.
We have incurred operating losses and net cash used in operating activities since the merger that created PositiveID in 2009. The
current 2017 operating losses are the result of research and development expenditures and selling, general and administrative expenses
related to our molecular diagnostics and Caregiver products. We expect our operating losses to continue through 2018. It’s management’s
opinion that these conditions raise substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern for a period of one year from the
issuance date of this report.
Our ability to continue as a going concern is dependent upon our ability to obtain financing to fund the continued development of
our products and to support working capital requirements. Until we are able to achieve operating profits, we will continue to seek to access
the capital markets. In fiscal 2017 and 2016, we raised approximately $2.7 and $3.8 million, respectively primarily from the issuance of
convertible debt. In addition, during the year ended December 31, 2017, we received approximately $1.4 million of net proceeds from the
sale to a strategic investor of a non-controlling interest in one of our subsidiaries (see Note 5).
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The Company intends to continue to access capital to provide funds to meet its working capital requirements for the near-term
future. In addition, and if necessary, the Company could reduce and/or delay certain discretionary research, development and related
activities and costs. However, there can be no assurances that the Company will be able to negotiate additional sources of equity or credit
for its long-term capital needs. The Company’s inability to have continuous access to such financing at reasonable costs could materially
and adversely impact its financial condition, results of operations and cash flows, and result in significant dilution to the Company’s
existing stockholders. The Company’s consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to recoverability of assets
and classifications of assets and liabilities that might be necessary should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern.
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidations
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned and majority-owned
subsidiaries of which all are inactive except for PDI, Thermomedics, ExcitePCR and ENG. All intercompany balances and transactions
have been eliminated in the consolidation.
On July 17, 2017, ExcitePCR Corporation, a majority-owned subsidiary of the Company, was formed to own and further the
development of the FireflyDX family of products. ExcitePCR was incorporated in the State of Delaware (see Note 5).
Non-Controlling Interest
On June 12, 2017, the Company sold 49.2% ownership of ENG, to a strategic investor. Accordingly, the Company is presenting
noncontrolling interests as a component of equity on its consolidated balance sheets under the heading “Non-controlling interest in
consolidated subsidiary” and reports noncontrolling interest net income or loss under the heading “Net (income) loss allocated to
noncontrolling interest in consolidated subsidiary” in the consolidated statements of operations based on its 50.2% ownership (see Note 5).
On August 24, 2017, the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary PositiveID Diagnostics, Inc. (collectively, the “Seller”),
entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement (“APA”) with its majority-owned subsidiary, ExcitePCR Corporation (the “Buyer”). Pursuant to
the APA, at closing, the Company will own approximately 91% of the Buyer post-closing of the sale. As of December 31, 2017, the Buyer
has not yet fulfilled the conditions to close the transaction which include the Buyer completing a financing of at least $3 million. (see Note
5).
On January 30, 2018, ENG, in order to raise working capital, sold additional ownership of ENG to the strategic investor and as a
result of this transaction, the Company’s equity interest in ENG has decreased to 24%. At December 31, 2017 the Company owned 50.2%
of ENG and controlled ENG’s assets. These assets represented between 50% and 55% of the Company’s overall assets. As a result of the
decreased ownership, as of January 30, 2018, the Company no longer controls ENG’s operations which will result in the deconsolidation of
ENG in 2018. The operations and assets of ENG represent a significant amount of the Company’s assets. The Company will prospectively
deconsolidate the balance sheet, results of operations and cash flows of ENG in its consolidated financial statements effective January 30,
2018. (see Note 5 and Note 15).
Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Significant
estimates during the reported periods include valuation of assets acquired and liabilities assumed in business combinations, allowance for
doubtful accounts receivable, inventories valuation, estimates of depreciable lives and valuation of property and equipment, valuation of
goodwill and intangible assets and related amortization period, valuation of loss and other contingencies, product warranty liabilities,
valuation of derivatives, valuation of beneficial conversion features, estimate of contingent earn-out liabilities, valuation of stock-based
compensation and an estimate of the deferred tax asset valuation allowance.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows, the Company considers all highly liquid investments with an
original maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. There were no cash equivalents at December 31, 2017 and
2016, respectively. The Company maintained its cash in various financial institutions during the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.
Balances were insured up to Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) limits. At times, cash deposits exceeded the federally insured
limits. There were no cash deposits that exceeded the federally insured limits as of December 31, 2017.
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Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable are stated at their estimated net realizable value. The Company reviews its accounts to estimate losses
resulting from the inability of its customers to make required payments. Any required allowance is based on specific analysis of past due
accounts and also considers historical trends of write-offs. Past due status is based on how recently payments have been received from
customers. The Company’s collection experience has been favorable reflecting a limited number of customers. As of December 31, 2017,
the recorded allowance was $2,000 and no allowance was recorded at December 31, 2016.
Inventories
Inventory consists of finished goods of our Caregiver® non-contact thermometers, and in our Mobile Lab Segment consists of
finished goods, standard and manufactured frames and bodies of vehicles, components of mobile units and other materials and is stated at
lower of cost and net realizable value on average basis (see Note 3). The Company early adopted ASU 2015-11 “Simplifying the
Measurement of Inventory” on January 1, 2016, and there was no material impact. Reserves, if necessary, are recorded to reduce inventory
to net realizable value based on assumptions about consumer demand, current inventory levels and product life cycles for the various
inventory items. These assumptions are evaluated periodically and are based on the Company’s business plan and from feedback from
customers and the product development team; however, estimates can vary significantly. As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, inventory
reserves were not material.
Reserves for Warranty
The Company records a reserve at the time product revenue is recorded based on historical rates. The reserve is reviewed during
the year and is adjusted, if appropriate, to reflect new product offerings or changes in experience. Actual warranty claims are tracked by
product line. The warranty reserves were approximately $37,000 and $17,000 for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016,
respectively, and are included in accrued expenses and other liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.
Equipment
Equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation, computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful
lives. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term or useful life, software is depreciated over 5 years, and
equipment is depreciated over periods ranging from 1 to 8 years. Repairs and maintenance which do not extend the useful life of the asset
are charged to expense as incurred. Gains and losses on sales and retirements are reflected in the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations. Depreciation expense for 2017 and 2016 was $48,000 and $42,000, respectively.
Equipment consists of the following (in thousands):
December 31,
Furniture and equipment
Machinery and equipment
Autos
Leasehold improvements
Total equipment
Less accumulated depreciation
Property and Equipment, Net

Est. Useful Lives
3-5 years
1-8 years
3 -5 years
1-3 years

2017

2016

$

75
74
55
7
211
(91)

$

62
71
35
7
175
(46)

$

120

$

129

Intangible Assets and Goodwill
Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization, computed using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives. Customer contracts and relationships are being amortized over a period of 3 years, patents and other intellectual property are
being amortized over a period of 5 years, and non-compete agreements are being amortized over 2 years (see Note 6).
The Company continually evaluates whether events or circumstances have occurred that indicate the remaining estimated useful
lives of its definite-lived intangible assets may warrant revision or that the remaining balance of such assets may not be recoverable. The
Company uses an estimate of the related undiscounted cash flows attributable to such asset over the remaining life of the asset in measuring
whether the asset is recoverable.
The Company records goodwill as the excess of the purchase price over the fair values assigned to the net assets acquired in
business combinations. Goodwill is allocated to reporting units as of the acquisition date for the purpose of goodwill impairment testing.
The Company’s reporting units are those businesses for which discrete financial information is prepared. ASC 350, “Intangibles —
Goodwill and Other” requires that intangible assets with indefinite lives, including goodwill, be evaluated on an annual basis for
impairment or more frequently if an event occurs or circumstances change that could potentially result in impairment. The goodwill
impairment test requires the allocation of goodwill and all other assets and liabilities to reporting units. If the fair value of the reporting unit
is less than the book value (including goodwill), then goodwill is reduced to its implied fair value and the amount of the write-down is
charged to operations. We are required to test our goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives for impairment at least annually.
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As a result of our analysis, which included the information available in January 2018, resulting in the dilution of the Company’s
interest in ENG, we have concluded based on information currently available, the carrying value of the ENG intangible asset and goodwill
were impaired. An aggregate amount of $342,327, representing the full impairment of ENG goodwill and intangible assets, was charged to
impairment expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations for the year ended December 31, 2017 (see Note 6).
Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, collectability of arrangement consideration is
reasonably assured, the arrangement fees are fixed or determinable and upon completion and delivery in accordance with the customer
contract or purchase order.
If at the outset of an arrangement, the Company determines that collectability is not reasonably assured, revenue is deferred until
the earlier of when collectability becomes probable or the receipt of payment. If there is uncertainty as to the customer’s acceptance of the
Company’s deliverables, revenue is not recognized until the earlier of receipt of customer acceptance or expiration of the acceptance
period. If at the outset of an arrangement, the Company determines that the arrangement fee is not fixed or determinable, revenue is
deferred until the arrangement fee becomes estimable, assuming all other revenue recognition criteria have been met.
To date, the Company has generated revenue from three sources: (1) professional services, (2) technology licensing, and (3)
product sales.
Specific revenue recognition criteria for each source of revenue is as follows:
(1) Revenues for professional services, which are of short term duration, are recognized when services are provided;
(2) Technology license revenue is recognized upon the completion of all terms of that license. Payments received in advance of
completion of the license terms are recorded as deferred revenue; and
(3) Revenue from sales of the Company’s products is recorded when risk of loss has passed to the buyer and criteria for revenue
recognition discussed above is met. Payments received in advance of delivery and revenue recognition are recorded as deferred
revenue.
If these criteria are not met, the arrangement is accounted for as one unit of accounting which would result in revenue being
recognized ratably over the contract term or being deferred until the earlier of when such criteria are met or when the last undelivered
element is delivered. If these criteria are met for each element and there is a relative selling price for all units of accounting in an
arrangement, the arrangement consideration is allocated to the separate units of accounting based on each unit’s relative selling price.
Concentrations
Concentration of Deferred Revenue
As of December 31, 2017, the Company had deferred revenue of approximately $0.2 million of which 61% and 39% were from
two of the Company’s customers. As of December 31, 2016, the Company had deferred revenue of approximately $0.4 million of which
54% and 20% were from two of the Company’s customers.
Concentration of Revenues
During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company had revenue of approximately $5.4 million of which 23%, 9% and 8%
were from three of the Company’s customers. During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company had revenue of approximately $5.6
million of which 26%, 13% and 12% were from three of the Company’s customers.
Concentration of Accounts Receivable
As of December 31, 2017, the Company had accounts receivable of approximately $0.1 million of which 30% and 24% were from
two of the Company’s customer. As of December 31, 2016, the Company had accounts receivable of approximately $0.3 million of which
55% and 14% were from two of the Company’s customers.
Concentration of Manufacturer
We currently buy our primary Thermomedics products from one third-party, sole source supplier who produces our products in its
plant in Taiwan. Although we have the right to engage other manufacturers, we have not done so. Accordingly, our reliance on this supplier
involves certain risks, including:
●

The cost of our products might increase, for reasons such as inflation and increases in the price of the precious metals, if any, or
other internal parts used to make them, which could cause our cost of goods to increase and reduce our gross margin and
profitability if any; and

●

Poor quality could adversely affect the reliability and reputation of our products.

Any of these uncertainties also could adversely affect our business reputation and otherwise impair our profitability and ability to
compete.
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Advertising Costs
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising costs for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 were minimal.
Shipping and Handling
Costs incurred by the Company for freight in and freight out are included in costs of revenue. Freight in and freight out costs
incurred for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 were minimal.
Legal Expenses
All legal costs are charged to expense as incurred.
Convertible Notes With Fixed Rate Conversion Options
The Company has entered into convertible notes, some of which contain fixed rate conversion features, whereby the outstanding
principal and accrued interest may be converted, by the holder, into common shares at a fixed discount to the price of the common stock at
the time of conversion. The Company measures the fair value of the notes at the time of issuance, which is the result of the share price
discount at the time of conversion and records the premium to interest expense on the note issuance date.
Accounting for Derivatives
The Company evaluates its convertible debt, options, warrants or other contracts to determine if those contracts or embedded
components of those contracts qualify as derivatives to be separately accounted for. The result of this accounting treatment is that under
certain circumstances the fair value of the derivative is marked-to-market each balance sheet date and recorded as a liability. In the event
that the fair value is recorded as a liability, the change in fair value is recorded in the statement of operations as other income or expense.
Upon conversion or exercise of a convertible note containing an embedded derivative instrument, the instrument is marked to fair value at
the conversion date and then that fair value is reclassified to equity and the note is reclassified to equity without gain or loss. Equity
instruments that are initially classified as equity that become subject to reclassification under this accounting standard are reclassified to
liability at the fair value of the instrument on the reclassification date.
Debt Issue Cost
Debt issuance cost paid to lenders, or third parties are recorded as debt discounts and amortized over the life of the underlying
debt instrument.
Fair Value of Financial Instruments and Fair Value Measurements
The Company measures its financial and non-financial assets and liabilities, as well as makes related disclosures, in accordance
with ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (“ASC Topic 820”). For certain of our financial instruments, including
cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to their short
maturities. Amounts recorded for notes payable, net of discount, also approximate fair value because current interest rates available to the
Company for debt with similar terms and maturities are substantially the same.
ASC Topic 820 provides guidance with respect to valuation techniques to be utilized in the determination of fair value of assets
and liabilities. Approaches include, (i) the market approach (comparable market prices), (ii) the income approach (present value of future
income or cash flow), and (iii) the cost approach (cost to replace the service capacity of an asset or replacement cost). ASC Topic 820
utilizes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value into three broad levels. The
following is a brief description of those three levels:
Level 1:

Observable inputs such as quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2:

Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable, either directly or indirectly. These include quoted prices for similar
assets or liabilities in active markets and quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not
active.

Level 3:

Unobservable inputs in which little or no market data exists, therefore developed using estimates and assumptions
developed by us, which reflect those that a market participant would use.
F-11

POSITIVEID CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016
Stock-Based Compensation
Stock-based compensation expenses are reflected in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations under selling, general
and administrative expenses and research and development expenses.
The Company estimates the fair value of stock-based compensation awards on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes-Merton
(“BSM”) option pricing model, which was developed for use in estimating the value of traded options that have no vesting restrictions and
are freely transferable. In addition, option valuation models require the input of highly subjective assumptions including the expected stock
price volatility. The BSM option pricing model considers, among other factors, the expected term of the award and the expected volatility
of the Company’s stock price. Expected terms are calculated using the Simplified Method, volatility is determined based on the Company’s
historical stock price trends and the discount rate is based upon treasury rates with instruments of similar expected terms. Warrants granted
to non-employees are accounted for in accordance with the measurement and recognition criteria of ASC Topic 505-50, Equity Based
Payments to Non-Employees.
Compensation expense for all stock-based employee and director compensation awards granted is based on the grant date fair
value estimated in accordance with the provisions of ASC Topic 718, Stock Compensation (“ASC Topic 718”). The Company recognizes
these compensation costs on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period of the award, which is generally the vesting term. Vesting
terms vary based on the individual grant terms.
Income Taxes
The Company accounts for income taxes under the asset and liability approach for the financial accounting and reporting of
income taxes. Deferred taxes are recorded based upon the tax impact of items affecting financial reporting and tax filings in different
periods. A valuation allowance is provided against net deferred tax assets when the Company determines realization is not currently judged
to be more likely than not.
The Company follows a two-step approach to recognizing and measuring uncertain tax positions. The first step is to evaluate the
tax position for recognition purposes by determining if the weight of available evidence indicates it is more likely than not that the position
will be sustained on audit, including resolution of related appeals or litigation processes, if any. The second step is to measure the tax
benefit as the largest amount which is more than 50% likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement. The Company considers many
factors when evaluating and estimating its tax positions and tax benefits, which may require periodic adjustments and which may not
accurately anticipate actual outcomes. Accordingly, the Company reports a liability for unrecognized tax benefits resulting from the
uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken on a tax return and recognizes interest and penalties, if any, related to uncertain tax
positions as interest expense. The Company does not have any uncertain tax positions at December 31, 2017 and 2016.
Research and Development Costs
The principal objective of our research and development program is to develop high-value molecular diagnostic products such as
FireflyDX, the M-BAND system and the Caregiver. We focus our efforts on four main areas: 1) engineering efforts to extend the
capabilities of our systems and to develop new systems; 2) assay development efforts to design, optimize and produce specific tests that
leverage the systems and chemistry we have developed; 3) target discovery research to identify novel micro RNA targets to be used in the
development of future assays; 4) chemistry research to develop innovative and proprietary methods to design and synthesize
oligonucleotide primers, probes and dyes to optimize the speed, performance and ease-of-use of our assays. Research and development cost
are expensed as incurred. Total research and development expense was $0.5 million and $0.4 million for the years ended December 31,
2017 and 2016, respectively.
Segments
The Company follows the guidance of ASC 280-10 for “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information.”
The Company operated in three business segments as of December 31, 2017: Molecular Diagnostics, Medical Devices and Mobile Labs
(see Note 14).
Loss Per Common Share
The Company presents basic net income (loss) per common share and, if applicable, diluted net income (loss) per share. Basic
income (loss) per common share is based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the year and after
preferred stock dividends. The calculation of diluted income (loss) per common share assumes that any dilutive convertible preferred shares
outstanding at the beginning of each year or the date issued were convertible at those dates, with preferred stock dividend requirements and
outstanding common shares adjusted accordingly. It also assumes that outstanding common shares were increased by shares issuable upon
exercise of those stock options and warrants for which the average period market price exceeds the exercise price, less shares that could
have been purchased by the Company with related proceeds. Additionally, shares issued upon conversion of convertible debt are included.
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The following potentially dilutive equity securities outstanding as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 were not included in the
computation of dilutive loss per common share because the effect would have been anti-dilutive:
December 31,
2017
Common shares issuable under:
Convertible notes
Convertible Series II Preferred Stock
Convertible Series J Preferred Stock
Stock options, restricted stocks and warrants

4,615,455,033
543,569,995
55,469
2,086
5,159,082,583

2016
4,429,144
1,102,798
33,810
2,127
5,567,897

The common shares issuable under the convertible notes, convertible Series II and Series J Preferred Stock as of December 31,
2016 was calculated using the closing bid price at December 31, 2016 which was $2.10. The prices used to calculate the common shares
issuable under the convertible notes, convertible Series II and Series J Preferred Stock were as follows: (i) closing bid price at December
31, 2017 which was $0.0021;(ii) fixed conversion prices of $0.0168 and $0.0022 for Series II as determined by the agreements;(iii) fixed
conversion price of $1.28 for Series J (based on Series J stated value of $1,000 per share) as determined by the agreement.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
There are no new accounting pronouncements during the year ended December 31, 2017 other than those described below that
affect the consolidated financial position of the Company or the results of its operations. Accounting Standard Updates which are not
effective until after December 31, 2017, and the potential effects on the Company’s consolidated financial position or results of its’
operations are discussed below.
ASU 2017-11:
In July 2017, FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”), 2017-11 —Earnings Per Share (Topic 260); Distinguishing
Liabilities from Equity (Topic 480); Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815): (Part I) Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with
Down Round Features, (Part II) Replacement of the Indefinite Deferral for Mandatorily Redeemable Financial Instruments of Certain
Nonpublic Entities and Certain Mandatorily Redeemable Noncontrolling Interests with a Scope Exception. The amendments in Part I of this
Update change the classification analysis of certain equity-linked financial instruments (or embedded features) with down round features.
When determining whether certain financial instruments should be classified as liabilities or equity instruments, a down round feature no
longer precludes equity classification when assessing whether the instrument is indexed to an entity’s own stock. The amendments also
clarify existing disclosure requirements for equity-classified instruments.
As a result, a freestanding equity-linked financial instrument (or embedded conversion option) no longer would be accounted for
as a derivative liability at fair value as a result of the existence of a down round feature. For freestanding equity classified financial
instruments, the amendments require entities that present earnings per share (EPS) in accordance with Topic 260 to recognize the effect of
the down round feature when it is triggered. That effect is treated as a dividend and as a reduction of income available to common
shareholders in basic EPS.
Convertible instruments with embedded conversion options that have down round features are now subject to the specialized
guidance for contingent beneficial conversion features (in Subtopic 470-20, Debt—Debt with Conversion and Other Options), including
related EPS guidance (in Topic 260).
The amendments in Part II of this Update recharacterize the indefinite deferral of certain provisions of Topic 480 that now are
presented as pending content in the Codification, to a scope exception. Those amendments do not have an accounting effect.
For public business entities, the amendments in Part I of this Update are effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those
fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2018. For all other entities, the amendments in Part I of this Update are effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2019, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020. Early adoption is permitted
for all entities, including adoption in an interim period. If an entity early adopts the amendments in an interim period, any adjustments
should be reflected as of the beginning of the fiscal year that includes that interim period. The amendments in Part II of this Update do not
require any transition guidance because those amendments do not have an accounting effect. The Company is currently evaluating the
impact of this accounting standard.
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ASU 2017-08:
In March 2017, FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”), 2017-08—Receivables—Nonrefundable Fees and Other
Costs (Subtopic 310-20): Premium Amortization on Purchased Callable Debt Securities. The amendments in this Update more closely align
the amortization period of premiums and discounts to expectations incorporated in market pricing on the underlying securities. In most
cases, market participants price securities to the call date that produces the worst yield when the coupon is above current market rates (that
is, the security is trading at a premium) and price securities to maturity when the coupon is below market rates (that is, the security is
trading at a discount) in anticipation that the borrower will act in its economic best interest. As a result, the amendments more closely align
interest income recorded on bonds held at a premium or a discount with the economics of the underlying instrument.
For public business entities, the amendments in this Update are effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal
years, beginning after December 15, 2018. For all other entities, the amendments are effective for fiscal years beginning after December
15, 2019, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020. Early adoption is permitted, including adoption in an
interim period. If an entity early adopts the amendments in an interim period, any adjustments should be reflected as of the beginning of the
fiscal year that includes that interim period. This updated guidance is not expected to have a material impact on our results of operations,
cash flows or financial condition.
ASU 2017-04:
In January 2017, FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”), 2017-04 — Intangibles—Goodwill and Other (Topic 350):
Simplifying the Test for Goodwill Impairment. Under the amendments in this Update, an entity should perform its annual, or interim,
goodwill impairment test by comparing the fair value of a reporting unit with its carrying amount. An entity should recognize an
impairment charge for the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds the reporting unit’s fair value; however, the loss recognized
should not exceed the total amount of goodwill allocated to that reporting unit. Additionally, an entity should consider income tax effects
from any tax-deductible goodwill on the carrying amount of the reporting unit when measuring the goodwill impairment loss, if applicable.
The Board also eliminated the requirements for any reporting unit with a zero or negative carrying amount to perform a qualitative
assessment and, if it fails that qualitative test, to perform Step 2 of the goodwill impairment test. Therefore, the same impairment
assessment applies to all reporting units. An entity is required to disclose the amount of goodwill allocated to each reporting unit with a
zero or negative carrying amount of net assets.
A public business entity that is an SEC filer should adopt the amendments in this Update for its annual or any interim goodwill
impairment tests in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. Early adoption is permitted for interim or annual goodwill impairment
tests performed on testing dates after January 1, 2017. This updated guidance is not expected to have a material impact on our results of
operations, cash flows or financial condition.
ASU 2016-20:
In December 2016, FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”), 2016-20 — Technical Corrections and Improvements to
Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The amendments in this Update affect the guidance in Update 2014-09, which is not
yet effective. The effective date and transition requirements for the amendments are the same as the effective date and transition
requirements for Topic 606 (and any other Topic amended by Update 2014-09). Accounting Standards Update No. 2015-14, Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (Topic 606): Deferral of the Effective Date, defers the effective date of Update 2014-09 by one year. This
updated guidance is not expected to have a material impact on our results of operations, cash flows or financial condition (see ASU 2016-12
and ASU 2014-09 below).
ASU 2016-12:
In May 2016, FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”), 2016-12— Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic
606): Narrow-Scope Improvements and Practical Expedients. The amendments in this Update affect the guidance in Accounting Standards
Update 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), which is not yet effective. The effective date and transition
requirements for the amendments in this Update are the same as the effective date and transition requirements for Topic 606 (and any other
Topic amended by Update 2014-09). Accounting Standards Update 2015-14, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606):
Deferral of the Effective Date, defers the effective date of Update 2014-09 by one year to December 15, 2017. This updated guidance is not
expected to have a material impact on our results of operations, cash flows or financial condition (see ASU 2016-20, 10 and ASU 2014-09
below).
ASU 2016-10:
In April 2016, FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”), 2016-10—Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic
606): Identifying Performance Obligations and Licensing. The amendments in this Update affect the guidance in Accounting Standards
Update 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), which is not yet effective. The effective date and transition
requirements for the amendments in this Update are the same as the effective date and transition requirements in Topic 606 (and any other
Topic amended by Update 2014-09). Accounting Standards Update 2015-14, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606):
Deferral of the Effective Date, defers the effective date of Update 2014-09 by one year to annual reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2017. This updated guidance is not expected to have a material impact on our results of operations, cash flows or financial
condition (see ASU 2016-20, 12 above and ASU 2014-09 below).

F-14

POSITIVEID CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016
ASU 2016-02:
In February 2016, FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”), 2016-02— “Leases (Topic 842), Section A—Leases:
Amendments to the FASB Accounting Standards Codification; Section B—Conforming Amendments Related to Leases: Amendments to
the FASB Accounting Standards Codification; Section C—Background Information and Basis for Conclusions”. Effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2018, including interim periods within those fiscal years, for any of the following:
1.

A public business entity

2.

A not-for-profit entity that has issued, or is a conduit bond obligor for, securities that are traded, listed, or quoted on an exchange or
an over-the-counter market

3.

An employee benefit plan that files financial statements with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC).

For all other entities, the amendments in this Update are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019, and interim
periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020. Early application of the amendments in this Update is permitted for all
entities. This updated guidance is not expected to have a material impact on our results of operations, cash flows or financial condition.
ASU 2014-09:
In June 2014, FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2014-09, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”. The
update gives entities a single comprehensive model to use in reporting information about the amount and timing of revenue resulting from
contracts to provide goods or services to customers. The proposed ASU, which would apply to any entity that enters into contracts to
provide goods or services, would supersede the revenue recognition requirements in Topic 605, Revenue Recognition, and most industryspecific guidance throughout the Industry Topics of the Codification. Additionally, the update would supersede some cost guidance
included in Subtopic 605-35, Revenue Recognition – Construction-Type and Production-Type Contracts. The update removes
inconsistencies and weaknesses in revenue requirements and provides a more robust framework for addressing revenue issues and more
useful information to users of financial statements through improved disclosure requirements. In addition, the update improves
comparability of revenue recognition practices across entities, industries, jurisdictions, and capital markets and simplifies the preparation of
financial statements by reducing the number of requirements to which an entity must refer (see ASU 2016-20, 12 and 10 above).
3. Inventories
Inventories consisted of the following (in thousands):
December 31,
2017
Finished goods of non-contact thermometers
Materials inventory
Mobile vehicle inventory

$

$

2016
27
315
91
433

$

$

28
462
188
678

4. Acquisitions/Dispositions
ENG Mobile Systems Acquisition
On December 24, 2015, the Company acquired all of the outstanding common stock of E-N-G Mobile Systems, Inc. (“ENG”)
from its sole shareholder (the “Seller”). Pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, as consideration at the time of closing of the Acquisition,
PositiveID paid the Seller $750,000 in cash and issued a convertible secured promissory note to the Seller in the amount of $150,000. The
Company has also entered into a two-year consulting agreement with the Seller. The consulting agreement was determined not to represent
additional purchase price.
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The Purchase Agreement also provided for earn-out payments that could be earned by ENG to the benefit of the Seller. Each EarnOut Payment, was calculated at 5% of the revenue actually recognized and realized from each of the contracts and purchase orders
identified, with an earn-out value indicated for each on the signed backlog schedule (the “Signed Backlog Schedule”) subsequent to
Closing. The Earn-Out Payments were subject to adjustment in conjunction with the finalization of the net asset adjustment provided for in
the Purchase Agreement. The Company recorded a contingent earn-out liability of approximately $123,000, as a current liability, as
reflected in the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2015, and an offsetting recovery asset of approximately $111,000. During
the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company and the seller of ENG agreed to the final measurement of the earn-out consideration
taking into account the finalization of the net asset balance, with total earnout payments of approximately $39,000. As a result, the
Company recorded an additional expense of $27,300 during the year ended December 31, 2016 which is included in change in acquisition
obligations in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations. The contingent earn-out liability related to ENG had no balance as
of December 31, 2016.
The estimated purchase price of the acquisition totaled $912,000, comprised of $750,000 in cash, a convertible seller note of
$150,000 (“ENG Note”), and the fair value of the contingent consideration estimated at approximately $123,000, less an estimated
recovery based on the closing net worth of ENG estimated at $111,000 at December 31, 2015. The fair value of the contingent
consideration was estimated based upon the present value of the expected future payouts of the contingent consideration and was subject to
change upon the finalization of the purchase accounting which occurred during the year ended December 31, 2016, as discussed in the
paragraph above. In connection with the issuance of the ENG Note, the Company computed a premium of $50,000 as the note, at the time
of issuance, was considered stock settled debt under ASC 480, all of which was amortized immediately as a non-cash expense charged to
interest expense in 2016.
The ENG note matured on December 31, 2016 and had an outstanding balance of $157,664 on the maturity date. The ENG note
was amended on December 31, 2016. Pursuant to the amendment, beginning January 1, 2017 (i) the holder agreed to waive all events of
default so long as the Company met the obligations under this amendment; (ii) the note accrued 8% interest per annum; (iii) the holder
agreed to eliminate all conversion features of the original note which resulted in the reclassification of the $50,000 interest expense, as
discussed in the paragraph above, to other income as gain on extinguishment of debt;(iv) the Company made monthly payments of $8,000
for the first six months of 2017 and the remaining outstanding principal and interest balance on the ENG note was paid in full as of June
30, 2017, from the proceeds on sale of non-controlling interest (see Note 5).
The Company allocated part of the ENG purchase price to goodwill and intangible assets as reflected in the consolidated balance
sheet as of December 31, 2015 and continually assess potential impairment of these assets. As a result of our analysis, which included the
information available in January 2018, resulting in the dilution of the Company’s interest in ENG, we have concluded based on information
currently available, the carrying value of the ENG intangible asset and goodwill were impaired. An aggregate amount of $342,327,
representing the full impairment of ENG goodwill and intangible assets, was charged to impairment expense in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations for the year ended December 31, 2017 (see Note 6).
The Company acquired ENG for a number of reasons including the experience of its workforce, the quality and long history of its
product offerings, its prospects for sales and profit growth, and the Company’s ability to leverage its business relationships to create new
growth opportunities.
Thermomedics Acquisition
On December 4, 2015, the Company entered into several agreements related to its acquisition of all of the outstanding common
stock of Thermomedics, Inc. (“Thermomedics”). One of those agreements was a Management Services and Control Agreement, dated
December 4, 2015 (the “Control Agreement”), between the Company, Thermomedics, and Sanomedics, Inc. (“Sanomedics”), whereby
PositiveID was appointed the manager of Thermomedics. In a separate agreement, the Company entered into a First Amendment to the
Stock Purchase Agreement (the “Amendment”) with Sanomedics. The original Stock Purchase Agreement (“Purchase Agreement”) was
entered into on October 21, 2015 and defines the agreed upon terms of the Company’s acquisition of all of the common stock of
Thermomedics from Sanomedics. As a result of the Company assuming control of Thermomedics on December 4, 2015, it determined,
pursuant to ASC 805-10-25-6, that December 4, 2015 was the acquisition date of Thermomedics for accounting purposes.
The estimated purchase price of the acquisition totaled $484,000, comprised of $175,000 in cash, Series J preferred stock
consideration of $125,000, and the fair value of the contingent consideration estimated at approximately $184,000. The fair value of the
contingent consideration was estimated based upon the present value of the expected future payouts of the contingent consideration and is
subject to change upon the finalization of the purchase accounting.
On December 4, 2015, the Board of Directors authorized and on December 7, 2015, the Company filed with the State of
Delaware, a Certificate of Designations of Preferences, Rights and Limitations of Series J Preferred Stock. The Series J Preferred Stock
ranks; (a) senior with respect to dividends and right of liquidation with the Company’s common stock (b) pari passu with respect to
dividends and right of liquidation with the Company’s Series I Convertible Preferred Stock; and (c) junior with respect to dividends and
right of liquidation to all existing and future indebtedness of the Company. Without the prior written consent of Holders holding a majority
of the outstanding shares of Series J Preferred Stock, the Company may not issue any Preferred Stock that is senior to the Series J Preferred
Stock in right of dividends and liquidation. At any time after the date of the issuance of shares of Series J Preferred Stock, the Corporation
will have the right, at the Corporation’s option, to redeem all or any portion of the shares of Series J Preferred Stock at a price per share
equal to 100% of the $1,000 per share stated value of the shares being redeemed. Series J Preferred Stock is not entitled to dividends,
interest and voting rights. The Series J Preferred Stock is convertible into the Company’s common stock, at stated value, at a conversion
price equal to 100% of the arithmetic average of the VWAP of the common stock for the fifteen trading days prior to the six-month

anniversary of the Issuance Date.
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On August 25, 2016, PositiveID completed the acquisition and entered into an agreement with the Sanomedics and Thermomedics
(the “August Agreement”), which amends certain terms of the Purchase Agreement and terminates the Control Agreement. The
amendments to the Purchase Agreement include: (a) that any legal expense or losses incurred by PositiveID after June 30, 2016 related to
the Exergen litigation shall have the effect of reducing any future earnouts that may be owed to the Sanomedics, dollar for dollar; (b)
PositiveID and the Sanomedics also agreed to settle the final closing net working capital adjustment through a reduction of the Series J
Preferred Stock shares to be released from escrow. As a result, the 125 shares of Preferred Series J stock originally issued shall be released
from escrow as follows: 71 shares to Sanomedics and 54 shares returned to the Company’s treasury. As of December 31, 2017, the 71
shares Series J preferred stock is convertible into 55,469 of the Company’s common shares at fixed conversion price of $1.28 (based on the
stated value of $1,000 per share) as determined by the agreement (see Note 2).
In connection with the acquisition, the Company issued a Convertible Promissory Note to the former CEO of the Sanomedics and
President of Thermomedics (the “Holder”), dated August 25, 2016 in the aggregate principal amount of $75,000 (the “Note”). The Note
bears an interest rate of 5% and is due and payable before or on August 25, 2017. The Note may be converted by the Holder at any time
after February 28, 2017 into shares of Company’s common stock at a price equal to a 10% discount to the average of the three lowest daily
VWAPs (volume weighted average price) of the Company’s common stock as reported for the 10 trading days prior to the day the Holder
requests conversion. Any conversion will be limited by: (i) Holder may not make more than one conversion every ten trading days, and (ii)
the amount of conversion shares at any conversion may not be more than the total number of shares of Common Stock traded over the ten
trading days preceding the conversion notice multiplied by 5%. The Note may be prepaid in accordance with the terms set forth in the Note.
The Note also contains certain representations, warranties, and events of default including if the Company fails to pay when due any
amount owed on the Note and increases in the amount of the principal and interest rates under the Note in the event of such defaults. In the
event of default, at the option of the Holder and in the Holder’s sole discretion, the Holder may consider the Note immediately due and
payable. The Company recorded this expense of $75,000 in the change in acquisition obligations in the accompanying consolidated
statement of operations. In connection with the issuance of the Note, the Company computed a premium of $8,333 as the note, at the time
of issuance, was considered a stock settled debt under ASC 480, all of which was amortized immediately as a non-cash expense charged to
interest expense.
The Note was amended on June 29, 2017. Pursuant to the amendment (i) the holder agreed to waive all events of default so long as
the Company met the obligations under this amendment; (ii) the holder agreed to eliminate all conversion features of the original note
which resulted in the reclassification of the $8,333 interest expense, as discussed in the paragraph above, to other income as gain on
extinguishment of debt;(iii) the Company agreed to a payment amortization schedule in which the Company pays monthly payments of
$5,000 until the note is paid in full. As of December 31, 2017, the outstanding principal and interest on the remaining note was $44,168
(see Note 9).
In consideration for the Note, the Company entered into a Consent and Release by and between the Company, Thermomedics, the
Holder and Vitacura LLC, a Florida limited liability corporation (“Vitacura”), which is wholly owned by the Holder (the “Release”),
pursuant to which the Holder and Vitacura agreed to release the Company and Thermomedics from any and all causes of action.
In connection with the acquisition, additional earn-out payments of up to $750,000 for each of the fiscal years ending December
31, 2017 and 2016 may be earned by the Thermomedics if certain revenue thresholds are met as described in the Purchase Agreement. Such
earn-out payments, if any, will consist of 25% in cash, up to $187,000 and 75% and in shares of preferred stock of the Company, up to 563
shares of Preferred Stock, for each of the fiscal years ending December 31, 2017 and 2016. The Company recorded a contingent earn-out
liability of $184,000, as a non-current liability in 2015. The Company adjusted the contingent earn-out liability to its fair value during the
year ended December 31, 2016. As of December 31, 2016, the estimated value of the earn-out liability was nil.
As a result of the August Agreement and the revaluation of the earn-out, the Company reduced other assets by $12,000, reduced
goodwill by $17,000, reduced Preferred Series J by $54,000, reduced the contingent earn-out liability by $184,000 and recognized a net
gain of $209,000 included in change in acquisition obligations, in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations for the year
ended December 31, 2016.
The Company acquired Thermomedics for a number of reasons including the quality of its Caregiver® product, its prospects for
sales and profit growth, its management team strengths in sales and marketing FDA cleared medical devices, and their regulatory
experience.
Under the acquisition method of accounting, the estimated purchase price of the acquisitions was allocated to net tangible and
identifiable intangible assets and liabilities of Thermomedics and ENG assumed based on their estimated fair values. The estimated fair
values of certain assets and liabilities have been estimated by management and are subject to change upon the finalization of the fair value
assessments.
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Thermomedics
(in thousands)
Assets acquired:
Net tangible assets
Customer contracts and relationships
Other assets
Patents and other intellectual property
Goodwill
Liabilities acquired:
Current liabilities
Long term debt
Total estimated purchase price

$

$

ENG
(in thousands)
35
240
12
178
108
573
(89)
484

$

2,584
238
7
200
3,029
(2,116)
(1)
912

$

Contingent earn-out liability for Thermomedics and ENG as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 is as follows (in thousands):
Contingent Earn-Out Liability (In thousands):
Balance of contingent earn-out liability as of December 31, 2015
Payment during 2016
Change in FV of liability during 2016 included in change in acquisitions, net
Balance of contingent earn-out liability as of December 31, 2016
Change in FV of liability during 2017
Balance of contingent earn-out liability as of December 31, 2017

$

$
$

307
(39)
(268)
—
—
—

Sale of VeriChip Business to Former Related Party
Throughout the course of 2012 to 2014, the Company and VeriTeQ, a business run by a former related party (CEO of the
Company through 2011), entered into a number of agreements for the intellectual property related to the Company’s embedded biosensor
portfolio, which ultimately resulted in a GlucoChip and a Settlement Agreement, entered into on October 20, 2014 (the “VeriTeQ
Agreements”), under which the final element of the Company’s implantable microchip business was sold to VeriTeQ.
Pursuant to the VeriTeQ agreements, the Company holds a series of convertible notes that was received as payment for shared
services payments that the Company made on behalf of VeriTeQ during 2011 and 2012, and advances. As of December 31, 2017, the
Company had outstanding convertible notes receivable from VeriTeQ of $449,980, inclusive of accrued interest, and is also owed $541,175
of default principal and interest for a total amount receivable of $991,155. All amounts owed from VeriTeQ are fully reserved in all periods
presented.
The Company also holds a five-year warrant dated November 13, 2013, with original terms entitling the Company to purchase
300,000 shares of VeriTeQ common stock at a price of $2.84 which expires November 13, 2018. Pursuant to the terms of the warrant, in
particular the full quantity and pricing reset provisions, the warrant had an original dollar value of $852,000 and can be exercised using a
cashless exercise feature. As of December 31, 2015, the Company exercised a portion of the warrant and recognized a gain of $355,600. As
of December 31, 2017, the Company holds approximately 256,960 warrants with a dollar value of $729,000. The value of the warrant has
also been fully reserved in all periods presented.
As VeriTeQ is an idle company and not capitalized, the Company plans to continue to fully reserve all note receivable and warrant
balances. If and when proceeds are realized in the future, gains will be recognized.
License of iglucose
On February 15, 2013, the Company licensed its FDA cleared iglucose ™ system to SGMC for up to $2 million based on potential
future revenues of glucose test strips sold by SGMC. These revenues will range between $0.0025 and $0.005 per strip. A person with
diabetes who tests three times per day will use over 1,000 strips per year.
iglucose™ uses machine-to-machine technology to automatically communicate a diabetic’s glucose readings to the iglucose™
online database. iglucose™ is intended to provide next generation, real-time data to improve diabetes management and help ensure patient
compliance, data accuracy and insurance reimbursement.
In consideration for the rights and licenses, SGMC shall pay to the Company the amount set forth below for each glucose test strip
sold by SGMC and any sublicenses of SGMC for which results are posted by SGMC via its communications servers (the “Consideration”):
(i)

$0.0025 per strip sold until SGMC has paid aggregate Consideration of $1,000,000; and

(ii)

$0.005 per strip sold thereafter until SGMC has paid aggregate Consideration of $2,000,000; provided, however, that the
aggregate Consideration payable by SGMC pursuant to the SGMC Agreement shall in no event exceed $2,000,000.

The Company has been informed that the iglucose ™ has received FDA 501(k) clearance, and that commercial sales are expected
to begin in 2018 however, no such guarantees can be made. As of December 31, 2017, no royalties have been realized from this agreement.
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5. Non-Controlling Interest in Consolidated Subsidiary
ExcitePCR
On August 24, 2017, the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary PositiveID Diagnostics, Inc. (collectively, the “Seller”),
entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement (“APA”) with its majority-owned subsidiary, ExcitePCR Corporation (the “Buyer”). Pursuant to
the APA, at closing, the Seller will sell and deliver to the Buyer all right, title and interest in all assets used or useful in connection with the
operation of the FireflyDX technology, which consists of the FireflyDX intellectual property and that of its predecessor, the Dragonfly Dx
technology and products, along with patents, the applicable know how used in the development of the FireflyDX and Dragonfly Dx
technology, and breadboard prototypes of both products (the “FireflyDX Technology”). The consideration to be paid by the Buyer to the
Seller pursuant to the APA, will be 10,500,000 shares of common stock of the Buyer, and the Company will own approximately 91% of the
Buyer post-closing of the sale (prior to any financing). As a condition to the Seller’s obligation to close the transaction, the Buyer shall
have completed a financing transaction with net proceeds to the Buyer of at least $3 million. Additional conditions and deliverables at
closing include a patent assignment agreement, accounting services agreement, license agreement, and certain required consents from third
parties.
The Company believes that the FireflyDX Technology has significant potential value to stockholders. The parties have entered
into the APA so the Buyer can secure financing and then independently pursue the development, improvement and commercialization of
the Firefly Technology. The current stockholders of the Buyer include two third-party individuals, who are working with the Buyer to
develop and execute the business plan of the Buyer. Lyle L. Probst (the Company’s President) is the Chief Executive Officer of the Buyer
and William J. Caragol (the Company’s Chairman and CEO), is the Chairman of the Buyer. As of December 31, 2017, the Buyer and the
Company had not yet closed the transaction.
ENG Mobile Systems
On June 12, 2017, the Company entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with ENG, a California corporation and
Holdings ENG, LLC, a Florida limited liability company, and an affiliate of East West Resources Corporation (the “Purchaser”), pursuant
to which (i) the Company sold 49.8%, or two hundred ninety nine (299) shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (the “Purchased
Shares”), of ENG, (ii) the Company granted Purchaser an option to purchase up to an additional 10%, or sixty (60) shares of Series A
Convertible Preferred Stock, of ENG from the Company’s holdings (the “Option Shares”) and (iii) ENG, pursuant to a stock option
agreement (the “Stock Option Agreement”), granted Purchaser an option to purchase 1%, or three (3) shares of Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock, of ENG directly from ENG (collectively, the “Transaction”). The Company received one million four hundred ninety-five
thousand dollars ($1,495,000) or $5,000 per share of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, in exchange for the Purchased Shares. The
exercise price payable to the Company or ENG for each of the Company’s Option Shares is five thousand dollars ($5,000).
Immediately prior to the closing of the Transaction, ENG effected a recapitalization so that there are two classes of its stock as
follows: (i) 2,000 authorized shares of common stock, $0.001 par value, with 241 shares, issued and outstanding and held by the Company;
and (ii) 1,000 authorized shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, $0.001 par value (the “Series A Convertible Stock”), with 359
shares of Series A Convertible Stock issued and outstanding and held by the Company prior to the closing of the Transaction. After the
closing of the transaction, the Company owned 60 shares of Series A Convertible Stock. Immediately following the closing of the
Transaction, the Company owned 241 common shares and 60 shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock of ENG, or 50.2% of the
voting interest in ENG; immediately following the closing of the Transaction, the Purchaser owned 299 shares of Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock of ENG, or 49.8% of the voting interest in ENG.
A summary of the Series A Convertible Stock of ENG is set forth below:
Voting and Protective Provisions. The Series A Convertible Stock shall vote together with the common stock of ENG, except as
required by law. The Series A Convertible Stock contain protective provisions such that the vote of a majority of the outstanding shares of
Series A Stock is required to engage in certain acts, including (i) file a petition in bankruptcy; (ii) create, authorize, authorize the creation
of, issue or sell any equity security, any security convertible into or exercisable for any equity security or option; (iii) permit any
consolidation, reorganization or merger of ENG with or into any other person; (iv) acquire all or substantially all of the properties, assets or
capital stock of any other corporation or entity; (v) sell, lease or otherwise dispose of assets or properties of ENG in an aggregate amount in
excess of $100,000 in any calendar year, other than in the ordinary course of business; (vi) grant any lien on or security interest in any of
ENG’s assets other than in the ordinary course of business; (vii) incur any indebtedness for borrowed funds, excluding any draws on any
line of credit in the ordinary course of business; (viii) create or authorize the creation of any debt security; (ix) approve or execute any
contract, agreement or lease giving rise to a financial commitment or obligation of ENG other than in the ordinary course of business; (x)
purchase or redeem or pay any dividend on any capital stock, make any distribution or authorize a stock split or split-up; (xi) increase or
decrease the size of the Board of Directors of ENG; (xii) create, or authorize the creation of, a subsidiary; (xiii) make any loan or advance
to any person, except advances in the ordinary course of business; (xiv) guarantee any indebtedness except for trade accounts of ENG
arising in the ordinary course of business; (xv) make any investment inconsistent with any investment policy approved by the Board of
Directors of ENG; (xvi) enter into or be a party to any transaction with (A) any director, officer or employee of ENG or any “associate” (as
defined in Rule 12b-2 promulgated under the Exchange Act) of any such person or (B) any “affiliate” (as defined in Rule 12b-2
promulgated under the Exchange Act); (xvii) change the principal business of ENG, enter new lines of business, or exit the current line of
business; (xviii) sell, assign, license, pledge or encumber material technology or intellectual property, other than licenses granted in the
ordinary course of business; (xix) amend the Articles of Incorporation or the Bylaws of ENG (xx) purchase, option or otherwise acquire
any real property or any interest therein; (xxi) dissolve, wind-up or cease operations of ENG; or (xxii) enter into any corporate strategic
relationship, joint venture or partnership.
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Dividends. Dividends may not be declared on any class of stock unless paid pro rata on all classes of stock.
Liquidation. Upon on any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of ENG, after payment or provision for payment of debts and
other liabilities of ENG, before any distribution or payment is made to the holders common stock or any junior securities, the holders of
Series A Convertible Stock shall first be entitled to be paid out of the assets of the Company available for distribution to its stockholders an
amount equal to $5,000 per share (subject to adjustment in the event of any stock dividend, stock split, combination or other similar
recapitalization with respect to the Series A Convertible Stock), plus any dividends declared but unpaid on such shares. The occurrence of a
merger or consolidation or sale of substantially all of the assets of ENG shall be deemed to be a liquidation of ENG.
In addition, in connection with the Transaction, the Company entered into an Executive Services Agreement, dated June 12, 2017,
with Purchaser and Mr. Lyle Probst, the Company’s President (the “Executive Services Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company has
agreed to provide ENG the services of Mr. Probst to continue to act as President of ENG (the “Services”). As compensation for the
Services, ENG will pay the Company nine thousand five hundred twenty-five dollars ($9,525) per month, for a twelve-month period.
The Company retained control over ENG and accounted for sale of the non-controlling interest as an equity transaction in
accordance with ASC 810-10-42-23. No gain or loss was recognized in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations. The
difference between the fair value of consideration, transaction costs and carrying amount of the non-controlling interest resulted in “net
gain” in the amount of $1,242,083 which was recorded in the in the equity section of the accompanying balance sheet in additional paid in
capital. The carrying amount of the non-controlling interest was recorded separate from the Company’s total equity under “non-controlling
interest in consolidated subsidiaries” and was adjusted to reflect the change in ownership interest in the subsidiary as of June 30, 2017. The
net gain and adjustment to the carrying amount of the non-controlling interest as of December 31, 2017 are detailed below:
Sale of non-controlling interest reconciliation:
Fair value of consideration
Transaction costs
Cash received
Equity allocated to non-controlling interest
PSID common stock issued as fee (transaction cost)
Net gain on sale of non-controlling interest

$

$

Non-controlling interest balance reconciliation:
Beginning balance, January 1, 2017
Equity allocated to non-controlling interest, June 12, 2017
Loss allocated to non-controlling interest during 2017
Ending balance, December 31, 2017

$

$

1,495,000
(107,255)
1,387,745
(67,662)
(78,000)
1,242,083

—
67,662
(166,216)
(98,554)

On January 30, 2018, ENG entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement (“SPA II”) with the Purchaser, pursuant to which (i) ENG
sold six hundred forty one (641) shares (the “Shares”) of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock of ENG for a purchase price of
approximately $312 per share, for an aggregate purchase price of $200,000; and (ii) the Company declined to exercise its right to purchase
a pro rata portion of the Shares and has approved the issuance and sale of the Shares by ENG to the Purchaser, and waived all rights it may
have with respect to ENG’s purchase of the Shares. In connection with the transaction, the Company also committed to issue a promissory
note in the amount of $54,000 to ENG for settlement of past and current intercompany transactions and liabilities. As a result of this
transaction the Company’s equity interest in ENG has decreased to 24% and prospectively the Company will deconsolidate the balance
sheet, results of operations and cash flows of ENG in its consolidated financial statements and will account for ENG under the equity
method of accounting. At December 31, 2017 the Company owned 50.2% of ENG and controlled ENG’s assets. These assets represented
between 50% and 55% of the Company’s overall assets. As the result of the Company owning 24% of ENG as of January 30, 2018 and no
longer controlling ENG’s assets, the Company will not consolidate the results of ENG, comprising a significant amount of the Company’s
assets, as of January 30, 2018.
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6. Intangible Assets and Goodwill
Intangible assets consist of the following as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 (in thousands):
December 31,
2017
Gross
Carrying
Amount
Customer contracts and
relationships
Patents and other intellectual
property
Non-compete agreements

$

708

$

1,401
169
2,278

2016

Accumulated
Amortization

Impairment

Gross
Carrying
Amount

Net

$

(425) $

(143) $

140

$

(1,347)
(169)
(1,941) $

—
—
(143) $

54
—
194

Accumulated
Amortization

$

708

$

1,401
169
2,278

Net

$

(330) $

378

$

(1,287)
(169)
(1,786) $

114
—
492

Amortization of intangible assets amounted to approximately $155,000 and $257,000 for the year ended December 31, 2017 and
2016 respectively. Estimated future amortization expense is as follows (in thousands):
2018
2019
2020

$

102
48
44
194

$

In assessing potential impairment of the intangible assets recorded in connection with PDI, ENG and Thermomedics, as of
December 31, 2017, we performed discounted cash flow analyses and comparable assets analyses on a per segment basis. As a result of our
analysis, which included the information available in January 2018, resulting in the dilution of the Company’s interest in ENG, we have
concluded based on information currently available, the carrying value of the ENG intangible asset was impaired and the Company
recognized an impairment charge of $142,800 during the year ended December 31, 2017. We also concluded, from our analysis, that the
intangible assets recorded in connection with the Thermomedics acquisition were not impaired at December 31, 2017.
Goodwill consists of the following as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 (in thousands):
December 31,
2017
PDI
Thermomedics
ENG

$

$

2016
510
91
—
601

$

$

510
91
199
800

In assessing potential impairment of the goodwill recorded in connection with the PDI, ENG and Thermomedics, the Company
performed its annual impairment test of goodwill as of December 31, 2017. As a result of our annual impairment test, we have concluded
based on information currently available, which included the information available in January 2018, resulting in the dilution of the
Company’s interest in ENG, the carrying value of the ENG goodwill was impaired and the Company recognized an impairment charge of
$199,527 during the year ended December 31, 2017. We also concluded, from our annual impairment test, that the goodwill recorded from
the acquisition of Thermomedics and PDI were not impaired at December 31, 2017.
An aggregate amount of $342,327, representing the full impairment of ENG goodwill and intangible assets, was charged to
impairment expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations for the year ended December 31, 2017.
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7. Deferred revenue
During the course of its typical projects, the Company’s subsidiary, ENG requires front end funding to acquire the required
materials and begin production. Frequently, customers are billed in advance of production to secure the necessary resources to facilitate
timely completion of the project. As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company had $0.2 million and $0.4 million of deferred revenue,
respectively, primarily relating to its ENG subsidiary operations.
8. Accrued Expenses
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities consisted of the following as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 (in thousands):
December 31,
2017
Accrued compensation
Series II Preferred Stock dividends
Other

$

2016
575
235
373
1,183

$

$

467
54
286
807

$

9. Equity and Debt Financing Agreements and Fair Value Measurements
Convertible Note Financings
Short-term convertible debt for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows (in thousands):
2017
Accrued
Interest

Notes
Convertible notes with accrued interest accounted for as
stock settled debt
Conversion premiums

$

Convertible notes with embedded derivatives
Derivative discounts

1,591
936
2,527

$

3,349
(337)
3,012

Original issue discounts and loan fee discounts
$

(108)
5,431

85
—
85

Total
$

861
—
861

$

—
946

1,676
936
2,612

Notes
$

4,210
(337)
3,873

$

(108)
6,377

602
287
889

2016
Accrued
Interest
$

4,611
(1,367)
3,244

$

(180)
3,953

36
—
36

Total
$

819
—
819

$

—
855

638
287
925
5,430
(1,367)
4,063

$

(180)
4,808

Dominion Convertible Debt Financings
On November 25, 2014, the Company closed a financing transaction by entering into a Securities Purchase Agreement dated
November 25, 2014 (the “Note I SPA”) with Dominion Capital LLC (the “Purchaser”) for an aggregate subscription amount of $4,000,000
(the “Purchase Price”). Pursuant to the Note I SPA, the Company issued a series of 4% Original Issue Discount Senior Secured Convertible
Promissory Notes (collectively, the “Note I”) to the Purchaser. The Purchase Price will be paid in eight equal monthly payments of
$500,000. Each individual Note was issued upon payment and will be amortized beginning six months after issuance, with amortization
payments being 1/24th of the principal and accrued interest, made in cash or common stock at the option of the Company, subject to certain
conditions contained in the Note I SPA. The Company also reimbursed the Purchaser $25,000 for expenses from the proceeds of the first
tranche and the Purchaser’s counsel $25,000 from the first tranche.
On August 14, 2015, the Company closed a financing transaction by entering into a Securities Purchase Agreement dated August
14, 2015 (the “Note II SPA”) with Dominion Capital LLC (the “Purchaser”) for an aggregate subscription amount of $2,400,000 (the
“Purchase Price”). Pursuant to the Note II SPA, the Company issued a series of 4% Original Issue Discount Senior Secured Convertible
Promissory Note (collectively, the “Note II”) to the Purchaser. The Purchase Price was paid in six equal monthly payments of $400,000.
Each individual Note was issued upon payment and is amortized beginning six months after issuance, with amortization payments being
1/24th of the principal and accrued interest, made in cash or common stock at the option of the Company, subject to certain conditions
contained in the Note II SPA. The Company also reimbursed the Purchaser $20,000 for expenses from the proceeds of the first tranche and
the Purchaser’s counsel $10,000 from the first tranche.
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The aggregate principal amount of both Notes I and II are issued with a 4% original issue discount whereby the aggregate
principal amount of Notes I and II is $6,400,000 but the actual purchase price of Notes I and II is $6,144,000. Each of Notes I and II accrue
interest at a rate equal to 12% per annum and with maturity dates, depending on the date funded, between June 26, 2016 and June 30, 2017.
Notes I and II are convertible any time after the issuance date of the notes. The Purchasers have the right to convert Note I into shares of
the Company’s common stock at a conversion price equal to 95% of the daily VWAP on the trading day immediately prior to the closing of
each tranche. The Purchasers have the right to convert Note II into shares of the Company’s common stock at a conversion price equal to
$4,200. Additionally, under certain conditions defined in Notes I and II, the notes would be convertible into common stock at a price equal
to 62.5% of the lowest VWAP during the 15 Trading Days immediately prior to the applicable amortization date. In the event that there is
an Event of Default or certain conditions are not met, the conversion price will be adjusted to equal to 55% of the lowest VWAP during the
thirty (30) Trading Days immediately prior to the applicable Conversion Date. Notes I and II can be prepaid at any time upon five days’
notice to the Holder by paying an amount in cash equal to the outstanding principal and interest and a 120% premium.
During 2015, the Company had received all eight tranches under the Note I SPA ($500,000 principal in 2014 and $3,650,000
principal in 2015 which includes an additional $150,000 added to one of the agreed $500,000 monthly funding as requested by the
Company), with maturity dates, depending on the date funded, between June 26, 2016 and December 29, 2016, pursuant to a convertible
note. Under the agreement, the Company received $3,540,600, which was net of the $448,400 Purchaser’s expenses and legal fees and
$166,000 which represents the 4% original issue discount. As of June 30, 2016, the Company has received, all six tranches under the Note
II SPA ($2,281,250 in principal in 2015 and $208,333 in 2016) with maturity dates of February 15, 2017 and June 30, 2017, pursuant to a
convertible note. Under the agreement, the Company received $2,143,000, which was net of Purchaser’s expenses, legal fees of $247,000
and a 4% original issue discount of $99,583. The notes might be accelerated if an event of default occurs under the terms of the note,
including the Company’s failure to pay principal and interest when due, certain bankruptcy events or if the Company is delinquent in its
SEC filings. In connection with the issuance of Notes I and II, the Company recorded a debt discount of $387,000 in 2014, $5,116,600 in
2015 and $180,000 in 2016, totaling to $5,683,600 of debt discount recorded, related to the embedded conversion option derivative
liability. The amortization expense related to that discount recorded were approximately $3,287,000 as of December 31, 2016 and $161,000
during the six months ended June 30, 2017. As of June 30, 2017, the total debt discount recorded has been fully amortized. During the year
ended December 31, 2016, $4,064,000 of the outstanding principal and interest on Notes I and II was converted into 444,106 shares of
common stock. During the year ended December 31, 2017, $549,670 of the outstanding principal and interest on Notes I and II was
converted into 99,846,412 shares of common stock. The outstanding principal and interest on Notes I and II for the years ended December
31, 2016 and 2017 were $2,128,700 and $1,579,361, respectively. As the note conversion includes a “lesser of” pricing provision, a
derivative liability of $8,936,405 was recorded when Notes I and II were entered into. The derivative liability is re-measured at each
balance sheet date and reclassified to equity on a pro-rata basis upon conversion of the note, the derivative liability balance for Notes I and
II at December 31, 2017 was $947,391.
On December 22, 2015, in order to finance the acquisition of ENG, the Company closed a financing transaction by entering into a
Securities Purchase Agreement dated December 22, 2015 (the “Note III SPA”) for an aggregate principal amount of $904,042 and
subscription amount of $865,000, net of OID (the “Purchase Price”). The Company also reimbursed the Purchaser $30,000 for legal fees
and expenses from the proceeds of the Note. Pursuant to the Note III SPA, the Company shall issue a 4% Original Issue Discount Senior
Secured Convertible Promissory Note (the “Note III”) to Dominion. Note III was issued upon payment and will be amortized beginning six
months after issuance, with amortization payments being 1/24th of the principal and accrued interest, made in cash or common stock, on a
semi-monthly basis, subject to certain conditions contained in the Note III SPA. The amortization payments will begin to be due starting on
the 15th day of the month immediately following the six-month anniversary of the Closing Date. The Company received funding for Note
III on December 24, 2015, net proceeds of $751,500 (net of the $152,542 of legal fees, expenses and OID). Note III accrues interest at a
rate equal to 12% per annum (interest is guaranteed for the first twelve months) and has a maturity date of June 15, 2017. Note III is
convertible any time after its issuance date and Dominion has the right to convert any or all of Note III into shares of the Company’s
common stock at a conversion price equal to $3,300 per share, subject to adjustment as described in Note III. Additionally, under certain
conditions defined in Note III, it may also be convertible into common stock at a price equal to 62.5% of the lowest VWAP during the 15
Trading Days immediately prior to the applicable amortization date. In the event that there is an Event of Default or certain conditions are
not met, the conversion price will be adjusted to equal to 55% of the lowest VWAP during the thirty (30) Trading Days immediately prior
to the applicable Conversion Date. Note III can be prepaid at any time upon five days’ notice to the Dominion by paying an amount in cash
equal to the outstanding principal and interest, and a 20% premium. In connection with the issuance of the Note III, the Company recorded
a debt discount of $751,500 when Note III was entered into, related to the embedded conversion option derivative liability. The
amortization expense related to that discount recorded were approximately $510,000 in 2016 and $231,963 during the six months ended
June 30, 2017. As of June 30, 2017, the total debt discount record has been fully amortized. During the year ended December 31, 2017,
$450,000 of the outstanding principal and interest was paid from the proceeds received as discussed in Note 5. As of the years ended
December 31, 2016 and 2017, the outstanding principal and interest on Note III were $1,013,000 and $562,527, respectively. As the note
conversion includes a “lesser of” pricing provision, a derivative liability of $1,267,800 was recorded when Note III was entered into. The
derivative liability is re-measured at each balance sheet date, the derivative liability balance for Note III at December 31, 2017 was
$337,435.
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On January 28, 2016, the Company closed a financing transaction by entering into a Securities Purchase Agreement dated January
28, 2016 (the “Note IV SPA”) with Dominion Capital LLC (the “Purchaser”) for an aggregate principal amount of $2,187,500 and
subscription amount of $2,100,000 (the “Purchase Price”), net of OID. Pursuant to the Note IV SPA, the Company shall issue a series of
4% Original Issue Discount Senior Secured Convertible Promissory Notes (collectively, the “Note IV”) to the Purchaser. The Purchase
Price is scheduled to be paid in six equal monthly tranches of $350,000, subject to the discretion of the Purchaser. Each individual Note
will be issued upon payment and will be amortized beginning six months after issuance, with amortization payments being 1/24th of the
principal and accrued interest, made in cash or common stock at the option of the Company, on a semi-monthly basis, subject to certain
conditions and limitations contained in the Note IV SPA. The amortization payments will begin on the 15th day of the month immediately
following the six-month anniversary of the Closing Date. The Company also reimbursed the Purchaser $20,000 for expenses from the
proceeds of the first tranche and the Purchaser’s counsel $10,000 from the first tranche. During the year ended December 31, 2016, the
Company has received a total of $604,763 net proceeds under Note IV (net of the $93,153 of legal fees, expenses and OID). During the
year ended December 31, 2017, the Company received a total of $288,000 net proceeds (net of the $24,498 of legal fees, expenses and
OID) and $24,000 of net proceeds (net of the $2,042 of legal fees, expenses and OID) was received subsequent to the year ended December
31, 2017, under Note IV. Note IV accrues interest at a rate equal to 12% per annum (interest is guaranteed for the first twelve months) and
has a maturity dates between July 15, 2017 and June 30, 2019. Note IV is convertible any time after its issuance date and Dominion has the
right to convert any or all of Note IV into shares of the Company’s common stock at a conversion price equal to $3,300 per share, subject to
adjustment as described in Note IV. Additionally, under certain conditions defined in Note IV, it may also be convertible into common
stock at a price equal to 62.5% of the lowest VWAP during the 15 Trading Days immediately prior to the applicable amortization date. In
the event that there is an Event of Default or certain conditions are not met, the conversion price will be adjusted to equal to 55% of the
lowest VWAP during the thirty (30) Trading Days immediately prior to the applicable Conversion Date. Note IV can be prepaid at any time
upon five days’ notice to the Dominion by paying an amount in cash equal to the outstanding principal and interest, and a 20% premium.
Subsequent to the funding of the first tranche the Purchaser and the Company agreed to delay further tranches, until such time as the
Purchaser and Company mutually agree, both as to timing and amount. In connection with the issuances of Note IV, the Company recorded
a debt discount of $874,415 when the notes were entered into, related to the embedded conversion option derivative liability. The
amortization expense related to that discount recorded during the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2017 were approximately $263,000
and $347,667, respectively. As the note conversion includes a “lesser of” pricing provision, a derivative liability of $1,242,562 was
recorded when the issuances of Note IV was entered into. The derivative liability is re-measured at each balance sheet date, the derivative
liability balance for Note IV at December 31, 2017 was $707,280. During the year ended December 31, 2017, $161,317 of the outstanding
principal and interest was converted into 6,825,225 shares of common stock. As of December 31, 2017, the outstanding principal and
interest on Note IV was $992,524.
Pursuant to the Company’s obligations under Notes I, II, III and IV, the Company entered into a Security Agreement with the
Purchaser, pursuant to which the Company granted a lien on all assets of the Company, subject to existing security interests, (the
“Collateral”) for the benefit of the Purchaser, to secure the Company’s obligations under the Note. In the event of a default as defined in
Notes I, II, III and IV, the Purchaser may, among other things, collect or take possession of the Collateral, proceed with the foreclosure of
the security interest in the Collateral or sell, lease or dispose of the Collateral.
Other Convertible Debt Financing
On June 18, 2014, the Company closed a financing agreement whereby the Company borrowed an aggregate principal amount of
$247,500 with a 10% original note discount. The note has an interest rate of 10% and is convertible at the option of the lender into shares
of the Company’s common stock at the lesser of (i) a 40% discount to the lowest closing bid price in the 20 trading days prior to conversion
or (ii) $11,250. The note might be accelerated if an event of default occurs under the terms of the note, including the Company’s failure to
pay principal and interest when due, certain bankruptcy events or if the Company is delinquent in its SEC filings. The first tranche was
funded on June 18, 2014 with a principal amount of $55,000 and net proceeds of $50,000, with a maturity date of June 17, 2016, pursuant
to the convertible note. In connection with the issuance of the note, the Company recorded a debt discount of $50,000 related to the
derivative liability which was fully amortized as of June 30, 2015. As of June 30, 2015, the outstanding principal and interest of the note
was fully converted into 30 shares of common stock. As the note conversion includes a “lesser of” pricing provision, a derivative liability
of $59,623 was recorded when the note was entered into. The derivative liability was re-measured at each balance sheet date and was
reclassified to equity upon conversion of the note. The second tranche was funded on September 19, 2014, with a principal amount of
$55,000 and net proceeds of $50,000, with a maturity date of September 19, 2015, pursuant to a convertible note. In connection with the
issuance of the notes, the Company recorded a debt discount of $50,000 related to the derivative liability which was fully amortized as of
June 30, 2015. As of June 30, 2015, the outstanding principal and interest on the notes was fully converted into 47 shares of common stock.
As the note conversion includes a “lesser of” pricing provision, a derivative liability of $59,623 was recorded when the note was entered
into. The derivative liability was re-measured at each balance sheet date and was reclassified to equity upon conversion of the note. The
third tranche was funded on December 22, 2014, with a principal amount of $55,000 and net proceeds of $50,000, with a maturity date of
December 22, 2015, pursuant to a convertible note. The Company recorded a debt discount of $50,000 related to the derivative liability
which was fully amortized as of September 30, 2015. As of September 30, 2015, the outstanding principal and interest of the note was fully
converted into 39 shares of common stock. As the note conversion includes a “lesser of” pricing provision, a derivative liability of $62,118
was recorded when the note was entered into. The derivative liability was re-measured at each balance sheet date and was reclassified to
equity upon conversion of the note. The fourth tranche was funded on January 13, 2016, with a principal amount of $82,500 and net
proceeds of $75,000, with a maturity date of January 13, 2018, pursuant to a convertible note. In connection with the issuance of the note,
the Company recorded a debt discount of $75,000, related to the embedded conversion option derivative liability which has been fully
amortized during the year ended December 31, 2016. As of December 31, 2016, the outstanding principal and interest on the note was fully
converted into 693 shares of common stock. As the note conversion includes a “lesser of” pricing provision, a derivative liability of
$122,263 was recorded when the note was entered into. The derivative liability is re-measured at each balance sheet date and reclassified to
equity on a pro-rata basis upon conversion of the note.
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On April 6, 2015, the Company issued a new note for $166,681 convertible at the lesser of a 37.5% discount to the common stock
price on the date of the note or a 37.5% discount to the price of our common stock price at the time of conversion. In conjunction with the
purchase and assignment, the Company and Purchaser entered into a new note with a principal value of $88,319 as compensation for
Purchaser’s costs related to the purchase and assignment. This $88,319 was expensed as a loss on debt extinguishment. In connection with
the issuance of the notes, the Company recorded a debt discount of $255,000 related to the embedded conversion option derivative liability
which has been fully amortized as of December 31, 2015. As of June 30, 2016, the outstanding principal and interest of the note was fully
converted into 212 shares of common stock. As of June 30, 2016, the note has no outstanding balance. As the note conversions includes a
“lesser of” pricing provision, a derivative liability of $305,904 was recorded when these notes were entered into. The derivative liability
was re-measured at each balance sheet date and was reclassified to equity on a pro-rata basis upon conversion of the note.
On March 9, 2016, the Company closed a Securities Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with a lender, providing for the purchase of
two Convertible Redeemable Notes in the aggregate principal amount of $270,400 (the “Notes”), with the first note being in the amount of
$135,200 (“Note I”) and the second note being in the amount of $135,200 (“Note II”) with a maturity date of March 9, 2017. Pursuant to
Note I, the Company received $125,000 of proceeds, net of original issue discount of $5,200 and legal fees of $5,000. Note II was initially
paid for by the issuance of an offsetting $130,000 secured note issued by the Lender to the Company (“Secured Note”). The Notes bear an
interest rate of 12%; and may be at any time after 180 days of the date of closing converted into shares of Company common stock
convertible at the lesser of a 37.5% discount to the common stock price on the date of the note or a 37.5% discount to the price of our
common stock price at the time of conversion. The Notes also contain certain representations, warranties, covenants and events of default,
and increases in the amount of the principal and interest rates under the Notes in the event of such defaults. In connection with the issuance
of Note I, the Company recorded a debt discount of $125,000, related to the embedded conversion option derivative liability which was
fully amortized during the year ended December 31, 2016. As of December 31, 2016, the outstanding principal and interest on Note I was
fully converted into 40,968 shares of common stock. During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company received $125,000 pursuant
to Note II, net of original issue discount of $5,200 and legal fees of $5,000. In connection with the issuance of Note II, the Company
recorded a debt discount of $125,000, related to the embedded conversion option derivative liability which was fully amortized as of
December 31, 2016. As of December 31, 2016, $129,980 of the outstanding principal and interest on Note II was converted into 51,684
shares of common stock. As of December 31, 2016 and 2017, Note II had an outstanding balance of $10,213 and $26,437, respectively. As
the note conversion includes a “lesser of” pricing provision, a derivative liability of $306,000 was recorded when Notes were entered into.
The derivative liability is re-measured at each balance sheet date and reclassified to equity on a pro-rata basis upon conversion of the note,
the derivative liability balance for Note II at December 31, 2017 was $15,858.
On March 16, 2016, the Company borrowed $53,000 with a maturity date of December 18, 2016, pursuant to a financing
agreement. Under the agreement, the Company received $50,000 of proceeds, net of $3,000 legal fees. The note bears interest at 8% per
annum and is convertible at the option of the lender into shares of the Company’s common stock at a 35% discount to the price of common
shares in the ten days prior to conversion. The note also contains certain representations, warranties, covenants and events of default, and
increases in the amount of the principal and interest rates under the Notes in the event of such defaults. In connection with the issuance of
the note, the Company recorded a premium of $28,538 as the note is considered stock settled debt under ASC 480, which was fully
accreted as of June 30, 2016. On August 19, 2016, the lender entered into a purchase and assignment agreement with a third lender to sell
and assign the outstanding principal and interest of $54,731 (original note). Pursuant to the purchase and assignment agreement, the third
lender and the Company amended the original note (as discussed in the paragraph below) and issued a replacement note with a principal
amount of $61,331, which includes an additional amount of $6,600 from the original note’s outstanding balance. The additional amount
was recorded as a loss on debt extinguishment. As of September 30, 2016, the Company no longer has any outstanding debt owed to the
lender. The total recorded premium was on the original note was reclassified to equity upon extinguishment of the debt (see below
replacement note).
On August 19, 2016, The Company entered into an agreement with a lender to issue a replacement note (as discussed in the above
paragraph). The note bears an interest rate of 5%; and maybe converted into shares of Company common stock, convertible at variable
conversion price at a 40% discount of the average of the two lowest closing bid price of the common stock for the 20 trading days prior to
conversion. The note also contains certain representations, warranties, covenants and events of default, and increases in the amount of the
principal and interest rates under the Note in the event of such defaults. In connection with the issuance of replacement note, the Company
recorded a debt discount of $54,731, related to the embedded conversion option derivative liability which was fully amortized during the
year ended December 31, 2016. As of December 31, 2016, the outstanding principal and interest on Note was fully converted into 2,618
shares of common stock. As the note conversion includes a “lesser of” pricing provision, a derivative liability of $54,770 was recorded
when the note was entered into. The derivative liability is re-measured at each balance sheet date and reclassified to equity on a pro-rata
basis upon conversion of the note.
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On April 1, 2016, the Company closed a Securities Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with a lender, providing for the purchase of two
Convertible Redeemable Notes in the aggregate principal amount of $270,400 (the “Notes”), with the first note being in the amount of
$135,200 (“Note I”) and the second note being in the amount of $135,200 (“Note II”). Note I was funded on April 1, 2016, with a maturity
date of April 1, 2017, pursuant to Note I, the Company received $125,000 of net proceeds, net of original issue discount of $5,200 and legal
fees of $5,000. Note II was initially paid for by the issuance of an offsetting $130,000 secured note issued by the Lender to the Company
(“Secured Note”). Note II was funded on August 2, 2016, with a maturity date of April 1, 2017, pursuant to Note II, the Company received
$125,000 of net proceeds, net of original issue discount of $5,200 and legal fees of $5,000. The Notes bear an interest rate of 12%; and may
be at any time after 180 days of the date of closing converted into shares of Company common stock convertible at the lesser of a 37.5%
discount to the common stock price on the date of the note or a 37.5% discount to the price of our common stock price at the time of
conversion. In connection with the issuance of Notes, the Company recorded a debt discount of $250,000, related to the embedded
conversion option derivative liability. The amortization expense related to that discount recorded was approximately $172,000 for the year
ended December 31, 2016 and $77,859 during the six months ended June 30, 2017. The total debt discount recorded has been fully
amortized as of June 30, 2017. During the three months ended June 30, 2017, $27,114 of the outstanding principal and interest on the notes
was converted into 402,827 shares of common stock. The outstanding principal and interest on the Notes as of the years ended December
31, 2016 and 2017 were $289,300 and $294,625, respectively. As the note conversion includes a “lesser of” pricing provision, a derivative
liability of $311,756 was recorded when Notes were entered into. The derivative liability is re-measured at each balance sheet date and
reclassified to equity on a pro-rata basis upon conversion of the note, the derivative liability balance for the Notes at December 31, 2017
was $176,733.
On April 12, 2016, the Company closed a Securities Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with a lender, providing for the purchase of a
Convertible Redeemable Note in the aggregate principal amount of $58,000, with a maturity date of April 7, 2017, pursuant to note, the
Company will receive $50,000 of net proceeds, net of original issue discount and legal fees. The note bears an interest rate of 5%; and is
convertible at variable conversion price at a 37% discount to the common shares price on the date of the note or at a 47% discount of the
lowest trading price equal to or is lower than $750, as described in the note. The note also contains certain representations, warranties,
covenants and events of default, and increases in the amount of the principal and interest rates under the Note in the event of such defaults.
In connection with the issuance of note, the Company recorded a debt discount of $50,000, related to the embedded conversion option
derivative liability which was fully amortized during the year ended December 31, 2016. As of December 31, 2016, the outstanding
principal and interest on note was fully converted into 6,513 shares of common stock. As the note conversion includes a “lesser of” pricing
provision, a derivative liability of $73,505 was recorded when the note was entered into. The derivative liability is re-measured at each
balance sheet date and reclassified to equity on a pro-rata basis upon conversion of the note.
On April 18, 2016, the Company closed a Securities Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with a lender, providing for the purchase of
two Convertible Redeemable Notes in the aggregate principal amount of $126,000 (the “Notes”), with the first note being in the amount of
$63,000 (“Note I”) and the second note being in the amount of $63,000 (“Note II”). Note I was funded on April 20, 2016, with a maturity
date of April 19, 2017, pursuant to Note I, the Company received $57,000 of net proceeds, net of original issue discount of $3,000 and legal
fees of $3,000. Note II was initially paid for by the issuance of an offsetting $60,000 secured note issued by the Lender to the Company
(“Secured Note”). Note II was funded on November 29, 2016, with a maturity date of April 19, 2017, pursuant to Note II, the Company
received $57,000 of net proceeds, net of original issue discount of $3,000 and legal fees of $3,000. The Notes bear an interest rate of 10%;
and maybe converted into shares of Company common stock, convertible at variable conversion price at a 35% discount of the lowest
closing bid price of the common stock for the 15 trading days prior to conversion. The Notes also contain certain representations,
warranties, covenants and events of default, and increases in the amount of the principal and interest rates under the Notes in the event of
such defaults. In connection with the issuance of the notes, the Company recorded a premium of $37,846 as the notes are considered stock
settled debt under ASC 480, which was fully accreted as of December 31, 2016. During the year ended December 31, 2016, the outstanding
principal and interest on the notes was fully converted into 46,959 shares of common stock.
On April 18, 2016, the Company closed a Securities Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with a lender, providing for the purchase of
two Convertible Redeemable Notes in the aggregate principal amount of $143,000 (the “Notes”), with the first note being in the amount of
$71,500 (“Note I”) and the second note being in the amount of $71,500 (“Note II”). Note I was funded on April 18, 2016, with a maturity
date of April 18, 2017, pursuant to Note I, the Company received $55,000 of net proceeds, net of original issue discount of $6,500 and legal
fees of $10,000. Note II was initially paid for by the issuance of an offsetting $65,000 secured note issued by the Lender to the Company
(“Secured Note”). Note II was funded on November 21, 2016, with a maturity date of April 18, 2017, pursuant to Note II, the Company
received $49,375 of net proceeds, net of original issue discount of $6,500 and legal fees of $15,625. The Notes bear an interest rate of 10%;
and maybe converted into shares of Company common stock, convertible at variable conversion price at a 38% discount of the average of
the three lowest closing bid price of the common stock for the 20 trading days prior to conversion. The Notes also contain certain
representations, warranties, covenants and events of default, and increases in the amount of the principal and interest rates under the Notes
in the event of such defaults. In connection with the issuance of the Notes, the Company recorded a premium of $85,800 as the notes are
considered stock settled debt under ASC 480, which was fully accreted as of December 31, 2016. During the year ended December 31,
2016, the outstanding principal and interest of the Notes were fully converted into 45,365 shares of common stock.
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On April 28, 2016, the Company closed a Securities Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with a lender, providing for the purchase of
two Convertible Redeemable Notes in the aggregate principal amount of $437,500 (the “Notes”), with the first note being in the amount of
$218,750 (“Note I”) and the second note being in the amount of $218,750 (“Note II”). Note I was funded on April 28, 2016, with a maturity
date of April 27, 2017, pursuant to Note I, the Company received $190,000 of net proceeds, net of original issue discount of $8,750 and
legal fees of $20,000. Note II was initially paid for by the issuance of an offsetting $210,000 secured note issued by the Lender to the
Company (“Secured Note”). Note II was funded on September 7, 2016, with a maturity date of April 27, 2017, pursuant to Note II, the
Company received $200,000 of net proceeds, net of original issue discount of $8,750 and legal fees of $10,000. The Notes bear an interest
rate of 12%; and may be at any time after 180 days of the date of closing converted into shares of Company common stock convertible at
the lesser of a 37.5% discount to the common stock price on the date of the note or a 37.5% discount to the price of our common stock
price at the time of conversion. In connection with the issuance of the Notes, the Company recorded a debt discount of $390,000, related to
the embedded conversion option derivative liability. The amortization expense related to that discount recorded was approximately
$247,000 in 2016 and $143,000 during the three months ended March 31, 2017. The recorded debt discount was fully amortized as of
March 31, 2017. In 2016, $21,453 of the outstanding principal and interest of the note was converted into 12,713 shares of common stock.
During the year ended December 31, 2017, $424,426 of the outstanding principal and interest of the notes was converted into 4,455,017
shares of common stock. As of December 31, 2016 and 2017, the outstanding principal and interest on the Notes were $442,080 and
$45,518, respectively. As the note conversion includes a “lesser of” pricing provision, a derivative liability of $499,800 was recorded when
Notes were entered into. The derivative liability is re-measured at each balance sheet date and reclassified to equity on a pro-rata basis upon
conversion of the note, the derivative liability balance for the Notes at December 31, 2017 was $27,304.
On May 4, 2016, the Company closed a Securities Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with a lender, providing for the purchase of two
Convertible Redeemable Notes in the aggregate principal amount of $126,000 (the “Notes”), with the first note being in the amount of
$63,000 (“Note I”) and the second note being in the amount of $63,000 (“Note II”). Note I was funded on May 4, 2016, with a maturity
date of May 4, 2017, pursuant to Note I, the Company received $57,000 of net proceeds, net of original issue discount of $3,000 and legal
fees of $3,000. Note II was initially paid for by the issuance of an offsetting $60,000 secured note issued by the Lender to the Company
(“Secured Note”). Note II was funded on November 22, 2016, with a maturity date of May 4, 2017, pursuant to Note II, the Company
received $57,000 of net proceeds, net of original issue discount of $3,000 and legal fees of $3,000. The Notes bears an interest rate of 10%;
and maybe converted into shares of Company common stock, convertible at variable conversion price at a 37.5% discount of the lowest
closing bid price of the common stock for the 15 trading days prior to conversion. The Notes also contain certain representations,
warranties, covenants and events of default, and increases in the amount of the principal and interest rates under the Notes in the event of
such defaults. In connection with the issuance of the notes, the Company recorded a premium of $75,600 as the notes are considered stock
settled debt under ASC 480 which was fully accreted as of December 31, 2016. During the year ended December 31, 2016, the outstanding
principal and interest on the notes were fully converted into 58,856 shares of common stock. The notes had no outstanding balance as of
December 31, 2016.
On May 17, 2016, the Company closed a Securities Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with a lender, providing for the purchase of a
Convertible Redeemable Notes with the principal amount of $55,000 (the “Note”). The Note was funded on May 19, 2016, with a maturity
date of May 17, 2017, pursuant to Note, the Company received $49,500 of net proceeds, net of $5,500 legal fees. The Note bears an interest
rate of 10%; and maybe converted into shares of Company common stock, convertible at variable conversion price at a 35% discount of the
lowest closing bid price of the common stock for the 20 trading days prior to conversion. The Notes also contain certain representations,
warranties, covenants and events of default, and increases in the amount of the principal and interest rates under the Notes in the event of
such defaults. In connection with the issuance of the note, the Company recorded a premium of $29,615 as the note is considered stock
settled debt under ASC 480, which was fully accreted as of September 30, 2016. During the year ended December 31, 2016, the
outstanding principal and interest on the notes were fully converted into 26,971 shares of common stock. The note had no outstanding
balance as of December 31, 2016.
On June 3, 2016, the Company closed a Securities Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with a lender, providing for the purchase of two
Convertible Redeemable Notes in the aggregate principal amount of $624,000 (the “Notes”), with the first note being in the amount of
$312,000 (“Note I”) and the second note being in the amount of $312,000 (“Note II”). Note I was funded on June 3, 2016, with a maturity
date of June 2, 2017, pursuant to Note I, the Company received $285,000 of net proceeds, net of original issue discount of $12,000 and
legal fees of $15,000. Note II was initially paid for by the issuance of an offsetting $300,000 secured note issued by the Lender to the
Company (“Secured Note”). Note II was funded in two tranches during the year ended December 31, 2016, with a maturity date of June 2,
2017, pursuant to Note II, the Company received $285,000 of net proceeds, net of original issue discount of $12,000 and legal fees of
$15,000. The Notes bear an interest rate of 12%; and may be at any time after 180 days of the date of closing converted into shares of
Company common stock convertible at the lesser of a 35% discount to the common stock price on the date of the note or a 35% discount to
the price of our common stock price at the time of conversion. The Notes also contain certain representations, warranties, covenants and
events of default, and increases in the amount of the principal and interest rates under the Notes in the event of such defaults. In connection
with the issuance of the Notes, the Company recorded a debt discount of $570,000, related to the embedded conversion option derivative
liability. The amortization expense related to that discount recorded was approximately $288,000 in 2016 and $282,000 for the six months
ended June 30, 2017 and the total debt discount recorded was fully amortized as of June 30, 2017. In 2016, $129,298 of the outstanding
principal and interest of the notes was converted into 119,675 shares of common stock. During the year ended December 31, 2017,
$301,537 of the outstanding principal and interest of the notes was converted into 12,383,428 shares of common stock. As of December 31,
2016 and 2017, the outstanding principal and interest on the Notes were $519,860 and $256,181, respectively. As the note conversion
includes a “lesser of” pricing provision, a derivative liability of $755,690 was recorded when Notes was entered into. The derivative
liability is re-measured at each balance sheet date and reclassified to equity on a pro-rata basis upon conversion of the note, the derivative
liability balance for the Notes at December 31, 2017 was $153,672.
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On June 22, 2016, the Company closed a Securities Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with a lender, providing for the purchase of two
Convertible Redeemable Notes in the aggregate principal amount of $143,000 (the “Notes”), with the first note being in the amount of
$71,500 (“Note I”) and the second note being in the amount of $71,500 (“Note II”). Note I was funded on June 22, 2016, with a maturity
date of June 17, 2017, pursuant to Note I, the Company received $57,000 of net proceeds, net of original issue discount of $6,500 and legal
fees of $8,000. Note II was initially paid for by the issuance of an offsetting $65,000 secured note issued by the Lender to the Company
(“Secured Note”). The Notes bear an interest rate of 10%; and is convertible into shares of Company common stock at the lesser of a 37.5%
discount to the common stock price on the date of the note or a 37.5% discount to the price of our common stock price at the time of
conversion. The Notes also contain certain representations, warranties, covenants and events of default, and increases in the amount of the
principal and interest rates under the Notes in the event of such defaults. In connection with the issuance of Note I, the Company recorded a
debt discount of $57,000, related to the embedded conversion option derivative liability which was fully amortized during the year ended
December 31, 2016. As of December 31, 2016, the Company exercised its right to prepay the outstanding principal and interest for a total
redemption amount of $74,968. The Company recorded a loss on extinguishment of approximately $25,000. The note had no outstanding
balance as of December 31, 2016. As the note conversion includes a “lesser of” pricing provision, a derivative liability of $72,607 was
recorded when Note I was entered into. The derivative liability is re-measured at each balance sheet date and reclassified to equity on a prorata basis upon conversion or redemption of the note.
On July 5, 2016, the Company closed a Securities Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with a lender, providing for the purchase of two
Convertible Redeemable Notes in the aggregate principal amount of $416,000 (the “Notes”), with the first note being in the amount of
$208,000 (“Note I”) and the second note being in the amount of $208,000 (“Note II”) with a maturity date of July 30, 2017. Pursuant to
Note I, the Company received $190,000 of proceeds, net of original issue discount of $8,000 and legal fees of $10,000. Note II was initially
paid for by the issuance of an offsetting $200,000 secured note issued by the Lender to the Company (“Secured Note”). Pursuant to Note
II, the Company received $190,000 of proceeds, net of original issue discount of $8,000 and legal fees of $10,000 Note II during the three
months ended March 31, 2017. The Notes bear an interest rate of 12%; and may be at any time after 180 days of the date of closing
converted into shares of Company common stock convertible at the lesser of a 37.5% discount to the common stock price on the date of the
note or a 37.5% discount to the price of our common stock price at the time of conversion. The Notes also contain certain representations,
warranties, covenants and events of default, and increases in the amount of the principal and interest rates under the Notes in the event of
such defaults. In connection with the issuance of the Notes, the Company recorded a debt discount of $380,000, related to the embedded
conversion option derivative liability. The amortization expense related to that discount recorded was approximately $97,000 in 2016 and
$282,939 for the year ended December 31, 2017 and the total debt discount recorded was fully amortized as of September 30, 2017. During
the year ended December 31, 2017, $248,793 of the outstanding principal and interest of the note was converted into 29,129,990 shares of
common stock. As of December 31, 2017, the outstanding principal and interest on the notes was $226,546. As the note conversion
includes a “lesser of” pricing provision, a derivative liability was also recorded in the amount of $360,552. The derivative liability at
December 31, 2017 for the Notes was $135,896.
On July 6, 2016, the Company closed a Securities Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with a lender, providing for the purchase of two
Convertible Redeemable Notes in the aggregate principal amount of $132,300 (the “Notes”), with the first note being in the amount of
$66,150 (“Note I”) and the second note being in the amount of $66,150 (“Note II”) with a maturity date of July 7, 2017. Pursuant to Note I,
the Company received $60,000 of net proceeds, net of original issue discount of $3,150 and legal fees of $3,000. Note II was initially paid
for by the issuance of an offsetting $63,000 secured note issued by the Lender to the Company (“Secured Note”). The Notes bear an
interest rate of 10%; and maybe converted into shares of Company common stock, convertible at variable conversion price at a 35%
discount of the lowest closing bid price of the common stock for the 15 trading days prior to conversion. The Notes also contain certain
representations, warranties, covenants and events of default, and increases in the amount of the principal and interest rates under the Notes
in the event of such defaults. In connection with the issuance of Note I, the Company recorded a premium of $35,619 as the note is
considered stock settled debt under ASC 480, which was fully accreted as of September 30, 2016. As of December 31, 2016 and 2017, the
outstanding principal and interest on the note were $69,460 and $76,073, respectively.
On August 1, 2016, the Company closed a Securities Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with a lender, providing for the purchase of a
Convertible Redeemable Note with a principal amount of $52,500 (the “Note”) and maturity date of April 29, 2017, pursuant to Note, the
Company received $50,000 of net proceeds, net of original issue discount of $2,500. The Note bears an interest rate of 10%; and maybe
converted into shares of Company common stock, convertible at variable conversion price at a 37.5% discount of the three lowest closing
bid prices of the common stock for the 20 trading days prior to conversion. The Note also contain certain representations, warranties,
covenants and events of default, and increases in the amount of the principal and interest rates under the Note in the event of such defaults.
In connection with the issuance of the note, the Company recorded a premium of $31,500 as the note is considered stock settled debt under
ASC 480, which was fully accreted as of September 30, 2016. During the year ended December 31, 2017, $6,250 of the outstanding
principal and interest of the note was converted into 8,333 shares of common stock. As of December 31, 2016 and 2017, the outstanding
principal and interest on the note were $55,130 and $55,175, respectively.
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On August 11, 2016, the Company closed a Securities Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with a lender, providing for the purchase of a
Secured Convertible Promissory Note in the aggregate principal amount of up to $330,000, which shall be funded in six tranches, each
amounting to $50,000. The Note has a 10% original issuance discount to offset transaction, diligence and legal costs. The Note bears an
interest rate of 10% and the maturity date for each funded tranche will be 12 months from the date on which the funds are received by the
Company. Then note is convertible into shares of Company’s common stock at a 37.5% discount to the lowest volume-weighted average
price for the Company’s common stock during the 15 trading days immediately preceding a conversion date. The Note also contain certain
representations, warranties, covenants and events of default, and increases in the amount of the principal and interest rates under the Note in
the event of such defaults. In 2016, the Company had received three of the six tranches amounting to $150,000 of net proceeds, net of the
original issue discount of $15,000. The funded tranches have maturity dates between August 17, 2017 and September 13, 2017. In
connection with the issuance of the note, the Company recorded a premium of $99,000 as the note is considered stock settled debt under
ASC 480, which was fully accreted during as of September 30, 2016. As of December 31, 2016, the outstanding principal and interest on
the note was $171,420. During the year ended December 31, 2017, the remaining outstanding principal and interest of $186,453 was fully
converted into 31,126,000 shares of common stock. The note had no outstanding balance as of December 31, 2017.
On August 17, 2016, the Company closed a Securities Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with a lender, providing for the purchase of
two Convertible Redeemable Notes in the aggregate principal amount of $105,264 (the “Notes”), with the first note being in the amount of
$52,632 (“Note I”) and the second note being in the amount of $52,632 (“Note II”). Note I was funded on August 17, 2016, with a maturity
date of August 17, 2017, pursuant to Note I, the Company received $45,000 of net proceeds, net of original issue discount of $2,632 and
legal fees of $5,000. Note II was initially paid for by the issuance of an offsetting $50,000 secured note issued by the Lender to the
Company (“Secured Note”). Note II was funded on February 17, 2017, with a maturity date of August 17, 2017, pursuant to Note II, the
Company received $45,000 of net proceeds, net of original issue discount of $2,632 and legal fees of $5,000. The Notes bear an interest
rate of 10%; and is convertible into shares of Company common stock at the lesser of a 37.5% discount to the common stock price on the
date of the note or a 37.5% discount to the price of our common stock price at the time of conversion. The Notes also contain certain
representations, warranties, covenants and events of default, and increases in the amount of the principal and interest rates under the Notes
in the event of such defaults. In connection with the issuance of the Notes, the Company recorded a debt discount of $76,189 related to the
embedded conversion option derivative liability. The amortization expense related to that discount recorded was $15,960 in 2016 and
$60,229 for the six months ended June 30, 2017. The total debt discount recorded was fully amortized as of June 30, 2017. As of December
31, 2016, the outstanding principal and interest on Note I was $54,590. During the year ended December 31, 2017, the remaining balance
of the outstanding principal and interest of $108,950 was fully converted into 441,619 shares of common stock. The note had no
outstanding balance as of December 31, 2017. As the note conversion includes a “lesser of” pricing provision, a derivative liability of
$112,277 was recorded when the notes were entered into. The derivative liability is re-measured at each balance sheet date and reclassified
to equity on a pro-rata basis upon conversion of the note.
On November 30, 2016, the Company closed a Securities Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with a lender , providing for the purchase
of three Convertible Redeemable Notes in the aggregate principal amount of $183,750 (the “Notes”), with the first note being in the
amount of $52,500 (“Note I”), the second note being in the amount of $52,500 (“Note II”), and the third note being in the amount of
$78,750 (“Note III”). Note I was funded on November 30, 2016, with a maturity date of December 30, 2017, pursuant to Note I, the
Company received $45,000 of net proceeds, net of original issue discount of $3,150 and legal fees of $3,000. Note II was initially paid for
by the issuance of an offsetting $50,000 secured note issued to the Company by the lender (“Secured Note”) and Note III was initially be
paid for by the issuance of an offsetting $75,000 secured note issued to the Company by the lender. Funding of Note II and Note III is
subject to the mutual agreement of the lender and the Company. The lender is required to pay the principal amount of the Secured Notes in
cash and in full prior to executing any conversions under Note II and Note III. The Notes bear an interest rate of 10% and are due and
payable on November 30, 2017. The Notes may be converted by the lender at any time into shares of Company’s common stock (as
determined in the Notes) calculated at the time of conversion, except for Note II and Note III, which require full payment of the Secured
Notes by the lender before conversions may be made. The Notes (subject to funding in the case of Note II and Note III) is convertible into
shares of Company’s common stock at a 37.5% discount to the lowest closing bid price of the common stock 15 prior trading days
including the day upon which a notice of conversion is received by the Company. In connection with the issuance of the note, the
Company recorded a premium of $31,500 as the note is considered stock settled debt under ASC 480, which was fully accreted as of
December 31, 2016. As of December 31, 2016 and 2017, the outstanding principal and interest on the note were $53,375 and $58,625,
respectively.
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On January 18, 2017, the Company closed a Securities Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with a lender, providing for the purchase of
two Convertible Redeemable Notes in the aggregate principal amount of $200,000 (the “Notes”), with the first note being in the amount of
$100,000 (“Note I”), and the second note being in the amount of $100,000 (“Note II”). Note I was funded on January 18, 2017, with the
Company receiving $70,000 of net proceeds (net of legal fees and OID). Note II will initially be paid for by the issuance of an offsetting
$88,000 secured note issued to the Company by the lender (the “Secured Note”). The funding of Note II is subject to the mutual agreement
of the lender and the Company which has not occurred as of December 31, 2017. The lender is required to pay the principal amount of the
Secured Note in cash and in full prior to executing any conversions under Note II. The Notes bear an interest rate of 10% and are due and
payable on January 13, 2018. The Note may be converted by the lender at any time into shares of Company’s common stock at a price
equal to the lesser of a 37.5% discount to the common stock price on the date of the note or a 37.5% discount of the lowest trading price for
the Company’s common stock 20 days prior trading days including the day upon which a notice of conversion is received by the Company.
The Notes also contain certain representations, warranties, covenants and events of default, and increases in the amount of the principal and
interest rates under the Notes in the event of such defaults. In connection with the issuance of Note I, the Company recorded a debt
discount of $70,000 related to the embedded conversion option derivative liability. The amortization expense related to that discount
recorded was approximately $70,000 for the year ended December 31, 2017 and the total debt discount recorded was fully amortized as of
December 31, 2017. During the year ended December 31, 2017, the outstanding principal and interest of $107,145 was fully converted into
15,819,000 shares of common stock and Note I had no outstanding balance as of December 31, 2017. As the note conversion includes a
“lesser of” pricing provision, a derivative liability of $99,742 was recorded when Note I was entered into. The derivative liability is remeasured at each balance sheet date and reclassified to equity on a pro-rata basis upon conversion of the note.
On January 31, 2017, the Company closed a Securities Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with a lender, dated January 30, 2017,
providing for the purchase of a Secured Convertible Promissory Note (the “Note”), in the aggregate principal amount of $412,500. The
Note was fully funded as of March 31, 2017, with the Company receiving $375,000 of net proceeds (net of OID). The Note has a 10%
original issuance discount to offset transaction, diligence and legal costs. The Note bears an interest rate of 10% and matures12 months after
the tranches are funded. The Note may be converted by the lender at any time into shares of Company’s common stock at a price equal to
62.5% of the lowest closing bid price for the Company’s common stock during the 20 trading days immediately preceding a conversion
date. In connection with the issuance of the note, the Company recorded a premium of $247,500 as the note is considered stock settled debt
under ASC 480, which was fully accreted as of March 31, 2017. During the year ended December 31, 2017, $262,181 of the outstanding
principal and interest of the note was converted into 62,425,000 shares of common stock. As of December 31, 2017, the outstanding
principal and interest on the note was $183,776.
On February 15, 2017, the Company entered into an agreement with a lender, providing for the issuance of a non-cash Convertible
Redeemable Note with the principal amount of $15,000 (the “Note”) as penalty interest. The Note bears an interest rate of 10% and matures
on February 17, 2018. The Note may be converted by the lender at any time into shares of Company’s common stock at a stock at a price
equal to the lesser of a 37.5% discount to the common stock price on the date of the note or a 37.5% discount of the lowest trading price for
the Company’s common stock 15 days prior trading days including the day upon which a notice of conversion is received by the Company.
The Note also contain certain representations, warranties, covenants and events of default, and increases in the amount of the principal and
interest rates under the Notes in the event of such defaults. In connection with the issuance of the Note, the Company recorded a debt
discount of $8,976 related to the embedded conversion option derivative liability. The amortization expense related to that discount
recorded was $8,259 for the year ended December 31, 2017. As of December 31, 2017, the outstanding principal and interest on the Note
was $16,303. As the note conversion includes a “lesser of” pricing provision, a derivative liability of $8,976 was recorded when the Note
was entered into. The derivative liability is re-measured at each balance sheet date and reclassified to equity on a pro-rata basis upon
conversion of the note, the derivative liability balance for the Note at December 31, 2017 was $9,811.
On March 14, 2017, the Company closed a Securities Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with a lender, providing for the purchase of
two Convertible Redeemable Notes in the aggregate principal amount of $104,000 (the “Notes”), with the first note being in the amount of
$52,000 (“Note I”) and the second note being in the amount of $52,000 (“Note II”) with a maturity date of March 14, 2018. Note I was
funded on March 14, 2017, with the Company receiving $47,500 of proceeds, net of OID of $2,000 and legal fees of $2,500. Note II was
initially paid for by the issuance of an offsetting $52,000 secured note issued by the lender to the Company (“Secured Note”). Note II was
funded on May 3, 2017, with the Company receiving $47,500 of proceeds, net of OID of $2,000 and legal fees of $2,500. The Notes bear
an interest rate of 12%; and may converted be at any time after 180 days of the date of closing converted into shares of Company common
stock convertible at the lesser of a 37.5% discount to the common stock price on the date of the note or a 37.5% discount to the price of our
common stock price at the time of conversion. The Notes also contain certain representations, warranties, covenants and events of default,
and increases in the amount of the principal and interest rates under the Notes in the event of such defaults. In connection with the issuance
of Notes, the Company recorded a debt discount of $86,964 related to the embedded conversion option derivative liability. The
amortization expense related to that discount recorded was approximately $81,179 during the year ended December 31, 2017. During the
year ended December 31, 2017, $55,774 of the outstanding principal and interest of the note was converted into 12,276,601 shares of
common stock. As of December 31, 2017, the outstanding principal and interest on the Notes was $57,407. As the note conversion includes
a “lesser of” pricing provision, a derivative liability of $97,555 was recorded when the Notes were entered into. The derivative liability is
re-measured at each balance sheet date and reclassified to equity on a pro-rata basis upon conversion of the notes, the derivative liability
balance for the Notes at December 31, 2017 was $34,438.
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On March 24, 2017, the Company closed a Securities Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with a lender, providing for the purchase of
two Convertible Redeemable Notes in the aggregate principal amount of $89,150 (the “Notes”), with the first note being in the amount of
$44,575 (“Note I”), and the second note being in the amount of $44,575 (“Note II”). Note I was funded on March 27, 2017, with the
Company receiving $35,000 of net proceeds (net of legal fees and OID). Note II will initially be paid for by the issuance of an offsetting
$39,250 secured note issued to the Company by the lender (the “Secured Note”). The funding of Note II is subject to the mutual agreement
of the lender and the Company. The lender is required to pay the principal amount of the Secured Note in cash and in full prior to executing
any conversions under Note II. The Notes bear an interest rate of 10% and are due and payable December 24, 2017. The Note may be
converted by the lender at any time into shares of Company’s common stock at a price equal to 62.5% of the lowest closing bid price for
the Company’s common stock during the 20 days prior trading days including the day upon which a notice of conversion is received by the
Company. In connection with the issuance of the note, the Company recorded a premium of $26,746 as the note is considered stock settled
debt under ASC 480, which was fully accreted as of March 31, 2017. During the year ended December 31, 2017, $24,906 of the
outstanding principal and interest of the note was converted into 20,500,000 shares of common stock. As of December 31, 2017, the
outstanding principal and interest on the note was $23,012.
On April 10, 2017, the Company closed a Securities Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with a lender providing for the purchase of two
Convertible Redeemable Notes in the aggregate principal amount of $77,792 (the “Notes”), with the first note being in the amount of
$38,896 (“Note I”), and the second note being in the amount of $38,896 (“Note II”). Note I was funded April 10, 2017, with the Company
receiving $34,250 of net proceeds (net of OID). Note II will initially be paid for by the issuance of an offsetting $34,250 secured note
issued to the Company by the lender (the “Secured Note”). The funding of Note II is subject to the mutual agreement of the lender and the
Company which has not occurred as December 31, 2017. The lender is required to pay the principal amount of the Secured Note in cash
and in full prior to executing any conversions under Note II. The Notes bear an interest rate of 10% and are due and payable on January 10,
2018. The Notes may be converted by the lender at any time into shares of Company’s common stock (as determined in the Notes)
calculated at the time of conversion, except for Note II, which requires full payment of the Secured Note by the lender before conversions
may be made. The Notes (subject to funding in the case of Note II) may be converted by the lender at any time into shares of Company’s
common stock at a price equal to 62.5% of the lowest closing bid price for the Company’s common stock during the 20 days prior trading
days including the day upon which a notice of conversion is received by the Company. In connection with the issuance of the note, the
Company recorded a premium of $23,338 as the notes is considered stock settled debt under ASC 480, which was fully accreted as of June
30, 2017. During the year ended December 31, 2017, the outstanding principal and interest of $41,291 was fully converted into 15,921,000
shares of common stock. The note had no outstanding balance as of December 31, 2017.
On April 17, 2017, the Company closed a Securities Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with a lender, providing for the purchase of a
Secured Convertible Promissory Note in the aggregate principal amount of up to $165,000 (“Note”), The Note was fully funded as of
December 31, 2017, with the Company receiving $150,000 of net total proceeds (net of 10% OID) . The Note bears an interest rate of 10%,
which is payable in the Company’s common stock based on the conversion formula (as defined below), and the maturity date for each
funded tranche will be 12 months from the date on which the funds are received by the Company. The Note may be converted by the lender
at any time into shares of Company’s common stock at a 37.5% discount off the lowest closing bid price for the Company’s common stock
during the 20 trading days immediately preceding a conversion date. In connection with the issuance of the note, the Company recorded a
premium of $99,000 as the note is considered stock settled debt under ASC 480, which was fully accreted as of September 30, 2017. As of
December 31, 2017, the outstanding principal and interest on the note was $175,054.
On May 2, 2017, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with a lender, providing for the purchase of
two Convertible Redeemable Notes in the aggregate principal amount of $64,205 (the “Notes”), with the first note being in the amount of
$32,102 (“Note I”), and the second note being in the amount of $32,102 (“Note II”). Note I was funded on May 3, 2017, and Note II was
funded on October 31, 2017, with the Company receiving $51,250 of net total proceeds (net of OID and legal fees). The Notes bear an
interest rate of 10% and are due and payable on February 2, 2018. The Notes may be converted by the lender at any time into shares of
Company’s common stock at a price equal to 62.5% of the lowest closing bid price of the common stock for the 20 prior trading days
including the day upon which a notice of conversion is received by the Company. In connection with the issuance of the note, the
Company recorded a premium of $38,522 as the notes are considered stock settled debt under ASC 480, which was fully accreted upon
note inception. As of December 31, 2017, the outstanding principal and interest on the note was $66,879.
On May 22, 2017, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with a lender for the purchase of a
Convertible Redeemable Note in the aggregate principal amount of $50,000 (the “Note”). The Note was funded on May 25, 2017, with the
Company receiving $45,000 of net proceeds (net of OID and legal fees). The Note bears an interest rate of 10% and is due and payable on
May 22, 2018. The Note may be converted by the lender at any time into shares of Company’s common stock (as determined in the Note)
at a price equal to 65% of the lowest closing bid price of the common stock for the 20 prior trading days including the day upon which a
notice of conversion is received by the Company. In connection with the issuance of the note, the Company recorded a premium of
$26,923 as the note is considered stock settled debt under ASC 480, which was fully accreted as of June 30, 2017. During the year ended
December 31, 2017, the Company exercised its right to prepay the outstanding principal and interest for a total redemption amount of
$69,911 and recorded a loss on extinguishment of debt in the amount of $17,500. The note had no outstanding balance as of December 31,
2017.
On May 23, 2017, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with a lender for the purchase of a Convertible
Promissory Note in the aggregate principal amount of $53,000 (the “Note”). The Note has been funded, with the Company receiving
$50,000 of net proceeds (net of fees). The Note bears an interest rate of 8% and is due and payable on May 23, 2018. The Note may be
converted by the lender at any time into shares of Company’s common stock (as determined in the Note) at a price equal to 65% of the
average of the lowest five closing bid prices of the common stock for the 10 prior trading days upon which a notice of conversion is
received by the Company. In connection with the issuance of the note, the Company recorded a premium of $28,538 as the note is

considered stock settled debt under ASC 480, which was fully accreted as of June 30, 2017. As of December 31, 2017, the outstanding
principal and interest on the note was $55,562.
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On June 6, 2017, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with a lender, providing for the purchase of
two Convertible Redeemable Notes in the aggregate principal amount of $104,000 (the “Notes”), with the first note being in the amount of
$52,000 (“Note I”), and the second note being in the amount of $52,000 (“Note II”). Note I was funded on June 6, 2017 and Note II was
funded on August 10, 2017, with the Company receiving $95,000 of aggregate net proceeds (net of OID and fees). The Notes bear an
interest rate of 12% and are due and payable on June 6, 2018. The Notes may be converted by the lender at any time into shares of
Company’s common stock at a price equal to 62.5% of the lowest closing bid price of the common stock for the 15 prior trading days
including the day upon which a notice of conversion is received by the Company. In connection with the issuance of the Notes, the
Company recorded a premium of $62,400 as the notes are considered stock settled debt under ASC 480, which was fully accreted upon
issuance of the Notes. During the year ended December 31, 2017, $55,256 of the outstanding principal and interest on the note was
converted into 40,317,657 shares of common stock, As of December 31, 2017, the outstanding principal and interest on the note was
$54,600.
On July 17, 2017, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with a lender for the purchase of a
Convertible Promissory Note in the aggregate principal amount of $53,000 (the “Note”). The Note has been funded, with the Company
receiving $50,000 of net proceeds (net of fees). The Note bears an interest rate of 8% and is due and payable on April 30, 2018. The Note
may be converted by the lender at any time into shares of Company’s common stock (as determined in the Note) at a price equal to 65% of
the average of the lowest five closing bid prices of the common stock for the 10 trading days ending on the latest complete trading day
prior to the conversion date. In connection with the issuance of the note, the Company recorded a premium of $28,538 as the note is
considered stock settled debt under ASC 480, which was fully accreted upon issuance of the Note. As of December 31, 2017, the
outstanding principal and interest on the note was $54,943.
On August 8, 2017, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with a lender for the purchase of a
Convertible Promissory Note in the aggregate principal amount of $55,000 (the “Note”). The Note has been funded, with the Company
receiving $50,000 of net proceeds (net of fees). The Note bears an interest rate of 12% and is due and payable on April 8, 2018. The Note
may be converted by the lender at any time into shares of Company’s common stock (as determined in the Note) at a price equal to 62.5%
of the lowest closing bid prices of the common stock for the 20 prior trading days including the day upon which a notice of conversion is
received by the Company. In connection with the issuance of the note, the Company recorded a premium of $33,000 as the note is
considered stock settled debt under ASC 480, which was fully accreted upon note inception. As of December 31, 2017, the outstanding
principal and interest on the note was $57,750.
On August 11, 2017, the Company closed a Securities Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with a lender, providing for the purchase of
two Convertible Redeemable Notes in the aggregate principal amount of $94,500 (the “Notes”), with the first note being in the amount of
$47,250 (“Note I”) and the second note being in the amount of $47,250 (“Note II”) with a maturity date of August 11, 2018. Note I and
Note II were funded on September 11, 2017 and October 19, 2017, respectively, with the Company receiving, for each note, net proceeds
of $40,000 (net of OID and legal fees) and an aggregate net proceeds of $80,000 (net of OID and legal fees). The Notes bear an interest rate
of 12%; and may converted be at any time into shares of Company common stock, convertible at the lesser of a 37.5% discount to the
common stock price on the date of the note or a 37.5% discount to the price of our common stock price at the time of conversion. The
Notes also contain certain representations, warranties, covenants and events of default, and increases in the amount of the principal and
interest rates under the Notes in the event of such defaults. In connection with the issuance of note, the Company recorded a debt discount
of $46,588 related to the embedded conversion option derivative liability. The amortization expense related to that discount recorded was
$18,128 during the year ended December 31, 2017. As of December 31, 2017, the outstanding principal and interest on the Notes was
$98,011. As the note conversion includes a “lesser of” pricing provision, a derivative liability of $46,588 was recorded when the Notes
were entered into. The derivative liability is re-measured at each balance sheet date and reclassified to equity on a pro-rata basis upon
conversion of the notes, the derivative liability balance for the note at December 31, 2017 was $46,755.
On August 21, 2017, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with a lender for the purchase of a
Convertible Promissory Note in the aggregate principal amount of $53,000 (the “Note”). The Note was funded on August 22, 2017, with
the Company receiving $50,000 of net proceeds (net of fees). The Note bears an interest rate of 8% and is due and payable on May 30,
2018. The Note may be converted by the lender at any time into shares of Company’s common stock (as determined in the Note) at a price
equal to 65% of the average of the lowest five closing bid prices of the common stock for the 10 trading days ending on the latest complete
trading day prior to the conversion date. In connection with the issuance of the note, the Company recorded a premium of $28,538 as the
note is considered stock settled debt under ASC 480, which was fully accreted upon note inception. As of December 31, 2017, the
outstanding principal and interest on the note was $54,590.
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On September 11, 2017, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with a lender, providing for the
purchase of a Secured Convertible Promissory Note in the aggregate principal amount of up to $137,500 (the “Note”), with the first and
second tranche funded on September 15, 2017 and October 16, 2017, respectively, with the Company receiving $125,000 of net proceeds
(net of OID). The Note has a 10% original issuance discount to offset transaction, diligence and legal costs. The Note bears an interest rate
of 10% and matures twelve months after the tranches are funded. The Note may be converted by the lender at any time into shares of
Company’s common stock at a price equal to 62.5% of the lowest closing bid price for the Company’s common stock during the 20 trading
days immediately preceding a conversion date. In connection with the issuance of the note, the Company recorded a premium of $82,500
as the Note is considered stock settled debt under ASC 480, which was fully accreted upon note inception. As of December 31, 2017, the
outstanding principal and interest on the note was $141,070.
On September 12, 2017, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with a lender, providing for the
purchase of two Convertible Redeemable Notes in the aggregate principal amount of $104,000 (the “Notes”), with the first note being in
the amount of $52,000 (“Note I”), and the second note being in the amount of $52,000 (“Note II”). Note I was funded on September 12,
2017 and Note II was funded on September 27, 2017, with the Company receiving $47,500 of net proceeds (net of OID and legal fees) for
each note and aggregate net proceeds of $95,000. The Notes bear an interest rate of 12% and are due and payable on September 12, 2018.
The Notes may be converted by the lender at any time into shares of Company’s common stock at a price equal to 62.5% of the lowest
closing bid price of the common stock for the 15 prior trading days including the day upon which a notice of conversion is received by the
Company. In connection with the issuance of the Notes, the Company recorded a premium of $62,400 as the notes are considered stock
settled debt under ASC 480, which was fully accreted upon note inception. As of December 31, 2017, the outstanding principal and interest
on the note was $107,120.
On October 2, 2017, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with a lender, providing for the
purchase of two Convertible Promissory Notes in the aggregate principal amount of $107,000 (the “Notes”), with the first note being in the
amount of $53,500 (“Note I”), and the second note being in the amount of $53,500 (“Note II”). Note I was funded on October 3, 2017, with
the Company receiving $45,000 of net proceeds (net of OID, legal and other fees). Note II will initially be paid for by the issuance of an
offsetting $50,000 note issued to the Company by the Lender (the “Collateralized Note”). The funding of Note II is subject to the mutual
agreement of the lender and the Company which has not occurred as of December 31, 2017. The lender is required to pay the principal
amount of Note I in cash and in full prior to executing any conversions under Note II. The Notes bear an interest rate of 12% and are due
and payable on October 2, 2018. The Notes may be converted by the lender at any time into shares of Company’s common stock (as
determined in the Notes) calculated at the time of conversion, except for Note II, which requires full payment of the Collateralized Note by
the lender before conversions may be made. The Notes (subject to funding in the case of Note II) may be converted by the lender at any
time into shares of Company’s common stock price on the date of the note or 62.5% of the lowest closing bid price of the common stock
for the 20 prior trading days including the day upon which a notice of conversion is received by the Company. In connection with the
issuance of note, the Company recorded a debt discount of $33,514 related to the embedded conversion option derivative liability. The
amortization expense related to that discount recorded was $8,005 during the year ended December 31, 2017. As of December 31, 2017,
the outstanding principal and interest on the Notes was $55,065. As the note conversion includes a “lesser of” pricing provision, a
derivative liability of $33,514 was recorded when the Notes were entered into. The derivative liability is re-measured at each balance sheet
date and reclassified to equity on a pro-rata basis upon conversion of the notes, the derivative liability balance for the note at December 31,
2017 was $57,537.
On October 11, 2017, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with a lender, providing for the
purchase of two Convertible Redeemable Notes in the aggregate principal amount of $104,000 (the “Notes”), with the first note being in
the amount of $52,000 (“Note I”), and the second note being in the amount of $52,000 (“Note II”). Note I was funded on October 11, 2017
and Note II was funded on October 25, 2017, with the Company receiving $95,000 of net aggregate proceeds (net of OID and legal fees).
The Notes bear an interest rate of 12% and are due and payable on October 11, 2018. The Notes may be converted by the lender at any time
into shares of Company’s common stock (as determined in the Notes) at a price equal to 62.5% of the lowest closing bid price of the
common stock for the 20 prior trading days including the day upon which a notice of conversion is received by the Company. In connection
with the issuance of the Notes, the Company recorded a premium of $62,400 as the notes are considered stock settled debt under ASC 480,
which was fully accreted upon note inception. As of December 31, 2017, the outstanding principal and interest on the note was $106,470.
On November 9, 2017, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with a lender for the purchase of a
Convertible Promissory Note in the aggregate principal amount of $53,000 (“Note”). The Note was funded on November 15, 2017, with
the Company receiving $50,000 of net proceeds (net of fees). The Note bears an interest rate of 8% and is due and payable on August 30,
2018. The Note may be converted by the lender at any time into shares of Company’s common stock (as determined in the Note) at a price
equal to 65% of the average of the lowest five closing bid prices of the common stock for the 10 trading days ending on the latest complete
trading day prior to the conversion date. In connection with the issuance of the Note, the Company recorded a premium of $28,538 as the
Note is considered stock settled debt under ASC 480, which was fully accreted upon note inception. As of December 31, 2017, the
outstanding principal and interest on the note was $53,530.
On November 13, 2017, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with a lender, providing for the
purchase of two Convertible Redeemable Notes in the aggregate principal amount of $104,000 (the “Notes”), with the first note being in
the amount of $52,000 (“Note I”), and the second note being in the amount of $52,000 (“Note II”). Note I and II were funded on November
13, 2017 and December 1, 2017, respectively, with the Company receiving $95,000 of net aggregate proceeds (net of OID and legal fees).
The Notes bear an interest rate of 12% and are due and payable on November 13, 2018. The Notes may be converted by the lender at any
time into shares of Company’s common stock at a price equal to 62.5% of the lowest closing bid price of the common stock for the 20 prior
trading days including the day upon which a notice of conversion is received by the Company. In connection with the issuance of the
Notes, the Company recorded a premium of $62,400 as the notes are considered stock settled debt under ASC 480, which was fully

accreted upon note inception. As of December 31, 2017, the outstanding principal and interest on the note was $105,300.
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On November 21, 2017, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with a lender, providing for the
purchase of a Secured Convertible Promissory Note in the aggregate principal amount of up to $137,500 (“Note”). The first and second
tranche were funded on November 24, 2017 and December 15, 2017, respectively, with the Company receiving $75,000 of net total
proceeds (net of OID). The Note bears an interest rate of 10%, which is payable in the Company’s common stock based on the conversion
formula (as defined below), and the maturity date for each funded tranche will be 12 months from the date on which the funds are received
by the Company and may be converted by the lender at any time into shares of Company’s common stock at a 37.5% discount to the lowest
closing bid price for the Company’s common stock during the 20 trading days immediately preceding a conversion date. In connection with
the issuance of the Note, the Company recorded a premium of $49,500 as the notes are considered stock settled debt under ASC 480, which
was fully accreted upon note inception. As of December 31, 2017, the outstanding principal and interest on the note was $83,016.
On November 21, 2017, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with a lender, providing for the
purchase of a Convertible Redeemable Notes in the aggregate principal amount of $57,750 (“Note”). The Note was funded on November
21, 2017, with the Company receiving $50,000 of net proceeds (net of OID and legal fees). The Note bears an interest rate of 12% and is
due and payable on August 21, 2018. The Note may be converted by the lender at any time into shares of Company’s common stock (as
determined in Note) at a 37.5% discount to the lowest closing bid price of the common stock for the 20 prior trading days including the day
upon which a notice of conversion is received by the Company. In connection with the issuance of the Note, the Company recorded a
premium of $34,650 as the Note is considered stock settled debt under ASC 480, which was fully accreted upon note inception. As of
December 31, 2017, the outstanding principal and interest on the note was $58,520.
On December 6, 2017 the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with a lender, providing for the
purchase of a Convertible Redeemable Notes in the aggregate principal amount of $38,500 (“Note”). The Note was funded on December
13, 2017, with the Company receiving $36,120 of net proceeds (net of fees). The Note bears an interest rate of 10% and is due and payable
on December 6, 2018. The Note may be converted by the lender at any time into shares of Company’s common stock (as determined in
Note) at a 37.5% discount to the lowest closing bid price of the common stock for the 20 prior trading days including the day upon which a
notice of conversion is received by the Company. In connection with the issuance of the Note, the Company recorded a premium of
$23,100 as the Note is considered stock settled debt under ASC 480, which was fully accreted upon note inception. As of December 31,
2017, the outstanding principal and interest on the note was $38,660.
On December 20, 2017, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with a lender, providing for the
purchase of a Convertible Redeemable Notes in the aggregate principal amount of $52,000 (“Note”). The Note was funded on December
22, 2017, with the Company receiving $47,500 of net proceeds (net of OID and legal fees). The Note bear an interest rate of 12% and are
due and payable on December 20, 2018. The Note may be converted by the lender at any time into shares of Company’s common stock at a
price equal to 62.5% of the lowest closing bid price of the common stock for the 15 prior trading days including the day upon which a
notice of conversion is received by the Company. In connection with the issuance of the Note, the Company recorded a premium of
$31,200 as the Note is considered stock settled debt under ASC 480, which was fully accreted upon note inception. As of December 31,
2017, the outstanding principal and interest on the note was $52,173.
Other Financings
On July 9, 2012, the Company issued a Secured Promissory Note (the “H&K Note”) in the principal amount of $849,510 to
Holland & Knight LLP (“Holland & Knight”), its external legal counsel, in support of amounts due and owing to Holland & Knight as of
June 30, 2012. The H&K Note is non-interest bearing, and principal on the H&K Note is due and payable as soon as practicably possible by
the Company. The Company has agreed to remit payment against the H&K Note immediately upon each occurrence of any of the
following events: (a) completion of an acquisition or disposition of any of the Company’s assets or stock or any of the Company’s
subsidiaries’ assets or stock with gross proceeds in excess of $750,000, (b) completion of any financing with gross proceeds in excess of
$1,500,000, (c) receipt of any revenue in excess of $750,000 from the licensing or development of any of the Company’s or the Company’s
subsidiaries’ products, or (d) any liquidation or reorganization of the Company’s assets or liabilities. The amount of payment to be remitted
by the Company shall equal one-third of the gross proceeds received by the Company upon each occurrence of any of the above events,
until the principal is repaid in full. If the Company receives $3,000,000 in gross proceeds in any one financing or licensing arrangement, the
entire principal balance shall be paid in full. The H&K Note was secured by substantially all of the Company’s assets pursuant to a security
agreement between the Company and Holland & Knight dated July 9, 2012. In conjunction with the TCA Purchase Agreement and the
Boeing License Agreement, Holland & Knight agreed to terminate its security interest. As of December 31, 2017, the Company had repaid
$598,301 of the H&K Note and the outstanding balance was $252,209 which is included in notes payable on the consolidated balance
sheet.
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On November 1, 2015, the Company issued a convertible note (the “Note”) to a consultant, in the principal amount of $62,500
with maturity date of November 1, 2017 and bears an interest of 10% per annum, pursuant to a consulting agreement. In connection with
the issuance of Note, the Company recorded a debt discount of $62,500, related to the embedded conversion option derivative liability.
During 2016, the outstanding principal and interest on Note was converted into 103 shares of common stock. As the note conversion
includes a “lesser of” pricing provision, a derivative liability of $76,987 was recorded when the Note was entered into. The derivative
liability is re-measured at each balance sheet date and reclassified to equity on a pro-rata basis upon conversion of the note. As of
December 31, 2016, the note had no outstanding balance and the derivative liability recorded was reclassified to equity upon conversion.
On March 16, 2016, the Company entered into a factoring agreement with a lender for $105,000 to fund working capital. The
Company also paid $3,150 of origination fees. The agreement requires daily repayments of $862 for an eight-month term, with the total
amount repaid of $144,900. As of September 30, 2016, the Company has repaid the outstanding principal and interest balance of this note.
On June 7, 2016, the Company entered into a second factoring agreement with a lender for $51,000 to fund working capital. The Company
also paid $1,020 of origination fees. The agreement requires daily repayments of $419 for an eight-month term, with the total amount to be
repaid $70,380. As of December 31, 2016, the Company has repaid the outstanding principal and interest balance of this note. On
September 9, 2016, the Company entered into a third factoring agreement with a lender for $105,000 to fund working capital. The
Company also paid $2,100 of origination fees. The agreement requires daily repayments of $862 for an eight-month term, with the total
amount to be repaid $144,900. As of March 31, 2017, the Company has repaid the outstanding principal and interest balance of this note.
On November 17, 2016, the Company entered into a fourth factoring agreement with a lender for $100,000 to fund working capital. The
Company also paid $2,000 of origination fees. The agreement requires daily repayments of $821 for an eight-month term, with the total
amount to be repaid $138,000. As of June 30, 2017, the Company has repaid the full amount of the outstanding principal and interest
balance of this note. On March 7, 2017, the Company entered into a fifth factoring agreement with a lender for $105,000 to fund working
capital. The Company also paid $2,100 of origination fees. The agreement requires daily repayments of $1,034 for four and a half-month
term, with the total amount to be repaid $144,900. As of September 30, 2017, the Company has repaid the full amount of the outstanding
principal and interest balance of this note. On May 8, 2017, the Company entered into a sixth factoring agreement with a lender for
$120,000 to fund working capital. The Company also paid $2,400 of origination fees. The agreement requires daily repayments of $1,250
for four and a half-month term, with the total amount to be repaid $166,200. During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company has
repaid the full amount of the outstanding principal and interest balance of this note.
On May 2, 2016, the Company, through its wholly owned subsidiary, ENG entered into a revolving line of credit (the “Line”) with
California Bank of Commerce (“CBC”). The terms of the Line allow ENG to borrow against its accounts receivable and inventory to
manage its project based working capital requirements. The $350,000 Line has a maturity date of May 5, 2018 and borrowings under the
Line bear interest at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate plus 1.5% (currently 5.0%). The Company has provided a guaranty of the Line to
CBC. The Line also contains certain representations, warranties, covenants and events of default, including the requirement to maintain
specified financial ratios. ENG currently meets all such ratios. Breaches of any of these terms could limit ENG’s ability to borrow under
the Line and result in increases in the interest rate under the Line. As of December 31, 2017, $350,000 was drawn under the Line.
During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company issued four separate convertible notes (the “Notes”) to a consultant, three
of the notes had the principal amount of $20,000 each and the fourth had a principal amount of $22,500, for an aggregate principal amount
of $82,500 with maturity dates between April 27, 2017 and August 27, 2017, pursuant to a consulting agreement. The Notes bear interest at
8% per annum and are convertible at a 37.5% discount to lowest closing bid price in the 15 trading days prior to conversion. In connection
with the issuance of the Notes, the Company recorded a total premium of $49,500 as the notes are considered stock settled debt under ASC
480, which was fully accreted as of December 31, 2016. During the year ended December 31, 2016, $30,000 of the outstanding principal
and interest on Notes were converted into 23,134 shares of common stock. During the year ended December 31, 2017, $43,716 of the
outstanding principal and interest on Notes were converted into 5,002,479 shares of common stock. As of December 31, 2017, the
outstanding principal and interest of the Notes was $14,234.
On December 2015, the Company leased a specialized equipment under leases classified as capital leases. The interest rate related
to the lease obligation is 8.1% and is amortized over 4 years with the maturity date of November 30, 2019. As of December 31, 2017, the
outstanding principal and interest on the lease obligation was approximately $21,000, of which approximately $13,000 is classified under
notes payable and approximately $8,000 is classified under long-term loan payable on the consolidated balance sheet.
On December 2015 and August 2016, the Company issued two separate convertible notes (the “Notes”) in relation to the
acquisitions of Thermomedics and ENG. These Notes were amended in the beginning of 2017 and pursuant to the amended terms, are no
longer convertible notes. As of June 30, 2017, the remaining outstanding principal and interest balance of approximately $123,000 on one
of the notes was paid in full, from the proceeds on sale of non-controlling interest (see Note 5). As of December 31, 2017, the total
outstanding principal and interest on the remaining note was $44,168 which is included in notes payable on the consolidated balance sheet.
The Company has approximately $3.6 million of debt which are past maturity and subject to conversion as of December 31, 2017.
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Embedded Conversion Option Derivatives
Due to the conversion terms of certain promissory notes, the embedded conversion options met the criteria to be bifurcated and
presented as derivative liabilities. The Company calculated the estimated fair values of the liabilities for embedded conversion option
derivative instruments at the original note inception dates using the Monte Carlo option pricing model using the share prices of the
Company’s stock on the dates of valuation and using the following ranges for volatility, expected term and the risk-free interest rate at each
respective valuation date, no dividend has been assumed for any of the periods:

Volatility
Expected Term
Risk Free Interest Rate

December 31,
2017
2016
231 – 383%
360%
0.17 – 1.41 years
0.01 - 1.34 years
1.39 – 1.76%
0.45%

Note Inception Date
195 - 383%
0.4 - 1.50 years
0.21 - 2.0%

The following reflects the initial fair value on the note inception dates and changes in fair value of the level 3 derivative through:

Balance, December 31
Note inception date fair value allocated to debt discount
Note inception date fair value allocated to other expense
Reclassification of derivative liability to equity upon debt conversion
Change in fair value
Embedded conversion option liability fair value

December 31,
2017
4,284,264 $
725,506
71,396
(2,622,961)
191,906
2,650,111 $

$

$

2016
7,785,824
2,775,894
984,889
(4,676,258)
(2,586,085)
4,284,264

Fair Value Measurements
We currently measure and report at fair value the liability for embedded conversion option derivatives. The fair value liabilities
for price adjustable convertible debt instruments have been recorded as determined utilizing the Monte Carlo option pricing model as
previously discussed. The following tables summarize our financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis for the
years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016:
Quoted
Prices in
Active
Markets for
Identical
Assets
(Level 1)

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

Balance at December 31, 2016:
Liabilities:
Fair value of liability for embedded conversion option
derivative instruments

$

4,284,264

$

-

$

-

$

4,284,264

Balance at December 31, 2017:
Liabilities:
Fair value of liability for embedded conversion option
derivative instruments

$

2,650,111

$

-

$

-

$

2,650,111

10. Stockholders’ Deficit
Authorized Common Stock and Reverse Stock Split
On January 30, 2017, the Company filed the First Amendment to the Company’s Third Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation with the State of Delaware, to increase the Company’s authorized capital stock from 3.9 billion shares to 20 billion shares
(19.995 billion common). The November 30, 2016 filing of the Third Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation changed the par
value of the Company’s Common Stock from $0.001 to $0.0001.
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On May 19, 2017, the Company filed the Second Amendment to the Third Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as
amended, with the State of Delaware, to implement a 1-for-3,000 reverse stock split of the Company’s outstanding Common Stock, which
became effective on May 23, 2017. The reverse stock split affected the outstanding Common Stock as well as all Common Stock
underlying convertible notes, warrants, convertible preferred stock and stock options outstanding immediately prior to the reverse stock
split. The number of authorized shares was not adjusted. All share and per share amounts in the accompanying historical consolidated
financial statements have been adjusted retroactively to reflect the change in the par value of the Common Stock and the 1-for-3,000
reverse stock split.
On December 27, 2017, the Company received (i) a written consent in lieu of a meeting of Stockholders (the “Written Consent”)
from holders of shares of voting securities representing approximately 78% of the total issued and outstanding shares of voting stock of the
Company; and (ii) a unanimous written consent of the Board to approve the following: the granting of discretionary authority to the Board,
at any time for a period of 12 months after the date of the Written Consent, to authorize the adoption of an amendment to the Company’s
Third Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended (the “Certificate of Incorporation”), to effect a reverse stock split of
the Company’s common stock at a ratio between 1 for 100 to 1 for 1,000, such ratio to be determined by the Board, or to determine not to
proceed with the reverse stock split (the “Reverse Stock Split”); and the granting of discretionary authority to the Board for a period of 12
months after the date of the Written Consent, to authorize the adoption of an amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation to decrease the
Company’s authorized capital stock, from 20,000,000,000 shares down to an amount not less than 50,000,000 shares, such decrease to be
determined by the Board, or to determine not to proceed with the decrease in authorized capital stock (the “Decrease in Authorized
Shares”). As of the date of this filing, the Company had not effected the Reverse Stock Split or the Decrease in Authorized Shares.
Conversion of Convertible Notes
During the year ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, approximately 357 million and 0.9 million shares were issued, respectively,
in connection with conversion of approximately $2.6 and $5.3 million of convertible promissory notes, respectively (see Note 9).
Restricted Shares for Services
During the year ended December 31, 2017, there were no shares of restricted stock issued to employees, consultants or advisors.
During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company issued, outside of the approved employee stock incentive plans, an aggregate of
243 shares of restricted stock to consultants and advisors valued between $930 and $3,000 per share and recorded related stock-based
compensation of approximately $219,000 for the vested amounts.
Sale of Non-Controlling Interest
During the quarter ended June 30, 2017, the Company issued 1,300,000 shares of the Company’s common stock as a fee in
relation to the sale of a non- controlling interest (see Note 3) with grant date fair value of $78,000.
Series I and Series II Preferred Stock
On September 30, 2013, the Board of Directors authorized and in November 2013, the Company filed with the State of Delaware,
a Certificate of Designations of Preferences, Rights and Limitations of Series I Preferred Stock. The Series I Preferred Stock ranks junior to
the Company’s Series F Preferred Stock and to all liabilities of the Company and is senior to the Common Stock and any other preferred
stock. The Series I Preferred Stock has a stated value per share of $1,000, a dividend rate of 6% per annum, voting rights on an as-converted
basis and a conversion price equal to the closing bid price of the Company’s Common Stock on the date of issuance. The Series I Preferred
Stock is required to be redeemed (at stated value, plus any accrued dividends) by the Company after three years or any time after one year,
the Company may at its option, redeem the shares subject to a ten-day notice (to allow holder conversion). The Series I Preferred Stock is
convertible into the Company’s Common Stock, at stated value plus accrued dividends, at the closing bid price on September 30, 2013, any
time at the option of the holder and by the Company in the event that the Company’s closing stock price exceeds 400% of the conversion
price for twenty consecutive trading days. The Company has classified the Series I Preferred Stock as a liability in the consolidated balance
sheet due to the mandatory redemption feature. The Series I Preferred Stock has voting rights equal to the number of shares of Common
Stock that Series I Preferred Stock is convertible into, times twenty-five. This provision gave the holders of Series I Preferred Stock voting
control in situations requiring shareholder vote.
On November 5, 2013, the Company filed an Amended and Restated Certificate of Designation of Series I Preferred Stock (the
“Amended Certificate of Designation”). The Amended Certificate of Designation was filed to clarify and revise the mechanics of
conversion and certain conversion rights of the holders of Series I Preferred Stock. No other rights were modified or amended in the
Amended Certificate of Designation. On January 8, 2015, the Company filed an amendment to the Amended Certificate of Designation to
increase the authorized shares of Series I Convertible Preferred Stock from 1,000 shares to 2,500 shares. No other terms were modified or
amended in the Amended Certificate of Designation.
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On July 25, 2016, the Board authorized a Certificate of Designations of Preferences, Rights and Limitations of Series II
Convertible Preferred Stock. The Certificate was filed with the State of Delaware Secretary of State on July 25, 2016. The Series II
Preferred ranks: (a) senior with respect to dividends and right of liquidation with the common stock; (b) pari passu with respect to
dividends and right of liquidation with the Company’s Series I Preferred and Series J Convertible Preferred Stock; and (c) junior to all
existing and future indebtedness of the Company. The Series II Preferred has a stated value per share of $1,000, subject to adjustment as
provided in the Certificate (the “Stated Value”), and a dividend rate of 6% per annum of the Stated Value. As with the Series I Preferred,
the Series II Preferred has 25 votes per common share equivalent. The Series II Preferred is subject to redemption (at Stated Value, plus
any accrued, but unpaid dividends (the “Liquidation Value”)) by the Company no later than three years after a Deemed Liquidation Event
and at the Company’s option after one year from the issuance date of the Series II Preferred, subject to a ten-day notice (to allow holder
conversion). The Series II Preferred is convertible at the option of a holder or if the closing price of the common stock exceeds 400% of
the Conversion Price for a period of twenty consecutive trading days, at the option of the Company. Conversion Price means a price per
share of the common stock equal to 100% of the lowest daily volume weighted average price of the common stock during the subsequent
12 months following the date the Series II Preferred was issued.
From September 30, 2013 through April 6, 2016, the Company issued 2,025 shares of Series I Preferred Stock to its officers,
directors and management for management and director compensation and payment of deferred obligations. Each of the Series I preferred is
convertible into the Company’s Common Stock, at stated value plus accrued dividends, at the closing bid price on the issuance date, any
time at the option of the holder and by the Company in the event that the Company’s closing stock price exceeds 400% of the conversion
price for twenty consecutive trading days. The Series I Preferred Stock has voting rights equivalent to twenty-five votes per common share
equivalent.
On August 11, 2016, the Board of PositiveID agreed to exchange 2,025 shares of its Series I Preferred, which have a stated value
of $2,025,000 and redemption value of $2,261,800, for 2,262 shares of Series II Preferred, which have a stated value of $2,262,000.
Pursuant to the Exchange each existing holder of Series I Preferred exchanged their Series I Preferred shares for Series II Preferred shares
having equivalent per share stated value, maintaining the same voting rights as they had as holders of the Series I Preferred. The Series II
have an aggregate stated value equivalent to the redemption value of the Series I at the exchange date. Both the Series I Preferred and the
Series II Preferred have a stated value per share of $1,000, and a dividend rate of 6% per annum. All shares of Series I Preferred previously
issued have become null and void and any and all rights arising thereunder have been extinguished. The Series II Preferred is only
forfeitable after the exchange date up to January 1, 2019 upon termination for cause and is subject to acceleration in the event of
conversion, redemption and certain events.
Accounting guidance under ASC 718 dictates that the incremental difference in fair value of Series II and Series I should be
recorded as stock-based compensation expense. As a result of the independent valuation performed, we have recorded the Series II at the
fair value of $2,306,345 at the date of issuance. The Series I had a fair value of $281,345, resulting in a charge of $2,025,000 recorded as
stock-based compensation in 2016. Additionally, the Series I liability was reclassified to additional paid-in-capital.
On March 29, 2017, the Company, filed a Certificate of Elimination (the “Certificate of Elimination”) for its Series I Convertible
Preferred Stock (“Series I”) with the Delaware Secretary of State to eliminate from its Third Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation, as amended (the “Certificate of Incorporation”), all references to the Company’s Series I. No shares of the Series I were
issued or outstanding upon filing of the Certificate of Elimination.
On March 29, 2017, the Company filed an Amended Restated Certificate of Designations of Preferences, Rights and Limitations
of Series II Convertible Preferred Stock (the “Amended Certificate of Designation”). The Amended Certificate of Designation was filed to
increase the authorized shares of Series II Convertible Preferred Stock from 3,000 shares to 4,000 shares. No other terms were modified or
amended in the Amended Certificate of Designation.
On March 29, 2017, the Company issued shares of Series II Preferred as follows: (i) 50 shares of Series II Preferred were issued to
each of three independent board members as a component of their 2017 compensation (150 shares total); and (ii) 685 shares of Series II
Preferred were issued to the Company’s management as a component of their 2016 incentive compensation at a stated value of $1,000 per
share. These Series II Preferred shares are only forfeitable up to January 1, 2019 upon termination for cause and is subject to acceleration in
the event of conversion, redemption and certain events. In connection with the issuance of the 835 Series II Preferred shares, the Company
charged $841,594 to stock based compensation expense in 2017 (which is $10,000 less than the total cost as $10,000 was accrued in fiscal
2016) to reflect the Series II Preferred fair value of $1,020 per share. As of December 31, 2017, 3,097 shares of Series II were issued and
outstanding.
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Series J Preferred Stock
On December 4, 2015, the Board of Directors authorized and on December 7, 2015, the Company filed with the State of
Delaware, a Certificate of Designations of Preferences, Rights and Limitations of Series J Preferred Stock where 1,700 shares of Series J
Preferred Stock were authorized. The Series J Preferred Stock ranks; (a) senior with respect to dividends and right of liquidation with the
Company’s common stock (b) pari passu with respect to dividends and right of liquidation with the Company’s Series I Convertible
Preferred Stock; and (c) junior with respect to dividends and right of liquidation to all existing and future indebtedness of the Company.
Without the prior written consent of Holders holding a majority of the outstanding shares of Series J Preferred Stock, the Company may
not issue any Preferred Stock that is senior to the Series J Preferred Stock in right of dividends and liquidation. At any time after the date of
the issuance of shares of Series J Preferred Stock, the Corporation will have the right, at the Corporation’s option, to redeem all or any
portion of the shares of Series J Preferred Stock at a price per share equal to 100% of the $1,000 per share stated value of the shares being
redeemed. Series J Preferred Stock is not entitled to dividends, interest and voting rights. The Series J Preferred Stock is convertible into
the Company’s common stock, at stated value, at a conversion price equal to 100% of the arithmetic average of the VWAP of the common
stock for the fifteen trading days prior to the six-month anniversary of the Issuance Date.
On August 25, 2016, PositiveID completed the acquisition and entered into an agreement with Sanomedics and Thermomedics
(the “August Agreement”), which amends certain terms of the Purchase Agreement and terminates the Control Agreement. As a result, the
125 shares of Preferred Series J stock originally issued shall be released from escrow as follows: 71 shares to Sanomedics and 54 shares
returned to the Company’s treasury. As of December 31, 2017, there were 71 shares Series J preferred stock which is convertible into
55,469 of the Company’s common shares at fixed conversion price of $1.28 (based on Series J stated value of $1,000 per share) as
determined by the agreement (see Note 2).
Warrants
From time to time the Company issues warrants both for compensatory purposes to consultants and advisors, and to financial
institutions in conjunction with financing activities.
No warrants were issued during the year ended December 31, 2017. As of December 31, 2017, 883 warrants to purchase the
Company’s common stock have been granted outside of the Company’s plans and remain outstanding as of December 31, 2017. These
warrants were granted at exercise prices in excess of $9.00 per share, are fully vested and are exercisable for a period of five years from the
date of grant.
On January 28, 2016, pursuant to a financing agreement, the Company issued immediately exercisable warrants to purchase 8
shares of common stock at an initial exercise price of $2,250 per share and are exercisable for a period of four years from the vest date. The
warrants expire in 2021.
On November 1, 2016, pursuant to a consulting agreement with two advisors, the Company issued to each advisor, warrants to
purchase 200 shares of common stock, which are immediately exercisable. The warrants have an initial exercise price of $9.0 per share and
are exercisable for a period of five years from the vest date. The warrants expire in 2021.
On November 1, 2016, pursuant to a consulting agreement with an advisor, the Company issued warrants to purchase 400 shares
of common stock, which are immediately exercisable. The warrants have an initial exercise price of $9.0 per share and are exercisable for a
period of five years from the vest date. The warrants expire in 2021.
A summary of warrant activity for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 is as follows:

Outstanding at January 1, 2016
Granted
Exercised
Expired/Forfeited
Outstanding at December 31, 2016
Granted
Exercised
Expired/Forfeited
Outstanding at December 31, 2017
Exercisable at December 31, 2017

Financing
Compensatory
Total
Weighted
Weighted
Weighted
Number
Average
Number
Average
Number
Average
of
Exercise
of
Exercise
of
Exercise
Warrants
Price
Warrants
Price
Warrants
Price
13 $ 12,000
77 $ 7,500
90 $ 8,220
8
2,250
827
120
835
120
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
4,200
4,200
—
(27)
(27)
21 $ 9,600
877 $
630
898 $
810
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
12,000
112,500
25,400
(13)
(2)
(15)
428
444
8 $ 2,250
875 $
883 $
428
444
8 $ 2,250
875 $
883 $

The Company had 883 warrants issued and outstanding which are also exercisable as of December 31, 2017.
F-39

POSITIVEID CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016
Stock Option Plans
On August 26, 2011, the Company’s stockholders approved and adopted the PositiveID Corporation 2011 Stock Incentive Plan
(the “2011 Plan”). The 2011 Plan provides for awards of incentive stock options, nonqualified stock options, restricted stock awards,
performance units, performance shares, SARs and other stock-based awards to employees and consultants. Under the 2011 Plan, up to 1
million shares of common stock may be granted pursuant to awards. Approximately 1.0 million remaining shares may be granted under the
2011 Plan. Awards to employees under the Company’s stock option plans generally vest over a two-year period, with pro-rata vesting upon
the anniversary of the grant. Awards of options have a maximum term of ten years and the Company generally issues new shares upon
exercise.
During the year ended December 31, 2017, no options were issued under the 2011 plan or outside the plan. During the year ended
December 31, 2016, the Company issued, outside of the approved employee stock incentive plans, a total of 1,043 options of which, 672
options were issued to directors and employee and 371 options were issued to consultants. As of December 31, 2017, the Company had
1,203 stock options in total, outside the plan, issued and outstanding out if which 827 vested between 2014 to 2017 and 376 will vest
between 2018 and 2019. These options had a grant date fair value of approximately $1.4 million.
On December 4, 2015, the Company’s Board of Directors approved and adopted the Thermomedics, Inc. 2015 Flexible Stock Plan
(“Thermomedics 2015 Plan”). The Thermomedics 2015 Plan provides for awards of incentive stock options, nonqualified stock options,
restricted stock awards, performance units, performance shares, SARs and other stock-based awards to employees and consultants. Under
the Thermomedics 2015 Plan, up to 5 million shares of common stock may be granted pursuant to awards. As of December 31, 2017,
342,500 options were issued and outstanding under the Thermomedics 2015 plan. These options vested in 2017 and had a grant date fair
value of $109,600 vested which were fully expensed as of the year ended December 31, 2017.
A summary of option activity under the Company’s option plans and outside of the Company’s option plan for the years ended
December 31, 2017 and 2016 is as follows:
2017
Number
of
Options
1,207
—
—
(4)
1,203
827

Outstanding on January 1
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited
Outstanding at year end
Exercisable at year end
Shares available for grant within Company’s option plans at
year end

Range of
Exercise Prices
$9.00 to $4,500
above $4,501
Vested options

$
$
$
$
$
$

2016
WeightedAverage
Exercise
Price
3,690
—
—
—
1,172
1,051

1,000,000

$
$
$
$
$
$

WeightedAverage
Exercise
Price
24,870
840
—
—
3,690
6,780

1,523,000

Outstanding Stock Options
WeightedAverage
WeightedRemaining
Average
Contractual
Exercise
Shares
Life (years)
Price
1,201
3.5
$
1,158
3.5
$
10,800
2
3.5
$
1,172
1,203
3.5

827

Number
of
Options
164
1,043
—
—
1,207
531

$

Exercisable Stock Options

Shares
825
2
827

WeightedAverage
Exercise
Price
$
1,032
$
$

10,800
1,051

1,051

There are inherent uncertainties in making estimates about forecasts of future operating results and identifying comparable
companies and transactions that may be indicative of the fair value of the Company’s securities. The Company believes that the estimates
of the fair value of its common stock options at each option grant date were reasonable under the circumstances.
F-40

POSITIVEID CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016
The Black-Scholes model, which the Company uses to determine compensation expense, requires the Company to make several
key judgments including:
●
●
●
●
●

the value of the Company’s common stock;
the expected life of issued stock options;
the expected volatility of the Company’s stock price;
the expected dividend yield to be realized over the life of the stock option; and
the risk-free interest rate over the expected life of the stock options.

The Company’s computation of the expected life of issued stock options was determined based on historical experience of
similar awards giving consideration to the contractual terms of the stock-based awards, vesting schedules and expectations about
employees’ future length of service. The interest rate was based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant. The
computation of volatility was based on the historical volatility of the Company’s common stock.
The fair values of the options granted were estimated on the grant date using the Black-Scholes valuation model based on the
following weighted-average assumptions:
2016
Expected dividend yield
Expected stock price volatility
Risk-free interest rate
Expected term (in years)

—
164 - 210%
1.03 – 1.93%
5.0

Stock-Based Compensation Expense
Stock-based compensation expense for awards granted to employees is recognized on a straight-line basis over the requisite
service period based on the grant-date fair value. Forfeitures are estimated at the time of grant and require the estimates to be revised, if
necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. The Company recorded compensation expense related to
stock options, restricted stock and preferred shares of approximately $1.1 million and $3.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2017
and 2016, respectively. The intrinsic value for all options outstanding was approximately nil as of December 31, 2017 and 2016.
11. Income Taxes
The Company accounts for income taxes under the asset and liability approach. Deferred taxes are recorded based upon the tax
impact of items affecting financial reporting and tax filings in different periods. A valuation allowance is provided against net deferred tax
assets where the Company determines realization is not currently judged to be more likely than not.
The tax effects of temporary differences and carryforwards that give rise to significant portions of deferred tax assets and liabilities
consist of the following (in thousands):
December 31,
2017
Deferred tax assets (liabilities):
Accrued expenses and reserves
Stock-based compensation
Intangibles
Property and equipment
Net operating loss carryforwards
Gross deferred tax assets
Valuation allowance
Net deferred taxes

$

$

1,182 $
1,166
8
(10)
24,328
26,674
(26,674)
— $

2016
575
2,473
(93)
(23
34,064
36,996
(36,996)
—

As a result of the Company’s history of incurring operating losses a full valuation allowance against the net deferred tax asset has
been recorded at December 31, 2017 and 2016.
On December 22, 2017, the United States enacted the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (Act). The Act makes significant modifications to
the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code, including but not limited to, a corporate tax rate decrease to 21% effective as of January 1,
2018. The Company’s net deferred tax assets and liabilities have been revalued at the newly enacted U.S. Corporate rate in the year of
enactment. The adjustment related to the revaluation of the deferred tax asset and liability balances, is a net charge of approximately $12
million. This expense is fully offset by a change in valuation allowance. Accordingly, there is no impact on income tax expense as of
December 31, 2017.
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The difference between the effective rate reflected in the provision for income taxes on loss before taxes and the amounts
determined by applying the applicable statutory U.S. tax rate of 34% are analyzed below:
2017
Statutory tax benefit
State income taxes, net of federal effects
Permanent items
Change in Federal Tax rate
Change in deferred tax asset valuation allowance

%

Provision for income taxes

%

2016
(34) %
—
3
141
(110)
—

%

(34)
(11)
—
33
12
—

As of December 31, 2017, the Company had U.S. federal net operating loss carry forwards of approximately $91 million for
income tax purposes that expire in various amounts through 2037. The Company also has approximately $73 million of state net operating
loss carryforwards that expire in various amounts through 2037.
Based upon the change of ownership rules under IRC Section 382, the Company had a change of ownership in December 2007
exceeding the 50% limitation threshold imposed by IRC Section 382. The Company experienced subsequent changes in ownership during
2008 through 2016 as a result of the Company issuing common shares which could potentially result in additional changes of ownership
under IRC Section 382. As a result, the Company’s future utilization of its net operating loss carryforwards will be significantly limited as
to the amount of use in any particular year, and consequently may be subject to expiration.
The Company files consolidated tax returns in the United States federal jurisdiction and in the various states in which it does
business. In general, the Company is no longer subject to U.S. federal or state income tax examinations for years before December 31,
2014.
In July 2008, the Company completed the sale of all of the outstanding capital stock of Xmark to Stanley. In January 2010,
Stanley received a notice from the Canadian Revenue Agency (“CRA”) that the CRA would be performing a review of Xmark’s Canadian
tax returns for the periods 2005 through 2008. This review covers all periods that the Company owned Xmark. The review performed by
CRA resulted in an assessment of approximately $1.4 million, in 2011.
During 2012, the Company received an indemnification claim notice from Stanley related to the matter. The Company did not
agree with the position taken by the CRA, and filed a formal appeal related to the matter. In addition, Stanley received assessments for
withholding taxes on deemed dividend payments in respect of the disallowed management fee totaling approximately $0.2 million, for
which we filed a formal appeal. In connection with the filing of the appeals, Stanley was required to remit an upfront payment of a portion
of the tax reassessment totaling approximately $950,000. The Company has also filed a formal appeal related to the withholding tax
assessments, pursuant to which Stanley was required to remit an additional upfront payment of approximately $220,000. The Company has
agreed to repay Stanley for the upfront payments, plus interest and the upfront payments made by Stanley is reflected as a liability on the
accompanying consolidated balance sheet as “Tax Liability”
As of December 31, 2017, the Company had paid a total amount of $704,061 of the liability. In addition, Stanley had received a
total refund of $148,325 from the CRA which was deducted from the recorded liability. Based on management’s estimate, including
reconciling to Stanley’s accounts, the Company has a recorded tax liability of approximately $100,000, as reflected as a liability on the
accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2017.
12. Commitments and Contingencies
Lease Commitments
The Company leases certain office space under non-cancelable operating leases, including the Company’s corporate offices in
Delray Beach, Florida under a lease scheduled to expire in October 18, 2018, laboratory and office space in Pleasanton, California a lease
scheduled to expire in September 30, 2018 and office and manufacturing space in Concord, California which is currently on a month-tomonth commitment. Rent expense under operating leases totaled approximately $248,000 and $244,000 for the years ended December 31,
2017 and 2016, respectively. Future minimum lease payments under operating leases at December 31, 2017 are as follows (in thousands):
2018

$
$
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LG Capital Funding Litigation
On March 7, 2017, LG Capital Funding, LLC (“LG”), filed a complaint in the U.S. District Court of the Eastern District of New
York (the “Court”), related to a 10% Convertible Redeemable Note issued by us to LG on July 7, 2016 in the amount of $66,150 (the “LG
Note”). The LG Note provides that LG is entitled to convert all or any amount of the outstanding balance and accrued interest of the LG
Note into shares of our Common Stock. The complaint alleges breach of contract and anticipatory breach of contract, asserting, among
other things, that we failed to deliver shares of stock to LG pursuant to a notice of conversion, and failed to reserve a sufficient number of
shares of stock issuable under the terms of the LG Note. On July 12, 2017, the Court denied LG’s motion for Order to Show Cause and
Request for an Injunction. The Company will continue to answer and defend against this complaint. Under ASC 450, the Company has
determined that it is reasonably possible but not probable that the outcome of the litigation might be unfavorable. Based on the Company’s
analysis of the outcome of the litigation, the range of potential outcomes are between $0 and $250,000. As such, the Company has recorded
a loss contingency it believes reflects the most likely outcome of the litigation.
Other Legal Proceedings
The Company is a party to certain legal actions, as either plaintiff or defendant, arising in the ordinary course of business, none
of which is expected to have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition or results of operations. However,
litigation is inherently unpredictable, and the costs and other effects of pending or future litigation, governmental investigations, legal and
administrative cases and proceedings, whether civil or criminal, settlements, judgments and investigations, claims or charges in any such
matters, and developments or assertions by or against the Company relating to the Company or to the Company’s intellectual property
rights and intellectual property licenses could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition and operating
results.
13. Employment Contracts and Stock Compensation
On April 8, 2016, the Company entered into employment contracts with both Mr. Caragol and Mr. Probst, effective January 1,
2016. The terms of Mr. Caragol’s employment contract include a three-year term and a salary of $275,000. Mr. Caragol’s salary will
automatically adjust to $350,000 at the time that PositiveID’s common stock is listed on a national exchange. Mr. Caragol is eligible for
annual bonuses and was granted 167 stock options and; (i) 57 vested on January 1, 2017; (ii) 55 vested on January 1, 2018; and (iii) 55 will
vest on January 1, 2019. These options will expire on January 1, 2021. Mr. Caragol is also entitled to the use of a Company car and related
expenses and an unaccountable expense allowance of $25,000. The terms of Mr. Probst’s employment contract include a three-year term
and a salary of $200,000. Mr. Probst’s salary will automatically adjust to $250,000 at the time that PositiveID’s common stock is listed on a
national exchange. Mr. Probst is eligible for annual bonuses and was granted 100 stock options and; (i) 34 vested on January 1, 2017; (ii)
33 vested on January 1, 2018; and (iii) 33 will vest on January 1, 2019. These options will expire on January 1, 2021.
If either Mr. Caragol or Mr. Probst’s employment is terminated prior to the expiration of the term of his employment agreement,
certain significant payments become due. The amount of such payments depends on the nature of the termination. In addition, the
employment agreement contains a change of control provision that provides for the payment of 2.0 times and 2.95 times in the case of Mr.
Probst and Mr. Caragol, respectively of the then current base salary and the same multipliers of the highest bonus paid to the executive
during the three calendar years immediately prior to the change of control. Any outstanding stock options or restricted shares held by the
executive as of the date of his termination or a change of control become vested and exercisable as of such date and remain exercisable
during the remaining life of the option. The employment agreement also contains non-compete and confidentiality provisions which are
effective from the date of employment through two years from the date the employment agreement is terminated.
14. Segments
The Company operates in three business segments: Molecular Diagnostics, Medical Devices, and Mobile Labs.
Molecular Diagnostics
The Company develops molecular diagnostic systems for rapid medical testing and bio-threat detection. The Company’s fully
automated pathogen detection systems are designed to detect a range of biological threats. The Company’s M-BAND (Microfluidic Bioagent Autonomous Networked Detector) system is an airborne bio-threat detection system developed for the homeland defense industry to
detect biological weapons of mass destruction. The Company is developing the FireflyDX family of products, automated point-of-need
pathogen detection systems for rapid diagnostics.
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Medical Devices
Through its wholly-owned Thermomedics subsidiary, the Company markets and sells the Caregiver product. Caregiver is an FDAcleared for clinical use, infrared thermometer that measures forehead temperature in adults, children and infants, without contact. Caregiver
is the world’s first clinically validated, non-contact thermometer for the healthcare providers market, which includes hospitals, physicians’
offices, medical clinics, nursing homes and other long-term care institutions, and acute care hospitals. Our Caregiver thermometer with
TouchFree™ technology is less likely to transmit infectious disease than devices that require even minimal contact. It therefore saves
medical facilities the cost of probe covers (up to $0.10 per temperature reading), storage space and disposal costs.
Mobile Labs
Our ENG subsidiary (see Note 5) is a leader in the specialty technology vehicle market, with a focus on mobile laboratories,
command and communications applications, and mobile cellular systems. ENG builds mobile laboratories specifically designed for
chemical and biological detection, monitoring and analysis. ENG also provides specialty vehicle manufacturing for TV news vans and
trucks, emergency response trailers, mobile command centers, infrared inspection, utilities inspection, and other special purpose vehicles.
The following is the selected segment data for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 (in thousands):

Revenue
Operating (loss)
Depreciation and amortization
Interest and other income (expense)
Net loss
Goodwill
Segmented assets
Expenditures for property and equipment

Revenue
Operating (loss)
Depreciation and amortization
Interest and other income (expense)
Net loss
Goodwill
Segmented assets
Expenditures for property and equipment

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

Molecular
Diagnostics
142
(739)
(8)
34
(705)
510
543
—

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

Molecular
Diagnostics
115
(828)
(111)
22
(806)
510
606
—

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

Year ended December 31, 2017
Medical
Mobile
Devices
Labs
Corporate
411 $
4,806 $
—
(338) $
(747) $
(3,021)
(109) $
(85) $
(1)
(3) $
(4) $
(3,915)
(341) $
(753) $
(6,934)
91 $
— $
—
382 $
700 $
100
— $
(41) $
—

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

Total
5,359
(4,845)
(203)
(3,888)
(8,733)
601
1,725
(41)

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

Year ended December 31, 2016
Medical
Mobile
Devices
Labs
Corporate
417 $
5,027 $
—
(462) $
(257) $
(5,600)
(109) $
(79) $
(1)
(60) $
(3) $
(5,873)
(522) $
(260) $
(11,473)
91 $
199 $
—
514 $
1,349 $
93
(1) $
(7) $
—

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

Total
5,559
(7,147)
(300)
(5,914)
(13,061)
800
2,562
(8)
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15. Subsequent events
On January 30, 2018, ENG entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement (“SPA II”) with the Purchaser, pursuant to which (i) ENG
sold six hundred forty one (641) shares (the “Shares”) of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock of ENG for a purchase price of
approximately $312 per share, for an aggregate purchase price of $200,000; and (ii) the Company declined to exercise its right to purchase
a pro rata portion of the Shares and has approved the issuance and sale of the Shares by ENG to the Purchaser, and waived all rights it may
have with respect to ENG’s purchase of the Shares. In connection with the transaction, the Company also committed to issue a promissory
note in the amount of $54,000 to ENG for settlement of past and current intercompany transactions and liabilities. As a result of this
transaction the Company’s equity interest in ENG has decreased to 24% and prospectively the Company will deconsolidate the balance
sheet, results of operations and cash flows of ENG in its consolidated financial statements. At December 31, 2017 the Company owned
50.2% of ENG and controlled ENG’s assets. These assets represented between 50% and 55% of the Company’s overall assets. As the result
of the Company owning 24% of ENG as of January 30, 2018 and no longer controlling ENG’s assets, the Company will not consolidate
the results of ENG, comprising a significant amount of the Company’s assets, as of January 30, 2018 (see Note 5).
The Company, subsequent to year end:
●

received approximately $771,500 of net proceeds (net of legal fees and OID) from note payables in the aggregate principal amount of
approximately $819,000. These notes payable have; (i) interest rates between 8% to 12%; (ii) conversion discounts between 35% to
37.5% and; (iii) maturity dates between nine to twelve months from the date it was funded. In connection with the issuance of these
notes, the Company will record a premium as these notes are considered stock settled debt under ASC 480.

●

received $24,000 of net proceeds from back end notes (see Note 9).

●

issued 4.9 billion shares of common stock for the conversion of notes with a principal value of approximately $1.0 million.
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Exhibit 21.1
PositiveID Corporation
List of Subsidiaries

Company Name
PositiveID Diagnostics, Inc. (f/k/a MicroFluidic Systems, Inc)
Thermomedics, Inc.
ExcitePCR, Corporation

Country or
State of
Incorporation
or Formation
California
Nevada
Delaware

Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION
OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND
PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, William J. Caragol, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of PositiveID Corporation;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to
the period covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in
this report;

4.

I am responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act 13a- 15(e) and
15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15(d)-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:
a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under my
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known
to me by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed
under my supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report my conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on
such evaluation; and
d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5.

I have disclosed, based on my most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the
audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information;
and
b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: April 2, 2018

/s/ William J. Caragol
William J. Caragol
Chairman of the Board,
Chief Executive Officer and Acting Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Executive Officer and Acting Principal Financial Officer)

Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION OF
PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND
PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the Annual of PositiveID Corporation (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the year ending December 31, 2017 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, William J. Caragol, Chief Executive Officer, Chairman
of the Board of Directors and Acting Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to
§ 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of operations of the
Company.
/s/ William J. Caragol
William J. Caragol
Chairman of the Board,
Chief Executive Officer and Acting Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Executive Officer and Acting Principal Financial Officer)
Date: April 2, 2018
A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to PositiveID Corporation and will be retained by
PositiveID Corporation and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

